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It is my pleasure to present the 2010 Annual Report of The Hong
Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited for the information of the Financial Affairs
Panel and also other members of the Legislative Council.

The Annual Report sets out the major business developments and a
review of the financial performance of the Corporation in 2010. The strong
performance strengthens the Corporation’s financial position and greatly
enhances its ability to perform its strategic functions in pursuit of its policy
objectives. The Corporation will continue to contribute to the development of
Hong Kong’s housing-finance system and to complement the Government’s

policies through product innovation, making mortgage financing more accessible
to homebuyers.

Yours sincerely,

/ .
—

A wholly-owned Hong Kong SAR Government Corporation through the Exchange Fund
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Core Missions

To enhance the stability of the banking sector through the offering
of a reliable source of liquidity, thereby reducing the concentration
and liquidity risks of mortgage lending of the banks;

To promote wider home ownership in Hong Kong; and

To facilitate the growth and development of the debt securities and
mortgage-backed securities markets in Hong Kong.
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Financial Highlights

2010 2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FOR THE YEAR
Net interest income 970,581 1,037,707 709,850
Profit attributable to shareholders 1,233,532 1,006,469 604,994
Loan purchases 4,748,181 8,768,789 26,037,165
Debt securities issued 8,279,703 22,688,680 24,405,704
Mortgage insurance — net premiums written 791,357 784,650 358,579
AT YEAR END
Loan portfolio, net 35,258,937 43,788,716 50,760,112
Total assets 55,032,978 59,750,624 65,628,334
Debt securities issued 39,127,735 44,495,073 42,814,988
Mortgage-backed securities issued 1,529,749 2,020,394 3,225,624
Mortgage insurance — risk-in-force’ 15,234,179 11,592,494 5,713,065
OTHER STATISTICS
Net interest margin 1.8% 1.7% 1.3%
Capital-to-assets ratio 10.8% 9.5% 8.7%
Cost-to-income ratio 11.0% 12.4% 17.5%
Return on assets 2.2% 1.6% 1.1%
Return on shareholders’ equity 17.5% 16.2% 10.5%

T The risk-in-force excludes exposure that has been covered by quota-share reinsurance arrangement.
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Chairman’s Statement

Despite the challenging economic environment,
the Corporation has further expanded its business

coverage to reinforce the delivery of its strategic

policy role to:

e promote banking and financial stability;
e promote wider home ownership; and

o facilitate development of the local debt market.

The Corporation undertook to provide guarantee for SME
loans extended by banks, thereby promoting banking
stability by helping banks to manage their risk exposure.
The HKMC also started preparation for the launch of reverse
mortgages in Hong Kong, as part of its efforts to promote

home ownership.

Promoting Banking and Financial
Stability

With the historic low interest rate and abundant liquidity,
banks generally had less need to offload their assets for
liquidity purposes. Nevertheless, the HKMC purchased local

assets totalling HK$4.7 billion in 2010. The global regulatory

landscape of the financial industry has been changing
fast in the wake of the global financial tsunami. Banking
reform measures such as “Basel llI” may well require banks
to be more stringent in their capital and balance sheet
management. Thus, the Corporation will continue to play
a key role in helping banks to meet their needs for liquidity

and prudent balance sheet management.

In addition, the Corporation launched the market-oriented
SME Financing Guarantee Scheme on 1 January 2011 to
provide a sustainable platform to help local small and
medium-sized enterprises to obtain bank financing. Under
the scheme, the Corporation provides guarantee coverage on
part of the bank financing for eligible enterprises. The scheme
helps banks to manage their lending risks more effectively

and enhances the stability of the banking system.
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04 CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Promoting Wider Home Ownership

The Corporation’s Mortgage Insurance Programme (“MIP")
continues to help foster wider home ownership in Hong
Kong. Against the buoyant property market in 2010, the
MIP loan drawdown reached a record high of HK$41
billion and the usage rate (in terms of the amount of loans
drawn down as a percentage of total drawdown in the
mortgage market) was 13%. MIP also promotes liquidity
in the secondary property market, with 96% of the MIP
loans coming from secondary market transactions in 2010.
Since 1999, the MIP has helped over 85,000 families to
attain home ownership, with loan drawdown totalling over

HK$183 billion.

In November 2010, the Corporation introduced the Risk-
based Scoring Model (“RBSM”) as an enhancement to its MIP
to replace earlier schemes introduced in 2006. It represents
amore robust and refined approach to determine the level
of mortgage insurance premium based on homebuyers’
credit quality and repayment capability. More homebuyers

are expected to be eligible for premium discounts.

Inview of the overheated property market, the Corporation
acted in concert with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
("HKMA") to revise the MIP in August and November 2010
to tighten high loan-to-value ratio mortgage lending. This
was done in order that homebuyers would not over-extend

themselves when undertaking residential mortgage loans.

With the aging population and the favourable results from a

territory-wide survey of the potential users, the Corporation

THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED

announced in December 2010 the plan to introduce a pilot
scheme for reverse mortgages in mid-2011. The scheme will
enable elderly people to use their self-occupied residential
properties to apply for reverse mortgage loans in return
for cash payment while staying in their principal residence.
Reverse mortgage provides elderly people with an additional
choice to obtain steady cash flows to improve their standard

of living.

Facilitating Debt Market Development

In 2010, the credit ratings of the Corporation were upgraded
to "AAA" by Standard & Poor’s and “Aa1” by Moody's. The
Corporation remains the most active corporate debt issuer
in the Hong Kong dollar debt market since 2001. With its
excellent credit standing, the Corporation is well positioned
to promote the development of the local debt market while
meeting the growing demand for high-grade long-term debt
investment from insurance and pension funds in Hong Kong.
When there are suitable opportunities, the Corporation
will also look to issue Renminbi-denominated bonds in

Hong Kong.

New Initiative

The Corporation is conducting a feasibility study on the
demand for and operation of a sustainable microfinance
scheme in Hong Kong. According to overseas experience,
microfinance has proven to be effective in facilitating the
start-up of micro businesses and improving employment
opportunities. It is therefore worthy of further exploration

in Hong Kong.



Performance in 2010

The Corporation has recorded favourable return in 2010.
Profits after tax reached a record high of HK$1,234 million,
an increase of 23% over 2009. The return on shareholder’s
equity was 17.5%, and the capital-to-assets ratio rose
from 9.5% in 2009 to 10.8%, well above the minimum of
5% required. The Corporation declared a final dividend of

HK$350 million.

The strong performance in 2010 was mainly attributable
to the favourable interest-rate environment, prudent
business development strategy, strong commitment to
risk management along with excellent loan performances
through prudent loan purchasing criteria and stringent
mortgage insurance underwriting standards. The Corporation
will continue to strengthen its financial position and enhance

its ability to pursue the strategic objectives.

Outlook for 2011

2011 will be another challenging year. Quantitative easing
by the United States has increased the risks of inflation
and asset-price bubbles in Asia. Various economies have
introduced tightening measures to counter such impact.
Such developments reflect the significant imbalances in the
global economy and financial system. The recent earthquake
in Japan has added further complications to the pace of
global economic recovery. Hence, the economic outlook

for 2011 still remains uncertain and volatile.

The HKMC must therefore remain vigilant and continue
to reinforce its business focus in Hong Kong to fulfil its
principal objectives. The Corporation will continue to
operate in a prudent commercial manner with emphasis
on risk management and good corporate governance. This
will ensure the Corporation to maintain its important role
in providing liquidity to local banks, meeting the mortgage
insurance needs of homeowners and promoting the

development of the local debt market.

Finally, I acknowledge the dedication and hard work of
my fellow Directors, Management and all staff of the
Corporation. | look forward to another successful year for

the Corporation in 2011.

John C Tsang

Chairman
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Board of Directors

The Honourable
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Director
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Director
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Chairman
Consumer Council

The Honourable

Ms. Eva CHENG,
Director

Secretary for Transport and
Housing

Dr. the Honourable
David LI Kwok-po,

GBM, GBS, Hon. LLD (Cantab), JP
Director

Legislative Councillor
Chairman and Chief Executive
The Bank of East Asia, Limited
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Deputy Chairman
Chief Executive

Hong Kong Monetary Authority
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The Honourable
Abraham SHEK Lai-him,
SBS, JP

Director

Legislative Councillor

Mr. Eddie YUE Wai-man, s
Executive Director

Deputy Chief Executive

Hong Kong Monetary Authority

The Honourable

Andrew LEUNG Kwan-yuen,
GBS, SBS, JP

Director

Legislative Councillor
Chairman, Sun Hing Knitting
Factory Limited



The Honourable

CHAN Kin-por,

Director

Legislative Councillor

Member of the China Advisory
Board

Munich Reinsurance Company
Hong Kong Branch

Mr. Lester Garson HUANG,
Director

Partner

P.C. Woo & Co.

Mr. Geoffrey Jay MANSFIELD
Director
(retired on 20 April 2010)

The Honourable

Ms. Starry LEE Wai-King, i
Director

Legislative Councillor

Mr. Jammy CHEN

Director

(appointed on 20 April 2010)
Head, Secured Lending Products
North East Asia

Consumer Banking

Standard Chartered Bank

(Hong Kong) Limited

Mr. Eddie TAN Cheng-soo
Director

(retired on 20 April 2010)
Regional Treasurer

Asia Pacific

Citibank, N.A.

The Honourable
Ms. Tanya CHAN
Director

Legislative Councillor

Mr. Andrew FUNG Hau-chung
Director

(appointed on 20 April 2010)
General Manager

Head of Treasury and
Investment

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Ms. Louisa CHEANG

Director

(retired on 20 April 2010)
Group General Manager
Regional Director

Personal Financial Services
Asia-Pacific

The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited

¢

Mr. Eddy FONG Ching, css,
Director

Chairman

Securities and Futures
commission

—
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Mr. Ryan FUNG Yuk-lung
Director

(appointed on 20 April 2010)
Chief Executive Officer
PrimeCredit Limited

i
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Management Team
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<« (from left to right)
Mr. Desmond Cheng
Mr. Stanley Chan
Mr. James H. Lau Jr., e
Mr. Raymond Liu
Ms. Susie Cheung

v (from left to right)
Front Row
Ms. Josephine Chan
Mr. Godfrey Wong
Ms. Kathleen Yeung
Ms. Irene Mok
Mr. Mickey Chan

Second Row

Mr. Zarino Tong
Mr. Raymond Luk
Ms. Angela Leung
Mr. Maurice Yip
Mr. Wayne Law
Ms. Joyce Wong
Mr. Calvin Tam
Mr. Joseph Seto




Organisation Structure

As at 1 April 2011

HKMC Board

Audit
Committee

Corporate Risk
Management

Committee

Chief Executive
Officer

Asset and
Liability
Committee

Credit
Committee

Transaction
Approval
Committee

Operational
Risk
Committee

Senior Vice
President

Senior Vice
President

Senior Vice
President

General Counsel
and Company

Secretary

Vice President

(Treasury)
Mr. Calvin Tam

Vice President
(Financial Control)
Mr. Raymond Luk

Vice President
(Information Technology)
Mr. Zarino Tong

Vice President
(Operations)
Ms. Irene Mok

Vice President
(Marketing and Business
Development)

Ms. Angela Leung

Vice President
(Project Management)
Mr. Joseph Seto

Vice President
(Mortgage Insurance)
Mr. Maurice Yip

Vice President
(Pricing and
Quantitative Risk)
Mr. Mickey Chan

Vice President
(Risk Management)
Ms. Kathleen Yeung

Legal Counsel
Ms. Josephine Chan
Mr. Godfrey Wong
Mr. Wayne Law

Chief Internal
Auditor
Mr. Victor Chiu

Vice President
(Administration and
Human Resources)
Ms. Joyce Wong
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Practices

The Corporation is committed to ensuring a high standard of
corporate governance to improve the overall accountability,
transparency and long-term sustainability of its operations to
meet its three key objectives. The Corporation’s corporate
governance practices are set out in the “Corporate
Governance Code” (the “Code”) approved by the Board. The
Code is premised on the principles of fairness, transparency,
accountability and responsibility to all stakeholders and has
been issued to the shareholders and the Directors. The
Code is also available on our website and is accessible by

the public.

Throughout 2010, the Corporation has complied with the
provisions of the Code. Maintaining a robust and sensible
framework of corporate governance for the effective and
prudent management of the Corporation has always been

a top corporate priority.

Enhanced Corporate Governance
Measures Adopted by the Corporation

in 2010

In September 2010, the Corporation performed a review on
the Code provisions and included new Code provisions to
improve transparency and other modifications to reflect the
existing prudent practices and high standards of corporate
governance practices of the Corporation. In particular, major
amendments include: setting out clearly the responsibility
of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer and the various means which the external auditor
could adopt to ensure its independence in relation to the

Corporation’s business. The robustness of the internal

control is further enhanced by segregating the major duties
and functions within the Corporation which are susceptible

to abuse or corruption.

Shareholders

All the shares of the Corporation are beneficially owned by
the Financial Secretary of Hong Kong as Controller of the
Exchange Fund. Therefore, whilst the Corporation operates
under prudent commercial principles, the Board endeavours
to ensure that the Corporation delivers its performance
based on good corporate governance practices which are

commensurate with the best international standards.

The Board

The Board is responsible for leading the Corporation and
promoting its success in a responsible and effective manner.
In fulfilling its responsibility in terms of providing strategic
leadership and effective control of the Corporation, the
Board meets in person at least once every three months to
oversee the Corporation’s business strategy and policies,
budgeting and planning, organisational and financial
performance, risk management, human resources as well
as community relations, and on other occasions whenever
a Board decision is required on major issues. In order to
ensure that well-balanced decisions are made by the Board,
the Directors of the Corporation include officials from the
government and regulators, representatives from the
political parties, banking sector, insurance sector, industry
associations, the accounting and legal professions, and
also the Consumer Council. During 2010, the Board held

five meetings.
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12 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect
interests, if any, in any transactions to be considered by the
Board at Board meetings and withdraw from the meetings
as appropriate. In respect of each financial reporting period,
the Corporation will seek confirmation from the Directors in
respect of their material interests in transactions involving
the Corporation or its subsidiaries. There was no contract
of significance in relation to the Corporation’s business, to
which the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director has a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, which subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year. Material related party transactions
are disclosed in Note 32 to the financial statements for the

year ended 31 December 2010.

As at 31 December 2010, there were 18 Directors, all of
whom were duly appointed by the Financial Secretary in
his capacity as shareholder of the Corporation. Information
about the Directors is set out in the Report of the Directors
published in the Annual Report. All Directors (with the
exception of the four Executive Directors) are non-executive
and independent of the Corporation’s Management. An
updated list of the Directors is published on the Corporation’s
website (www.hkmc.com.hk). Whilst not actively involved
in the day-to-day management of the Corporation, Non-
Executive Directors do play an important role in bringing
their independent judgment and considerable knowledge
and diverse expertise to the Board's deliberations, which
in turn provide effective steer to Management in pursuit
of the Corporation’s policies. The Corporation does not

remunerate its Directors.

Whenever a Director is newly appointed, the Corporation will
provide a briefing and an induction package to the Director
on the business activities, strategies and objectives of the
Corporation to ensure that he or she is informed of the

affairs of the Corporation.

THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED

The term of a Non-Executive Director is typically one year.
Non-Executive Directors are typically appointed at an Annual
General Meeting. Under the Articles of Association of the
Corporation, all Non-Executive Directors will retire at the
next Annual General Meeting following their appointment

but are eligible for re-election.

The Corporation maintains a directors and officers liability
insurance policy for its Directors and officers against legal
proceedings and other claims arising in the course of

discharge of their duties.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

In 2010, the post of Chairman was held by Mr. John C. Tsang.
The post of Chief Executive Officer was held by Mr. James H.
Lau Jr. The segregation of the posts of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer ensures a clear division of responsibilities
between the Board and the executive functions of the
Corporation’s Management. The Board is responsible for
laying down strategic direction and business guidelines,
approving financial objectives and closely monitoring the
Corporation’s performance on an on-going basis. The
Chief Executive Officer, who is accountable to the Board,
is responsible for leading Management in implementing
the Board'’s decisions in a proper and efficient manner. The
Chief Executive Officer ensures that adequate information
relating to the Corporation’s business will be reported to

the Board on a regular basis.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is directly accountable to the
Board and her main duty is to ensure that all company
secretarial procedures are followed by the Corporation and
the Board. In addition, the Company Secretary also ensures
that Board papers are provided to Directors in a timely and
comprehensive manner prior to each Board meeting and

the Annual General Meeting of the Corporation. Directors



Audit Committee Meeting

have free access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary concerning corporate governance matters, and
she provides guidance to Directors to make appropriate

declarations to avoid conflicts of interest.

The Board meeting schedule for 2010 was provided to
Directors in advance to facilitate Directors’ attendance
at Board meetings. Board papers are generally sent to
Directors at least seven days before the relevant Board
meeting so that Directors could be properly briefed before
the Board meeting. The Board papers typically contained
comprehensive background and/or explanatory information
about the subject matters and included supporting
documents, analyses, research findings, projections,
budgets and forecasts, where appropriate. However, any
Director adjudged to have a conflict of interest in the subject
matter under discussion in a Board paper would not be

provided with the relevant Board paper.

All the minutes of Board meetings are generally taken in
sufficient detail, including the matters considered, decisions
reached, concerns raised by Directors and dissenting views
expressed at the meetings. All minutes of Board meetings
and Audit Committee meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and made available for inspection by any Director,
except as regards any materials with respect to an agenda
item in which that Director is perceived to have a conflict of
interest, in such case, the relevant Board papers and Board

minutes would be withheld from such Director.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee members during the year were:

e Dr. David Li, Chairman, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Peter Pang, Executive Director

Mr. Eddie Yue, Executive Director

Mr. Eddy Fong, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Andrew Leung, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Abraham Shek, Non-Executive Director

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Corporation’s financial statements, the composition
and accounting principles adopted in such statements,
the results of the financial audits and the Corporation’s
management procedures to ensure the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal control systems. The Terms of
Reference of the Audit Committee are published on the

Corporation’s website.

The Audit Committee holds regular meetings with
Management, Chief Internal Auditor and external auditor,
and special meetings may be called to review significant
control or financial issues. The Audit Committee also meets
on an ad hoc basis to consider special issues requiring its
attention. The Chairman of the Audit Committee summarises
the reviews conducted by the Audit Committee and
highlights the major issues in a report for submission to
the Board for consideration by Directors. During 2010, the

Committee met on two occasions.
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14 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Internal Auditor

The Corporation has an Internal Audit Department which
operates independently of Management and plays a major
role in monitoring the internal control systems of the
Corporation. The Internal Audit Department is led by the
Chief Internal Auditor who reports directly to the Chairman
of the Audit Committee on all matters relating to the internal
control systems. The Chief Internal Auditor also reports to
the Chief Executive Officer on the day-to-day administrative
functions of the Internal Audit Department, and is entitled
to communicate freely with the Chairman of the Audit

Committee without reference to Management.

Each year, the Audit Committee formally approves the
annual Internal Audit Plan drawn up by the Chief Internal
Auditor based on his independent risk assessment and other
risk management issues observed by him at the regular
Operational Risk Committee meetings. In accordance with
the annual Internal Audit Plan, the Internal Audit Department
adopts a risk-based audit approach in conducting its periodic
independent reviews of the Corporation’s internal control
systems. After each review, the Internal Audit Department
discusses the audit findings and recommendations with
the relevant department heads and Senior Management.
Regular internal audit reports are first submitted to the
Internal Audit Committee which is chaired by an Executive
Director. The membership composition of the Internal
Audit Committee comprises two Executive Directors, the
Chief Executive Officer, the Senior Vice Presidents, General
Counsel and the Chief Internal Auditor. The internal audit
reports and meeting minutes prepared for the Internal Audit
Committee are then submitted to the Audit Committee for
further review and, thereafter, to the Board of Directors for

information.

Over the years, Management has taken an active approach

in considering the audit findings and recommendations

THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED

made by the Chief Internal Auditor and monitors closely
their implementation. In 2010, the Internal Audit Department

conducted 16 reviews and one consultancy project.

External Auditor

The Corporation’sexternal auditoris PricewaterhouseCoopers.
Detailed information in respect of the auditor’s remuneration
is disclosed in the Corporation’s financial statements. The
auditor is allowed to communicate freely with the Chief
Internal Auditor and the Audit Committee. To ensure its
independence with respect to the Corporation, the auditor
would issue a confirmation letter of its independence, on
an annual basis, to the Audit Committee to confirm its
independence based on the requirements set out in Section
290 of the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
For the purpose of the audit of the Corporation’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2010,
PricewaterhouseCoopers has confirmed its independence

to the Audit Committee.

Financial Reporting

The Corporation aims to present a clear, balanced and
comprehensible assessment of its performance, financial
position and prospects to its stakeholders and the general
public. Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements, and there is a statement by the auditor
about its reporting responsibilities in the Auditor’s Report on
the Financial Statements. The Directors are to ensure that
financial statements are prepared so as to give a true and fair
view of the financial status of the Corporation. The annual
and interim results of the Corporation are announced in a

timely manner after the end of each relevant period.

Internal Control

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Corporation’s

internal control systems and, through the Audit Committee,



conducts periodic review on the effectiveness and efficiency

of the systems.

There are various committees set up by the Board to ensure
the efficient operation and prudent risk management of the
Corporation. Those committees include the Corporate Risk
Management Committee which is chaired by an Executive
Director to oversee the financial and non-financial risks of
the Corporation from an enterprise-wide perspective; whilst
the Operational Risk Committee, the Credit Committee,
the Transaction Approval Committee and the Asset and
Liability Committee are executive committees chaired by
the Chief Executive Officer. Detailed description of these
four executive committees and the risk management
framework of the Corporation are set out in the section
on Business Overview. The internal control systems
are designed to provide reasonable assurance against
material misstatement or loss, manage risks of failure in
the operational systems and the achievement of business
objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised use,
ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for
internal use and publication and assure compliance with

applicable legislation and regulations.

In February 2011, the Chief Internal Auditor duly conducted
an independent review of the Self-assessment Forms
provided by each Department in relation to compliance
with the Code for 2010. Based on the audit findings on
the Corporation’s internal control systems and the Self-
assessment Forms for the year, the Chief Internal Auditor
was of the opinion that there was no material breach of

the Code in 2010.

Code of Conduct
The Corporation requires the highest standards of integrity
and conduct from its staff members. The requirements and

the relevant legal obligations are clearly set out in a code

of conduct (“Code of Conduct”) incorporated into the Staff
Handbook. The Code of Conduct also sets out, in particular,
provisions as regards potential conflicts of interest situations
which may arise between the staff members and the
Corporation in respect of which the staff members should
be aware, and other provisions designed to ensure that they
carry out their work properly, ethically, impartially and free

from any suggestion of improper influence.

A copy of the Code of Conduct is posted on the Corporation’s

intranet to make it readily accessible by all staff members.

Staff members are required to give written confirmation of
their compliance with the Code of Conduct on an annual
basis. Based on the confirmation received from the staff
members, Management was satisfied that staff members

have complied with the Code of Conduct during 2010.

Communication

The Corporation attaches great importance to
communications with the public at large. The Annual Report
of the Corporation contains comprehensive information on
its business strategies and developments. The Corporation’s
website (www.hkmc.com.hk) offers timely access to
the Corporation’s press releases and its other business
information. The Corporation also maintains a hotline

telephone system to service enquiries from the public.

Conclusion

The Board was satisfied with the corporate governance
practices of the Corporation during 2010. In 2011, the
Corporation will continue to review its corporate governance
framework and improve those practices in light of ongoing
experience, regulatory changes, international trends and
developments in order to enhance the Corporation’s
efficiency and effective management in pursuit of its

business objectives.
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Calendar of Events

Financial Results for 2009
and Business Performance
NOV

09

Publication of the Annual
Report 2009

NOV

Launch of Premium Loan
Guarantee Scheme

THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED

Half-Year Financial Results
for 2010

Introduction of the Risk-
based Scoring Model under
the Mortgage Insurance
Programme

Moody's raised the
long-term local and foreign
currency ratings of the
HKMC to “Aa1” from “Aa2”

Announcement of the
launch of SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme on

1 January 2011
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DEC
» Signing Ceremony for the SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme
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C The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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> Presentation of awards
to winners of the MIP
Quiz Game

DEC

» Announcement of the launch of Reverse Mortgage Pilot
Scheme in 2011

» Standard & Poor’s upgraded the long-term local and
foreign currency ratings of the HKMC to “AAA” from “AA+"
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Business Overview

Performance Highlights

The major achievements of the Corporation for the year
include:

e Purchase of a total of HK$4.7 billion loan assets, which
were all residential mortgage loans in Hong Kong.

e Drawdown of mortgage insurance coverage for newly
originated mortgage loans reaching a record of HK$41
billion in total, achieving a usage rate (in terms of
drawdown loan amount against total market mortgage
drawdown) of 13%.

o Completion of the feasibility study, stakeholder consultation
and preparatory work for the launch of the SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme on 1 January 2011.

e Issuance of HK$8.3 billion of debt securities in a cost-
effective manner, maintaining the Corporation’s position
as the most active corporate issuer in the Hong Kong
dollar debt market for ten consecutive years.

o Safeguarding excellent asset quality, with delinquency
ratios (above 90-day ratios) of 0.003% for the mortgage
insurance portfolio, 0.05% for the Hong Kong residential
mortgage portfolio (the industry average of 0.01%) and
0.03% across all asset classes as at 31 December 2010.

e Upgrade of the HKMC's long-term foreign and local
currency ratings to AAA and Aa1 by Standard & Poor’s
("S&P") and Moody's Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s")
respectively.

The Corporation registered solid financial results for 2010:

e Profit after tax of HK$1,234 million, which was
HK$228 million, or 22.7%, up from 2009.

e Net interest spread improved to 1.8% amid favourable
interest rate environment, compared to 1.7% in 2009.

¢ Return on assets of 2.2%, an increase of 0.6 percentage
point over that of 2009.

e Return on shareholder’s equity of 17.5%, an increase of
1.3 percentage point over that of 2009.

e Capital-to-assets ratio remained strong at 10.8%, well
above the minimum requirement of 5%.

e Cost-to-income ratio of 11.0%, significantly lower than the
banking industry average of 49.8%.

Operational Highlights
Overall Business Strategy

The Corporation is fully committed to its three core missions:
maintaining banking stability, promoting home ownership
and developing the Hong Kong's debt market. In 2010, the
Corporation further boosted its strategic roles and pursued
its business diversification strategy through the launch of
the Premium Loan Guarantee Scheme, the SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme, and the proposed Reverse Mortgage
Pilot Scheme.

Mortgage Insurance

In light of the overheated property market climate, the
Corporation took steps in August and November 2010 to
tighten certain eligibility criteria for the Mortgage Insurance
Programme (“MIP") to lower the risk of borrower over-
extending themselves.

The Corporation introduced the Risk-based Scoring Model
("RBSM") in November 2010 as an enhancement to the
MIP so that a greater number of homebuyers can be made
eligible for premium discounts

The MIP loan drawdown reached a record high of
HK$41 billion in 2010. This reflected an increasing demand
for the MIP in attaining home ownership.

The Corporation launched a series of promotional activities
on the MIP in order to raise public awareness of the
programme and the products. Meanwhile, the Corporation
continued to provide training seminars for the frontline
staff of the MIP participating banks and estate agents. This
was an integral part of the strong partnership between
the Corporation, banks and intermediaries in promoting
mortgage insurance to the public.

The Corporation maintained a high degree of processing
efficiency for MIP applications through automation and the
use of internet platforms.
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SME Financing Guarantee Scheme

Upon the phasing out of the Special Loan Guarantee
Scheme offered by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR") through the
Trade and Industry Department for small- and medium-
sized enterprises (“SMEs”) as of 1 January 2011, there was
extensive support from the general public and stakeholders
to develop a sustainable market-oriented platform that
provided financing guarantee for SME loans. The SMEs
and banks believed that the HKMC's financial strength and
track record in operating financing guarantee and insurance
businesses would make the HKMC a good candidate to
offer a sustainable, market-based SME financing guarantee
scheme. This would help banks manage their lending risks
more effectively and in turn provide SMEs with more stable
financing.

The Corporation then carried out an in-depth study and
extensive consultation in the market to explore the feasibility
of providing a sustainable market-oriented financing
guarantee scheme for SMES.

With the approval obtained from the Board of Directors
in November 2010, the Corporation was authorised to
launch and operate the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme
(“SFGS") based on prudent commercial principles from
1 January 2011.

Fund-raising

e |ssuance of a total of HK$8.3 billion of corporate debts
with tenor up to 15 years in a prudent and cost-effective
manner to support asset purchase activities and
redemption of maturing debts.

e For the tenth year in a row, the Corporation was the
most active corporate issuer in the Hong Kong dollar debt
market, with issuance of HK$7.8 billion of debt securities
in the local institutional market.

Market Overview
General Economic Conditions

The Hong Kong economy continued to rebound strongly
during 2010, driven by robust domestic consumption
and sustained growth in exports. The United States’ new
round of quantitative easing measures prolonged the low
interest rate environment and boosted consumer spending,
which was further underpinned by the wealth effect of
surging local property and stock markets. Favourable
Central Government policies related to Hong Kong, such
as the development of Hong Kong as an offshore Renminbi
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Centre and the expanded Individual Visit Scheme allowing
non-Shenzhen residents to visit Hong Kong, lent additional
support to the overall economic performance of Hong Kong.
Further resurgence in the economies of the United States
and Europe provided added impetus to the vibrant pace of
economic growth. As a result, Hong Kong's Gross Domestic
Product (“GDP") expanded by 6.8% in real terms in 2010, in
stark contrast to the 2.7% contraction in 2009. In tandem
with the upbeat global business sentiment, the local labour
market also improved on a broad front. The unemployment
rate fell to a nearly two-year low of 4% in December from
4.9% in January, as the economy recovered robustly over
the course of 2010.

Interest-Rate Environment

In addition to the quantitative easing measures in the United
States, there was a remarkable inflow of funds to emerging
markets in 2010. This led to excessive liquidity in the Hong
Kong banking sector and drove down interest rates to very
low levels. The one-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") stayed below 0.2% throughout most of the year.
Nonetheless, the Best Lending Rates (“BLRs”) in the market
remained stable in the range of 5% to 5.25% throughout
the year. With the strong rebound of the economy and
intensified competition in the mortgage market, banks
offered increasingly favourable terms for mortgage loans to
gain market share. HIBOR-based mortgage rates were as low
asHIBOR +0.7% by year-end, while the BLR-based mortgage
rates for new mortgage loans stayed at BLR — 3% (FIGURE 1).

FIGURE 1
Best Lending Rates and Mortgage Rates
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Property Market

Fuelled by ample global liquidity and a prolonged low-
interest-rate environment, Hong Kong's property market



FIGURE 2
Private Domestic Price Index (1999=100)
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FIGURE 3
Agreements of Sale and Purchase of Residential
Building Units
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FIGURE 4
Pricing of New Residential Mortgage Loans Approved
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stayed buoyant throughout the year of 2010. Both property
prices and the volume of transactions in the residential
market rose significantly. To ensure healthy and stable
development of the property market, Government launched
a series of anti-speculation measures to forestall the risk of
a property bubble. Property prices' in the residential market
as a whole as of December 2010 surged 21% over those of
the previous year (FIGURE 2). The prices of small flats with a
saleable area less than 40 square meters showed the largest
appreciation in the residential market, gaining 24% year-
on-year in December 2010, while those of large flats with a
saleable area of 160 square meters or above rose 16% over
the same period. Amid the bullish sentiment, the volume
of residential property transactions advanced in tandem
with property prices from the first quarter of 2010. The
total volume and value of residential property transactions?
surged by 18% and 32% respectively year-on-year to about
136,000 cases and HK$561 billion in 2010 (FIGURE 3). Notably,
private residential flat completions surged 87% to 13,410
units in 2010, while take-up declined 28% to 8,030 units
over the period. As a result, the vacancy rate rose slightly
t0 4.7% at end-2010 from 4.3% at end 2009.

Mortgage Market

With abundant liquidity being parked in Hong Kong, banks
were aggressive in lowering mortgage rates to scramble for
higher business volume, as the property market experienced
strong uptake in both transaction value and volume. Since
the absolute interest rate of HIBOR-based mortgage loans
remained much lower than that of BLR-based mortgage
loans, HIBOR-based mortgage loans became more popular
among property buyers. The proportion of newly approved
HIBOR-based mortgage loans® was around 63% in early
2010, but rose appreciably to a record high of 90% by year-
end (FIGURE 4).

As risks in the residential mortgage market were increasing
as aresult of rising property prices, the HKMA issued a set of
prudential measures for residential mortgage loans in August
and November 2010. To ensure banks in Hong Kong adopted
the necessary risk management standards and practices,
the measures comprised more stringent debt-servicing
ratios for mortgage applicants and the stress-testing of
borrowers’ repayment ability, together with stricter Loan-
to-value ("LTV") ratios, with the lowest 50% LTV applying to
both residential properties valued at HK$12 million or above
and all non-owner-occupied residential properties.

1 Source: The Private Domestic Price Index published by the Rating and Valuation Department
2 Source: The Land Registry
3 Source: The HKMA's Monthly Residential Mortgage Survey (“The HKMA Survey”)
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FIGURE 5
New Residential Mortgage Loans Made
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FIGURE 6
Delinquency Ratio of Residential Mortgage Loans
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FIGURE 7
Total Loans and Private Residential Mortgage Loans of All
Authorized Institutions
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In line with the vibrant property market, the mortgage loan
origination volume also picked up visibly in 2010. The value
of mortgage loan origination* surged remarkably by 63%
year-on-year (FIGURE 5). The total outstanding value of all
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residential mortgage loans also registered an increase of
14% to HK$796 Dbillion at the end of 2010, largely due to the
sustained momentum of the buoyant property market.

Given the booming property market, the improved labour
market and the HKMA's prudent oversight over the
banking system, the asset quality of residential mortgage
loans remained excellent in 2010, owing to the prudent
underwriting standards widely adopted by the market
players. The delinquency ratio of mortgage loans® more
than 90 days overdue dropped to a record low level of
0.01% by the end of the year, from 0.03% in early 2010. The
combined ratio, which takes into account both delinquent
and rescheduled loans, declined from 0.12% to 0.05% over
the same period (FIGURE 6).

Banking-Sector Exposure

With the rebound in the property market, the total
outstanding value of mortgage loans for private residential
properties surged to HK$745 billion at the end of 2010
(end-2009: HK$647 billion), accounting for about one-fourth
of total loans in Hong Kong (FIGURE 7). Adding the loans for
building and construction, as well as property development
and investment, the amount of property-related loans
totalled HK$1,589 hillion, representing about half of the total
loan book of banks. Such a high exposure to property-related
lending indicates that a sharp downturn in the property
market could have an adverse impact on the overall stability
of the banking system, although banks in Hong Kong in
general have an adequate capital base. The proportion of
property-related loans has remained steady since 1999.

Asset Acquisition

Throughout the year of 2010, the Corporation acquired a
total of HK$4.7 billion of local mortgage assets. In spite of
ample liquidity in the banking sector, some banks were
interested in offloading assets for better risk and capital
management or for reinforcement of their business
strategies. The Corporation will continue to strengthen its
role of maintaining banking and financial stability in Hong
Kong by acting as a liquidity provider, particularly during
times of crisis.

Mortgage Insurance

Over the years, the MIP has repeatedly demonstrated
its effectiveness in assisting potential homebuyers in
overcoming the hurdle of a substantial down payment
requirement for the purchase of a property. From the

4 Source: The HKMA Survey
5 Source: The HKMA Survey



perspective of the banking industry as a whole, the MIP
allows banks to engage in higher LTV lending without
incurring additional credit risk and affecting the overall
stability of the entire banking system. All in all, the
programme creates a win-win situation for both the
homebuyers and the banks.

Since its inception in March 1999, the MIP has gained
increasing public acceptance and has played a significant
role in promoting home ownership in Hong Kong. For 2010
as a whole, the volume of loans drawn down amounted to
a record high of HK$41 billion and the usage rate (in terms
of drawdown loan amount against total market mortgage
drawdown) stood at 13% (FIGURE 8). It is notable that 96%
of MIP applications received were for secondary market
properties, demonstrating that mortgage insurance has
been crucial in assisting homebuyers in the secondary
market.

FIGURE 8
Mortgage Loan Amount Drawn Down and
Usage Rate* of MIP
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Since 1999, the MIP has helped over 85,000 families establish
home ownership, with loan drawdown totalling over
HK$183 billion.

Refinements of MIP

In light of the then overheated property market climate, the
Corporation took steps in August and November 2010 to
tighten certain eligibility criteria for the MIP to lower the risk
of borrower over-extending themselves. The Corporation
suspended the MIP coverage of 95% LTV mortgages and
reduced the maximum loan amounts of 90% of the LTV
mortgages from HK$12 million to HK$6.12 million (Note: The
property value was capped at HK$6.8 million).

The Corporation introduced the Risk-based Scoring Model
("RBSM") in November 2010 as an enhancement to its MIP.
The RBSM replaced the Risk-based Pricing Scheme (“RBPS”)
and Loyalty Discount Scheme (“LDS"), which were both
launched in 2006. The RBSM is a more robust and refined
approach to implement risk-based pricing, which determines
the applicable premium levels for MIP applications on the
basis of homebuyers’ credit quality and repayment capability.
It is expected that more homebuyers will be eligible for MIP
premium discounts, despite that the maximum discount
rate under RBSM is 50%, which is same as the maximum
aggregate discount rate available under the RBPS and LDS.

Training and Marketing

In order to raise public awareness of the MIP and its
products, the Corporation launched a series of promotional
activities on the MIP including advertising campaign, quiz
game and publication of information leaflet, etc. Through
these initiatives, members of the public were able to gain
a better understanding of how the MIP could help people
achieve home ownership.

Furthermore, the Corporation has always kept MIP
participating banks well informed of any new developments,
and consulted them for any new initiatives. It regularly
organises MIP training seminars for banks and other market
players such as estate agents and referral companies, so
that their frontline staff can gain better understanding of the
MIP and explain details of the programme to their customers
when needed. A total of 12 training seminars were held in
the year 2010.

Successful Launch of SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme

SMEs are an important pillar of the economy and
employment market in Hong Kong. About half of the
total workforce in Hong Kong is employed by SMEs. To
mitigate the impact of the 2008 global financial crisis, the
Government swiftly rolled out the HK$100 billion Special
Loan Guarantee Scheme in December 2008 to help SMES
resolve difficulties in obtaining bank financing and potential
surge in unemployment problems that would arise from
SMEs closing down. With the recovery of the local economy
as well as the improved financing and cash flow for SMES,
the Special Loan Guarantee Scheme ceased to receive new
applications from 1 January 2011.

Back in May 2010, many SMEs and think tanks proposed for
a sustainable, market-oriented platform to be developed in
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Hong Kong so that SME loans would be guaranteed upon
the phasing out of the Special Loan Guarantee Scheme.
This proposal gained extensive support from society.
The SMEs and banks believed that the HKMC's financial
strength and track record in operating financing guarantees
and insurance businesses would make the HKMC a prime
candidate for operating this sustainable, market-based SME
financing guarantee scheme.

The HKMC therefore carried out an in-depth study and
extensive consultations with stakeholders (including SME
associations, banks and etc.) on the proposition. Eventually
the Board of Directors gave approval on 15 November 2010
to launch the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (“SFGS")
based on prudent commercial principles from 1 January
2011. The Scheme effectively lowers banks’ credit risks
when lending to the SMES. Hence it helps maintain the
stability of the banking sector and is in line with the core
objectives of the HKMC.

During the design stage of the Scheme, the Corporation
made reference to various support schemes offered by
the Government hoping that they could complement each
others. Since the Scheme offers guarantee products with
different guarantee protection coverages (50%, 60% and
70%), it provides more flexible options for helping SMES in
Hong Kong acquire more stable financing from banks to
meet their funding needs for working capitals or acquisition
of equipment and assets in support of business operation.

Premium Loan Guarantee Scheme

In September 2010, the Corporation launched the Premium
Loan Guarantee Scheme (“PLGS") to complement the
Government's initiative in revitalising the Home Ownership
Scheme ("HOS") secondary market. The PLGS offers an
additional means of financing to the HOS owners who
needs flexibility in paying the premium to the Hong Kong
Housing Authority. This scheme allows the HOS owners to
repay the premium loan by instalments to banks under the
Corporation’s guarantee.

Reverse Mortgage Pilot Scheme

Reverse Mortgage is a desirable measure that should be
introduced in Hong Kong to address the challenges that
have arisen from the increasingly aging population, in
particular those asset-rich-income-poor homeowners. The
Corporation commissioned a city-wide survey in the fourth
quarter of 2010 to gauge public opinions towards reverse
mortgage among the elderly homeowner segment of the
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population. Given the positive findings of the survey, the
Board of the Corporation approved in December 2010 a
pilot scheme on reverse mortgage. The pilot scheme, to
be launched in 2011, enables the elderly people to utilize
their self-occupied and residential properties as collateral
to borrow reverse mortgage loans in return for a stream of
monthly payouts while staying at their original residences
for the rest of life.

Joint Venture Outside Hong Kong

IN 2010, the Central Government increased the down payment,
interest rate and reserve requirement ratio, with a view to
cooling down the overheated property market. Given these
tightening policies to curb property prices, the Corporation
is facing a harsh business environment. In Shenzhen, the
short-term bridging guarantee business of the Bauhinia HKMC
Corporation Limited ("BHKMC") has been progressing at a
stable rate as a result of the Central Government’s measures
to rein in the property prices in 2010.

The Cagamas HKMC Berhad, incorporated in Malaysia
in 2008, is a joint venture between the Corporation and
Cagamas Berhad. The joint venture provided mortgage
guarantee on conventional and Islamic mortgage portfolios.
One transaction was concluded under the Mortgage
Guarantee Programme in the second half of 2010 with a
national oil company of Malaysia.

Funding

2010 continued to be a turbulent year for the local and
global capital markets under the menace of the lingering
European sovereign debt crisis and fragile recovery of the
US economy. With the extension of liquidity and stimulus
measures implemented by governments worldwide and in
particular, the implementation of a new round of quantitative
easing by the US that has led to abundant liquidity in the
financial markets, debt market activities picked up and credit
spreads continued to tighten in the second half of 2010. In
spite of the volatile market conditions, the Corporation has
managed to secure prudent pre-funding to cater for loan
purchases and refinancing. Given the Corporation’s strong
background as a wholly government-owned entity and its
solid credit ratings, as well as investors’ flight-to-quality
inclination, the Corporation continued to be the most active
Hong Kong dollar corporate issuer for the tenth year. In
2010, a total amount of HK$8.3 billion of debts were raised.
Atthe end of 2010, the Corporation’s total outstanding debt
amounted to HK$39.1 billion.



The Corporation is committed to developing the local debt
market through regular debt issuances and introduction of
new debt products. As one of the most active bond issuers
in Hong Kong, the Corporation will continue to issue debts
in both local institutional and retail markets, and diversify its
funding sources and investor base to overseas institutional
markets. This will not only help broaden the Corporation’s
funding base, but also provide institutional and retail
investors with high quality debt instruments to satisfy their
need for portfolio diversification and yield enhancement.

The Corporation has three debt issuance programmes
which allow the issuance of debt securities in an efficient
and effective manner. With its strong credit ratings, the
Corporation’s debt issues are well received by the investing
community such as pension funds, insurance companies,
investment funds, charities, government-related funds as
well as retail investors. The Corporation strives to maintain
a pro-active approach by updating investors regularly in the
local and regional markets, with Mainland China, Japan and
Singapore, to name a few.

Debt Issuance Programme

The Debt Issuance Programme (“DIP") is the Corporation’s
main platform for raising Hong Kong dollar’s funding. The
DIP was established in July 1998 to target institutional
investors in the Hong Kong dollar debt market. It was set up
with an initial programme size of HK$20 billion, which was
subsequently increased to HK$40 billion in 2003. The DIP
has since provided a flexible and efficient platform for the
Corporation to issue debts and transferable loan certificates
with a tenor of up to 15 years. Apart from plain vanilla debts,
the Corporation also issues high quality structured products
to meet investor demand. A total of 6 Primary Dealers and
16 Selling Group Members appointed under the DIP provide
wide distribution channels for both public and private
debt issues.

During 2010, the Corporation issued 26 DIP debt securities
for a total amount of HK$7.1 billion. The Corporation
continued to issue long-term debts, such as 15-year callable
zero coupon bonds, to meet the growing demand for long-
term high-grade debt products from insurance and pension
funds in Hong Kong. At the end of 2010, the total outstanding
amount of DIP debt securities reached HK$26.7 billion.

Retail Bond Issuance Programme

The Corporation is dedicated to promoting the local
retail bond market with the objective of extending the
Corporation’s investor base beyond its already strong
institutional investor community. In November 2001,

the Corporation successfully pioneered a new offering
mechanism for the retail bond market in Hong Kong.

To further spur the development of the retail bond market,
the Corporation established the HK$20 Billion Retail Bond
Issuance Programme and made its debut issuance in June
2004. Under this programme, banks acting as placing banks
use their retail branch networks, telephone and electronic
banking facilities to place debt securities issued by the
Corporation to retail investors. To ensure the liquidity of
the aforementioned retail bonds, the placing banks are
committed to making firm bid prices for the bonds in the
secondary market. Over the years, the Corporation’s retail
bonds have gained widespread recognition as a safe and
simple investment choice with reasonably attractive returns,
giving retail investors an opportunity to invest in high-grade
debt securities issued by a wholly government-owned
corporation. When the market environment is conducive,
the Corporation aims to issue retail bonds regularly to
provide an additional investment tool for Hong Kong's retail
investors.

Since 2001, the Corporation has issued a total amount
of HK$13.7 billion retail bonds. At the end of 2010,
the total outstanding amount of retail bonds stood at
HK$0.9 billion.

Medium Term Note Programme

The Corporation established the multi-currency US$3 Billion
Medium Term Note (“MTN") Programme in June 2007 to raise
funds in the international market and broaden its investor
base and funding sources. The multi-currency feature of the
programme enables the Corporation to issue notes in major
currencies, including the Hong Kong dollar, US dollar, euro
and yen to meet the demands of both local and overseas
investors. All foreign currency denominated MTN debts are
fully hedged into either the US dollar or Hong Kong dollar.
The programme incorporates flexible product features
and offering mechanisms for both public issuances and
private placements so as to increase its appeal to investors
with different investment horizons and requirements. An
extensive dealer group comprising 10 major international
and regional financial institutions has been appointed to
support future MTN issuance and provide secondary market
liquidity.

During 2010, the Corporation launched three MTN private
debt issues, including debts denominated in the US dollar
and the Singapore dollar, totalling an equivalent of HK$1.2
billion. At the end of 2010, the total outstanding amount of
MTN debts was HK$11.6 hillion.
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Revolving Credit Facility provided by the
Exchange Fund

During the Asian Financial Crisis, the Exchange Fund
extended a HK$10 billion Revolving Credit Facility through the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority to the Corporation in January
1998. The Facility enables the Corporation to maintain
smooth operation under exceptional circumstances, so
that it can better fulfill its mandate of promoting banking
and financial stability in Hong Kong. While the Corporation
obtains long-term funding from local and international
debt markets to fund its operation, the Facility also stands
as a liquidity fallback for the Corporation. In light of the
global financial crisis in 2008, the size of the Facility was
subsequently increased to HK$30 billion in December
2008, which demonstrated the HKSAR Government’s
recognition of the importance of and further support to the
Corporation.

The Corporation made drawings of the Revolving Credit
Facility during times of market stress in 1998 and 2008
to partially fund the acquisition of Hong Kong residential
mortgage assets from local banks. At both times, the
Revolving Credit Facility was fully repaid by the funds raised
from the Corporation’s cost-effective debt issuance when
the market returned to stable conditions. At the end of 2010,
there were no more drawdowns made under the Revolving
Credit Facility.

Credit Ratings

The Corporation’s ability to attract investment in its debt
securities is underpinned by its strong credit ratings,
equivalent to those of the HKSAR Government according
to Moody’s and S&P.

Credit Ratings of the HKMC

Standard & Poor's Moody's
Short-term Long-term Short-term Long-term
Local Currency
(Outlook) A1+ AAA(Stable) P-1  Aal(Positive)
Foreign Currency
(Outlook) A1+ AAA (Stable) P-1  Aal (Positive)

On 11 November 2010, Moody's raised the HKMC's long-
term local and foreign currency rating from “Aa2” to “Aa1”
with a positive outlook, along with its rating upgrade of the
Hong Kong SAR Government.

On 16 December 2010, S&P upgraded the long-term local
and foreign currency ratings of the Corporation from “AA+"
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to "AAA" with a stable outlook, also in line with its rating
upgrade of the Hong Kong SAR Government.

Both credit rating agencies have made very positive
comments on the Corporation’s credit standing. The
following comments are extracts from the credit rating
reports of Moody’s and S&P after their annual surveillance
in May 2010:

S&P

“The ratings on HKMC are equalized with the sovereign
credit ratings on the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. This reflects S&P's expectation of an almost
certain likelihood of timely and sufficient extraordinary
support from the Hong Kong government to the HKMC in
the event of financial distress. The critical importance of
the Corporation’s policy roles and integral link with the
government support this view.”

“On a standalone basis, the ratings reflect the HKMC's
prudent credit risk management, strong liquidity, and
satisfactory capital base.”

“The HKMC has a traditional and generally prudent approach
to risk management. Recognising credit risk as its focus of
risk appetite, the Corporation has adopted stringent policies,
a simple and effective business model and management
structure, and various hedging tools to largely mitigate
other types of risks.”

“The HKMC's liquidity position is adequately managed... The
Corporation also maintains a reasonably high level of liquid
assets in the form of marketable debt securities, cash and
bank deposits, which provides a liquidity fallback.”

Moody’s

“There is strong intrinsic economic relationship between
the HKMC and the HKSAR Government, given its status as
a mortgage product provider and the importance of land
and property in the Hong Kong economy.”

“The expected high level of (government) support reflects
the HKMC's status as a wholly-owned Government entity
to carry out critical functions in enhancing financial and
banking stability in Hong Kong by providing liquidity for
the mortgage and property markets via banks and housing
agencies, promoting home ownership, and spearheading
the development of the debt markets in Hong Kong.”

“The HKMC's asset-liability management is well developed
within the constraints of the local markets in terms of the
availability of tools and long-term funding. Its ability to assess



and manage risk has resulted in risk levels well within its
own guidelines and, in some cases, superior to some of its
larger international peers.”

“Over the years, the HKMC has demonstrated a strong
ability to secure funding, even when liquidity in the system
had shrunk during unexpected circumstances, thanks to
special exemptions or privileges for its securities and its
strong fundamentals.”

Mortgage-Backed Securitisation

The Corporation has established two mortgage-backed
securitisation programmes for issuing the mortgage-backed
securities (“MBS”) in an efficient and effective manner.
These two programmes - the Guaranteed Mortgage-Backed
Pass-Through Securitisation Programme and the Bauhinia
Mortgage-Backed Securitisation Programme - were the first
securitisation programmes ever set up in the Hong Kong
debt market.

MBS is a powerful financial instrument that can channel
long-term funding from the debt market to supplement the
need for long-term financing generated by mortgage loans.
Banks and financial institutions can make use of MBS to
manage risks inherent in mortgage loans, such as credit
risks, liquidity risks, interest rate risks and asset liability
maturity mismatch risks. A deep and liquid MBS market can
help enhance the development of an efficient secondary
mortgage market and further promote Hong Kong as an
international financial centre.

The Corporation made no MBS issuances in 2010 due to a fall
in investor demand and the unfavourable market conditions
that followed the global financial crisis.

Guaranteed Mortgage-Backed Pass-Through
Securitisation Programme

This first MBS securitisation programme of the Corporation,
established in October 1999, targets banks that not only
want to off load mortgage loans but also wish to enjoy the
benefits of holding MBS guaranteed by the Corporation.

The back-to-back structure under this programme allows
the Corporation to acquire mortgage loans from a bank
and then sell the mortgage loans directly to a bankruptcy
remote special purpose entity (“SPE"). The SPE in turn
issues MBS to the bank as an investor of the security.
Through this back-to-back exercise, the bank can convert
illiquid mortgage loans into liquid MBS. Furthermore, as far
as the capital adequacy requirement is concerned, MBS

guaranteed by the Corporation are assigned a 20% risk asset
weighting under the Banking (Capital) Rules as opposed to
35% - 100% for mortgage loans, thereby allowing banks to
utilise their capital more efficiently. Since the inception of
the programme, four series of MBS with a total amount of
HK$2.8 hillion have been issued.

Bauhinia Mortgage-Backed Securitisation
Programme

The Bauhinia Mortgage-Backed Securitisation Programme
established in December 2001 is a US$3 billion multi-
currency mortgage-backed securitisation programme. The
programme provides a convenient, flexible and cost-efficient
platform for the Corporation to issue MBS with various
product structures, credit enhancements and distribution
methods. MBS issued under the Bauhinia Mortgage-Backed
Securitisation Programme have the trading and settlement
characteristics of a eurobond. Trading of the MBS in the
secondary market is therefore more convenient and
efficient.

Since the inception of the Bauhinia Mortgage-Backed
Securitisation Programme, the Corporation has successfully
securitised HK$10.4 billion of mortgage loans through five
public issues and one private placement issue. The debut
MBS issuance of HK$2 billion under the programme, took
place in March 2002. The second issue of HK$3 billion in
November 2003 was the largest ever Hong Kong dollar
denominated residential MBS. The third public issue of
HK$2 billion, split into two portions for institutional and
retail investors respectively, was delivered in November
2004. This was the first time in Asia that retail investors
were given the opportunity to invest in MBS. The fourth
MBS issue of HK$1 billion was done in November 2005.
The fifth public issue of HK$2 billion, split into three senior
tranches rated “Aaa/AAA" and one subordinated tranche
rated "Aaa/AA”, was delivered in November 2006. This was
the first partially guaranteed MBS that was executed under
the programme.

Risk Management

The Corporation operates under prudent commercial
principles, and the principle of “prudence before profitability”
guides the design of the overall risk management framework
and discipline it uses in day-to-day business execution. Over
the years, the Corporation has also continuously made
refinements to its well-established, robust and time-tested
risk management framework to reflect changes in markets
and business strategies.
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Restructuring of Risk Division

In 2009, a new division called Risk Oversight and Management
was established with the aim to further enhance corporate
risk governance through the strengthening of risk oversight
and risk management. The division was subsequently
repositioned in 2010 to attain a better balance between
oversight and execution; hence it was renamed Risk Division.
The new division now aims to enhance the risk management
and business execution capabilities of the Corporation, and
is comprised of three functions: mortgage insurance, pricing
& quantitative risk and risk management.

Corporate Risk Management Committee

The Board is the highest decision making authority of
the Corporation and holds the ultimate responsibility
for risk management. The Board, with the assistance
of the Corporate Risk Management Committee (“CRC"),
has the primary responsibility for the formulation of
risk management strategies and for ensuring that the
Corporation has an effective risk management system to
implement these strategies.

The CRC is responsible for overseeing the Corporation’s
various types of risks, reviewing and approving high-level
risk-related policies, overseeing their implementation, and
monitoring improvement efforts in governance, policies
and tools. It also assigns priorities and responsibilities to
individual departments to enhance the risk management
framework. The Committee is chaired by an Executive
Director, with members including another Executive
Director, Chief Executive Officer, Senior Vice President
(Operations), Senior Vice President (Finance), General
Counsel and Senior Vice President (Risk).

The five major areas of risk the Corporation faces comprise
credit risk, market risk, operational risk, legal risk and
leveraging risk.

(a) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the Corporation’s primary risk exposure. It
represents the default risk presented by loan borrowers
and counterparties.

(i] Default risk

To address default risk effectively, the Corporation
adheres to a four-pronged approach that safeguards
and maintains the quality of its assets and MIP
portfolios:

e Careful selection of Approved Sellers/Servicers/
Reinsurers
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(ii]

e Prudent asset purchase and insurance application
eligibility criteria

e Effective due diligence process

e Enhanced protection for higher-risk mortgages and
transactions

Losses may arise if there are shortfalls in the recovery
amount received for defaulted loans that are under the
Mortgage Purchase Programme (“MPP”). To mitigate
this default risk, the Corporation adopts a set of prudent
loan purchase criteria and conducts effective due
diligence review as part and parcel of the loan purchase
process in order to maintain the credit quality of loans.
In addition, depending on the projected risk exposure
of each underlying loan portfolio, credit enhancement
arrangements such as reserve funds for absorbing
credit losses will be agreed upon with the seller on a
deal-by-deal basis so as to reduce the potential credit
losses that could arise from the borrower’s default.

Similarly, losses may also arise from default on
loans under the MIP’s insurance coverage. Each MIP
application is underwritten by the Corporation in
accordance with a set of eligibility criteria, and each
claim from a participating bank is audited by the
Corporation to ensure the fulfillment of all MIP coverage
conditions and to detect any fraud elements. As a result,
the default risk for loans with MIP coverage has been
greatly reduced. To reduce possible concentration
of the aforementioned default risk, the Corporation
transfers a portion of the risk-in-force to Approved
Reinsurers via reinsurance risk-sharing and excess-of-
loss arrangements.

Seller/Servicer counterparty risk

Counterparty risks may arise from the failure of a seller/
servicer of an acquired portfolio to remit scheduled
payments to the Corporation in a timely and accurate
manner. The Corporation has adopted a counterparty
risk limit framework that limits the aggregate amount
of assets it can purchase from Approved Sellers.
There are also individual limits set on the maximum
amount of assets that the Corporation can purchase
from a counterparty. The risk limit framework acts as a
beneficial device for managing counterparty exposure
on the risk profile basis of each Seller/Servicer and for
avoiding the concentration of acquisition from a few
sellers only.



liii] Reinsurer counterparty risk

liv)

[v]

Reinsurer counterparty risk refers to the failure of
an Approved Reinsurer to make claim payments to
the Corporation. In order to mitigate counterparty
risk effectively, the Corporation has established a
framework for the assessment of mortgage reinsurers’
financial strengths, credit ratings and their relevant
experiences in mortgage insurance.

Treasury counterparty risk

Treasury counterparty risk arises when there is a delay or
failure from treasury counterparties to make payments
with respect to treasury instruments transacted with
the Corporation. Hence, the Corporation has adopted
a prudent treasury counterparty limit framework, under
which each potential treasury counterparty is assessed
on the basis of its credit ratings, financial strengths
and capability in treasury products, etc. Based on
the evaluation results, a treasury counterparty limit is
assigned to each specific type of treasury instrument
exposure.

Control mechanisms

Portfolio performance and analysis reports are compiled
on aregular basis to provide the management with up-
to-date information on critical credit risk indicators,
such as loan delinquency ratios, equity positions and
cumulative credit losses, so as to enable timely reviews
and swift responses to changes in the operating
environment. Stress tests on retained portfolios and
mortgage insurance portfolios are conducted to
analyse the Corporation’s financial capability to weather
extreme scenarios when they arise.

The counterparty limits of all Sellers and Servicers
are subject to regular review, where their financial
strengths, management capabilities, loan servicing
quality and transaction experience are taken into
consideration for renewal and/or adjustment in limit.
The limits for treasury counterparties are reviewed
and adjusted on a regular basis, which are based on
their financial strengths, and the capital base of the
Corporation at the time. To date, the Corporation has
not experienced any losses on a treasury transaction
due to credit defaults by a counterparty.

The Corporation also performs an annual review of
the approved reinsurers’ financial strengths, business
proposals, reinsurance arrangements and management
capabilities. The review results are used to determine

the on-going businesses’ allocations and risk-sharing
portions.

[vi] Governance

At the heart of the Corporation’s credit risk management
framework are two committees: the Credit Committee
and the Transaction Approval Committee.

Credit Committee

The Credit Committee is responsible for setting the
Corporation’s overall credit policies and eligibility
criteria, particularly for asset acquisition and mortgage
insurance. The Committee operates under the
framework that has been approved by the Board. It
is the approval authority for accepting applications
to become Approved Sellers/Servicers under the
MPP, Approved Reinsurers under the MIP and eligible
treasury counterparties. It is also responsible for setting
risk exposure limits for the counterparties. Should the
business and operating environment change drastically,
credit policies will be immediately subject to review and
timely measures based on the findings will be presented
to the Committee for approval.

Transaction Approval Committee

The Transaction Approval Committee is the forum
for the in-depth analysis of pricing economics and
associated credit risks for business transactions, whilst
taking into consideration the latest market conditions
and business strategies approved by the Board. Major
transactions approved by the Committee are subject
to endorsement by an Executive Director.

The Credit Committee and the Transaction Approval
Committee are both chaired by the Chief Executive
Officer with members including Senior Vice President
(Operations), Senior Vice President (Finance), General
Counsel, Senior Vice President (Risk) and senior staff
from the relevant functional departments.

(b) Market Risk

Market risks arise when the Corporation’s income or the
value of its portfolios decrease due to movements in market
prices. Market risk consists of interest rate risk, asset-liability
maturity mismatch risk, liquidity risk and currency risk.

(i] Interest rate risk
Net interest income is the predominant source of
earnings for the Corporation. It represents the excess of
interest income (from the Corporation’s loan portfolio,
cash and debt investments) over interest expenses
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(from debt issuance and other borrowings). Interest rate
risks arise when changes in market interest rates affect
the interest income associated with the assets and/or
interest expenses associated with the liabilities.

The primary objective of interest rate risk management
is therefore to limit the potential adverse effects that
could arise from interest rate movements on interest
income/expense, while maintaining a stable earnings
growth. The interest rate risk faced by the Corporation
is two-fold, namely interest rate mismatch risk and basis
risk. Interest rate mismatch risk is the most substantial
risk affecting the Corporation’s net interest income. It
arises mainly as a result of the differences in the timing
of interest rate re-pricing for the Corporation’s interest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Interest
rate mismatch risk is most evident in the loan portfolios
where the majority of the loans earn a floating interest
rate (benchmarked against the Prime rate, the HIBOR
or Composite Interest Rate), whilst the majority of the
Corporation’s liabilities are fixed-rate debt securities.
The Corporation therefore makes prudent use of a
range of financial instruments, such as interest rate
swaps, interest rate swaptions, basis swaps, forward
rate agreements and issuances of MBS, to manage
interest rate mismatch risk. The proceeds of the
fixed-rate debt securities are generally swapped into
HIBOR-based funds via interest rate swaps in order to
better match the floating-rate incomes from mortgage
assets.

The Corporation also uses duration gap as an indicator
to monitor, measure and manage interest rate mismatch
risks. A duration gap measures the difference in interest
rate re-pricing intervals between assets and liabilities.
The wider the duration gap, the higher the interest rate
mismatch risk, and vice versa. A positive duration gap
means that the duration of assets is longer than that
of the liabilities, and therefore represents a greater
risk exposure to rising interest rates. On the other
hand, a negative duration gap indicates a greater risk
exposure to declining interest rates. Depending on the
prevailing interest rate outlook and market conditions,
the Corporation proactively re-balances the duration
gap of its asset-liability portfolio under the guidance
and supervision of the Asset and Liability Committee
("ALCO"). A cap of three months for the duration gap
has been set to limit interest rate mismatch risks. In
2010, the average duration gap was kept at below one
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month, indicating that the Corporation handles interest
rate mismatch risk in a very effective manner.

Basis risk represents the difference in the Corporation’s
prime-based interest-earning assets and its HIBOR-
based interest-bearing liabilities. However, there are
only limited financial instruments currently available in
the market to hedge the Prime-HIBOR basis risk fully.
In general, basis risk can only be effectively addressed
when mortgage assets and non-mortgage assets are
based on HIBOR to match the funding base, or when
related risk management instruments become more
prevalent or economical. Over the past few years,
the Corporation has consciously adopted a strategy
that acquires more HIBOR-based assets. At the end
of 2010, about 60% of the Corporation’s mortgage
assets and non-mortgage assets were HIBOR-based
loans. As a result, the Prime-HIBOR basis risk for
the Corporation has been substantially reduced. In
addition, the issuance of Prime-based MBS and the
use of hedging derivatives have also been deployed to
mitigate the basis risks in the Prime-based portion of
the Corporation’s loan portfolio.

lii] Asset-liability maturity mismatch risk

Even though the contractual maturity of a mortgage
loan can go up to 30 years, the actual average life
of a portfolio of mortgage loans is much shorter.
The average life depends on the speed of scheduled
mortgage repayments and unscheduled prepayments.
Higher prepayment rates shorten the average life of a
portfolio of mortgage loans. In Hong Kong, prepayment
occurs for two main reasons: (i) housing turnover
- borrowers repaying their mortgage loans upon the
sale of the underlying property, and (i) refinancing
- borrowers refinancing their mortgage loans to obtain
lower mortgage rates.

Asset-liability maturity mismatch risk can be more
specifically characterised as reinvestment risk and
refinancing risk. Reinvestment risk refers to the risk
of a lower return from the reinvestment of proceeds
that the Corporation receives from prepayments and
repayments of its loan portfolio. Refinancing risk is the
risk of refinancing liabilities at a higher level of interest
rate or credit spread. The Corporation is exposed to
refinancing risk (in both funding amount and cost of
funds) when it uses short-term liabilities to finance
long-term floating-rate loan portfolios.



Reinvestment risk is managed through on-going efforts
of purchasing new loans to replenish the rundown in
the retained portfolios and through the investment of
surplus cash in debt securities or cash deposits to fine-
tune the average life of the overall assets pool.

Refinancing risk is managed through the issuance of
callable bonds and transferable loan certificates. The
call option included in callable bonds and transferable
loan certificates allows the Corporation to adjust the
average life of its liabilities to match more closely
with that of the overall pool of assets. In this regard,
the Corporation also has the flexibility of issuing debt
securities on a broad spectrum of maturities, ranging
from one month to 15 years. This again serves to adjust
the average life of the overall liability portfolio in a
dynamic fashion. In addition, refinancing risk can be
mitigated by adjusting the maturities of assets in the
investment portfolio and off-loading mortgage assets
through securitisation of mortgage loans into MBS.

Asset-liability maturity gap ratio (ratio of the average life
of the total interest earning assets to average life of the
total interest bearing liabilities), is used to monitor and
manage maturity mismatch risk, with a target ratio set
by the ALCO to ensure a proper balance between the
average life of the Corporation’s assets and liabilities.

liii] Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Corporation
not being able to repay its obligations, such as the
redemption of maturing debt, or to fund the committed
purchases of loan portfolios. Liquidity risk is managed by
the monitoring of daily inflow and outflow of funds and
by projecting the longer-term inflows and outflows of
funds across a full maturity spectrum. The Corporation
measures its liquidity risk with a target liquid asset ratio
(ratio of liquid asset to total assets), which was set by the
ALCO to monitor and manage its liquidity position. The
Corporation manages pre-funding prudently through
well-diversified funding sources, so that all foreseeable
funding commitments are met when they fall due, in
order to support the growth of its business and the
maintenance of a well-balanced liability portfolio. Such
diversification allows the Corporation to pursue a pre-
funding strategy at the lowest possible cost, whilst at
the same time offering safeguards against the inability
to raise funds in distorted market conditions. The
current funding sources include:

e Shareholders’ Capital: an authorised capital of
HK$3 billion, of which HK$2 billion is fully paid up.
Accumulated shareholders’ funds amounted to
HK$7.6 billion as of 31 December 2010.

e HK$40 Billion Debt Issuance Programme: there are
6 Primary Dealers and 16 Selling Group Members
which underwrite and distribute debts to institutional
investors under the DIP. The Transferable Loan
Certificate Sub-Programme under the DIP provides
a further diversification of its funding sources and
broadening of investor base.

e HK$20 Billion Retail Bond Issuance Programme: this
debt issuance programme has 19 Placing Banks
which assist in offering retail bonds to investors.

e US$3 Billion Medium Term Note Programme: there
are 10 Dealers who underwrite and distribute local
and foreign currency debts to the international
institutional investors under the programme.

o US$3 Billion Bauhinia Mortgage-Backed Securitisation
Programme: with a total of eight Dealers, this multi-
currency mortgage-backed securitisation programme
permits the Corporation to originate MBS in both the
local and international markets.

e Cash and Debt Investment Portfolio: the portfolio
comprises mainly cash and bank deposits, commercial
papers, high-quality certificates of deposits and notes
that can be readily converted into cash.

e HK$30 Billion Revolving Credit Facility: the Exchange
Fund commits to providing the Corporation with
HK$30 billion in revolving credit.

e Money Market Lines: the Corporation has procured
money market lines from a large number of local and
international banks for short-term financing.

Given its strong background as a wholly government-
owned entity and its solid credit ratings, the Corporation
is efficient in raising funds from the debt market
with both institutional and retail funding bases. This
advantage is supplemented by the Corporation’s
portfolios of highly liquid investments, which are held
to enable swift and smooth responses to unforeseen
liquidity requirements. The HK$30 billion Revolving
Credit Facility from the Exchange Fund further provides
the Corporation with a liquidity fallback even when
exceptional market strains last for a prolonged period
of time.

The Corporation implements its liquidity risk
management framework in response to changes in
market conditions. The Corporation has continuously
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liv)

[v]

[vi]

monitored the impact of recent market events on its
liquidity positions, and has pursued a prudent pre-
funding strategy which has helped to contain the impact
the global financial turmoil had on its liquidity.

Currency risk

Currency risk arises from the impact of foreign
exchange rate fluctuations on the Corporation’s
financial position and foreign currency denominated
cash flows. The Corporation manages its currency risk
in strict accordance with the investment guidelines
approved by the Board and under the supervision of the
ALCO, which sets daily monitoring limits on currency
exposure.

In accordance with this prudent risk management
principle, the net exposure of the foreign currency
denominated debts issued under the MTN Programme
and the overseas residential mortgage loans purchased
is fully hedged by the use of cross-currency swaps.

Control mechanism

Transaction execution is segregated among the front,
middle and back offices to ensure adequate checks
and balances. The Treasury Department, acting as
the front office, is responsible for monitoring financial
market movements and executing transactions in the
cash, derivatives, debt and securitisation markets in
accordance with the strategies laid down by the ALCO.
The Financial Control Department assumes the middle
office role and monitors compliances with treasury
counterparties and market risk limits. The Operations
Department, acting as the back office, is responsible
for deal verification, confirmation, settlement and
payment process.

Governance
Asset & Liability Committee

The ALCO manages the Corporation’s asset-liability
portfolio with prudent risk management principles.
It has the authority to set market risk management
policies and limits to facilitate day-to-day market risk
management. Regular meetings are held to review the
latest financial market developments and the asset-
liability portfolio mix. Furthermore, it also oversees the
implementation of risk management and investment
guidelines approved by the Board.

The ALCO is chaired by the Chief Executive Officer,
with members including Senior Vice President
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(Finance), Senior Vice President (Operations), Senior
Vice President (Risk) and senior staff from the relevant
functional departments.

(c) Operational Risk

Operational risk represents the risk of losses arising from
inadequacies or the failure of internal processes, people,
systems or external interruptions.

(i] Control mechanism

The Corporation adopts a bottom-up approach
in identifying operational risk by carrying out in-
depth analysis on new products, business activities,
processes, system enhancements and due diligence
reviews of new operational flows. Comprehensive
validation rules, management information system
reports and audit trails are put in place to track and
report any errors or deficiencies.

The Corporation actively manages operational risk
with its comprehensive systems of well-established
internal controls, authentication structures and
operational procedures. Operational infrastructures
are well designed to support the launches of new
products in different business areas, including
asset acquisition, mortgage insurance, treasury
operations, bond issuances, securitisations and
overseas businesses. Rigorous review is conducted
before the implementation of operational or system
infrastructures in order to identify possible operational
risk and to ensure adequate segregation of duties.

To prevent potential human errors and to ensure an
efficient and effective discharge of daily operations,
the Corporation pursues advanced technological
solutions alongside robust business logics and controls
to carry out its operational activities and business
processes. Steps have been taken to ensure the
accuracy, availability and security of these systems,
as they are critical to business operations and risk
managements.

The Corporation has also taken careful steps to institute
adequate checks and balances in financial controls to
ensure that its operations are properly directed and
controlled. Effective financial controls also help to
minimise the financial risks and safeguard its assets
against inappropriate use or loss, including prevention
and detection of fraud.



(i)

The Corporation’s Information Security Manual (“ISM”)
documents security standards and practices relating
to information and data security for observance by
all staff. All system security measures must follow
the requirements stated in the ISM. The Corporation
implements various security measures, such as double
firewall protections, intrusion detection systems, virus
alerts, quarantine systems and vulnerability scanning
systems so as to minimise its exposure to external
attacks. Internally, the Corporation also has a virtual
Local Area Network with workstation security policies,
to reduce damages in the event of a malicious intrusion.
The Corporation engages external consultants for
intrusion vulnerability tests in order to enhance system
security when appropriate.

Toensure a high degree of compliance, the Corporation’s
core operating systems and processes are subject to
regular audit and review by internal and external
auditors. Furthermore, all staff are required to sign an
undertaking to comply with the requirements in the
ISM every year. The ISM is updated whenever there is
anew security measure or a new system. Any changes
to the ISM require approval from senior management.

To ensure that business recovery procedures are
practical and to facilitate continuous improvement,
a business recovery drill is conducted by both IT and
user departments every year. Daily back-ups and off-
site storages of back-up tapes were put into place to
protect the Corporation from IT disasters.

Product Sign-off Mechanism

To ensure that all risk factors are considered when
designing and implementing a new product, the
Corporation developed a new product development
management framework under which proper sign-off
of product specification is conducted prior to the new
product launch. The product driver is clearly assigned
upfront at the start of the product development process
to be responsible to institute the sign-off process.
Products can only be launched after all functional
departments have signed-off and confirmed functional
readiness.

Governance

Operational Risk Committee

The Operational Risk Committee (“ORC") is responsible
for ensuring that all business entities and line functions
in the HKMC maintain an effective operational risk
and internal control framework. Furthermore, it is

also responsible for providing directions and resolving
issues related to policies, controls and management
of operational issues referred to by line functions as
well as ensuring prompt and appropriate corrective
actions upon audit findings related to operational risks
and internal controls.

The ORC is chaired by the Chief Executive Officer, with
members including Senior Vice President (Operations),
Senior Vice President (Finance), General Counsel, Senior
Vice President (Risk) and senior staff in the relevant
functional departments.

(d) Legal Risk

Legal risk is the risk arising from uncertainty in the application
or interpretation of laws, regulations and legal documents,
or failure to comply with the statutory, regulatory or legal
obligations.

(i)

(i)

Control mechanism

The Legal Office, headed by General Counsel and
Company Secretary, advises the Corporation on legal
matters with a view to controlling legal risk. When new
products or business activities are considered, the Legal
Office will advise on the relevant laws and regulatory
environment, as well as the legal documentation,
and identify possible legal pitfalls with a view to
protecting the best interests of the Corporation. Where
appropriate, external counsel will be engaged to assist
the Legal Office in providing full legal support to the
Corporation. The Legal Office also works closely with
the other departments of the Corporation to advise on
legal issues and documentation.

The General Counsel and Company Secretary ensures
that company secretarial arrangements, for example,
arrangements relating to the holding of Board meetings
and general meetings, distribution of Board papers,
passing of resolutions and the maintenance of meeting
minutes etc., comply with the applicable laws and
regulations, as well as the constitutional documents of
the Corporation and the Code on Corporate Governance.
The General Counsel and Company Secretary also
provides advice and support to the Directors so as to
ensure that best practices relating to Board procedures,
avoidance of conflicts of interest and other aspects of
corporate governance are observed.

Governance

The ORC is the governance committee for legal risks.
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(e) Leveraging Risk

To ensure that the Corporation does not engage in excessive
leveraging by expanding its business activities to over a
certain proportion of its capital base, the Financial Secretary
of the HKSAR Government has issued Guidelines on the
Capital-to-Assets Ratio (“CAR") of the Corporation. The
minimum CAR stipulated in the Guidelines is 5%.

In accordance with the capital requirement laid down
in the Guidelines, the Corporation’s maximum leverage
should also be maintained at a healthy and low level. As at
31 December 2010, the Corporation has a capital base of
HK$7.6 billion and a CAR at 10.8% which is well above the
minimum requirement of 5%.

Capital adequacy and prudent use of regulatory capital
are monitored daily by Management in accordance with
the Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. The Chief
Executive Officer is required to submit a quarterly report to
the Board by reference to the Guidelines. An early warning
system will alert Management when the ratio drops below
6%. Any breach or likely breach of the Guidelines must be
reported to the Financial Secretary.

Process Management and Information
Technology

Automation is instrumental in ensuring efficiency and
accuracy in daily operations. Since its inception, the
Corporation has devoted substantial resources and efforts
to developing and upgrading its business operations, internal
controls and application systems.

In 2010, the Corporation revamped its treasury system, with
a view to making further enhancements in the timeliness
of developing new treasury and hedging products; better
risk management integration across various products,
counterparts and regions; better integration and more
reliable collaboration among front, middle and back offices;
and more robust and responsive adaptations to meet future
regulatory and reporting requirements. The new treasury
system is now in its final stage of development, and will be
launched by the end of 2011 after a comprehensive trial.

To support the launch of the SME Financing Guarantee
Scheme in 2011, the Corporation also worked on the
development of the Guarantee Information Processing
System, a new application system that would provide
internal control and process automation for application
processing, post-commitment monitoring, guarantee
fee administration, claim processing and management
reporting, etc. This system will be phased in over 2011.
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Automation also enables the introduction of more
sophisticated products to meet market needs. In November
2010, the Corporation introduced a Risk-based Scoring
Model, which replaced the Risk-based Pricing Scheme
and Loyalty Discount Scheme as an enhancement of the
Mortgage Insurance Program (“MIP"). The calculation
and processing have become more comprehensive, and
the turnaround time for the underwriting processes have
improved.

Given the Corporation’s know-how and expertise on
document imaging and paperless operations adopted
for the MIP operations, the Corporation had on trial an IT
infrastructure to streamline the treasury and mortgage
operations in order to better cope with the increasing
transaction volume and sophistication. This automation
on indexing, filing and retrieval of vast amount of paper
documents is essential for timely transaction management
and operational control. It also provides the extra benefit
of unifying the filing and retrieval process for the straight-
through-processing of trade confirmations, securities
settlement, payment authentication and document storage.
It is envisaged that the entire project will be launched in the
first half of 2011. If necessary, it can be extended to document
imaging needs for other new business operational areas.

Business Continuity Plan

As a business continuity plan is crucial to the sustainability
of a corporate during disasters or damage of resources, the
Corporation regularly reviews its corporate-wide business
continuity plan, as well as the business continuity plans of
its respective business and operational units, to ensure
an effective and efficient decision-making and reporting
framework in response to potential disastrous events.

In 2010, the Corporation revised the methodology of
conducting drills on its business continuity plan. Instead of
a well-planned and well-organised disaster recovery drill,
the annual drill was triggered without prior notification to
participating staff. This “surprise” drill was successful, as
normal operations resumed within two hours.

Corporate Social Responsibility

In recognition of the Corporation’s contribution to the
community and its commitment to corporate social
responsibility in the past year, the Hong Kong Council of
Social Service awarded the Corporation the honour “Caring
Organisation 2010/11" under its Caring Company Scheme
for the third year.
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As a socially responsible organisation, the Corporation cares
for both its staff and the community. The Corporation has
underlined its commitment to corporate social responsibility
by caring for its employees’ well-being, participating
in charity activities and implementing environmental
protection measures.

Care for Employees
Staffing and Remuneration

With the Corporation’s core mission of enhancing stability in
the banking sector, promoting wider home ownership and
facilitating the development of the debt securities market,
it attracts and grooms talent in its key business areas of
asset purchase, mortgage insurance and debt issuance. The
Corporation provides its staff with competitive remuneration
packages and fringe benefits, a promising career path and
development opportunities, and a healthy and safe working
environment. It also adopts family-friendly practices by
offering a five-day week to help employees maintain a good
work-life balance, as well as comprehensive medical and
dental insurance plans which cover both the employees
and their family members.

Through systems automation and process re-engineering,
the Corporation has maintained a lean and efficient
workforce, despite an increase in the scope of purchases
and the complexity of the products it offers. In 2010, the
permanent establishment of the Corporation was 146, and
it recorded a staff turnover rate of 19%.

Training and Development

The Corporation recognises the importance of on-going
training and has devoted considerable resources to the
continuous enhancement of its employees’ professional
knowledge and skills. In 2010, the Corporation arranged
both internal and external courses to help employees
enhance their product knowledge, and strengthen their
managerial and technical competence. The in-house training
sessions on product training covered a range of topics from

securitisation and credit approval/loan underwriting to bank
lending to SMEs. There were in-house training workshops
on soft skills, including team building, coaching skills,
time management, effective writing skills and Putonghua
training. The Corporation also sponsored employees who
attended external courses covering a wide range of topics,
from mortgage-related issues, risk management, finance
and accounting, and corporate governance to information
technology and management skills. In addition, all new staff
were provided with an induction session to give them an
overview of the Corporation’s operations, as well as their
specific scope of work.

Team Building Workshop for Management Team

Customer Service via Better Communication Training Workshop
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Health and Safety

As a caring organisation, the Corporation is dedicated
to looking after both the physical and mental health of
its staff. An Employee Support Programme is in place to
provide confidential external counseling and consultation
services to employees and their family members if needed.
A vaccination programme for the prevention of influenza
and a health check programme at privileged rates were
also offered to staff.

The Corporation has further reviewed and strengthened
its contingency plans, such as split-team arrangements,
to ensure a swift response to a possible outbreak of
influenza. The contingency plans aim to prevent the
spread of communicable diseases among staff and to
minimise any unexpected or sudden disruption to business
operations. Periodic drills are organised to make sure staff
are conversant with the activation of the back-up facilities,
contingency plans and communication arrangements in
case of emergency.

Employee Relations and Staff Activities

To promote a better work-life balance and foster a family-
friendly working place, the HKMC Staff Club, composed of
members from various departments, regularly organises
various staff activities to cultivate better relationships and
communication among employees. Just some examples of

Bowling Fun Day

Visit to Nevv Life Farm

THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED

the activities were Bowling Fun Day, Work-Life Balance Day,
the New Life Farm visit and other staff gatherings, of which
all were well received by staff and their family members.
Staff have also participated in friendly soccer games with
other organisations for fun and team building.

To ensure effective communication within the Corporation,
the Corporation’s intranet Staff Homepage is frequently
updated so that useful information can be shared across
different departments. There is also the Staff Suggestion
Scheme, which encourages staff to make suggestions for
improvements on the work flow and the work place. In 2010,
the Corporation also set up a “Mind Channel” that regularly
disseminates short stories, epigrams and health tips to all
staff, hoping to promote a work-life balance.

Dress Special Day 2010

Care for the Community
Charities and Social Activities

The Corporation promotes charitable and community
functions, such as fund-raising events, donation campaigns
and voluntary services, from time to time. Staff are encouraged
to support charity activities and do voluntary work. In 2010,
donations were made to victims of the Haiti earthquake and
the Qinghai earthquake. Other charity donation campaigns
during the year included the Dress Special Day 2010 for
the Community Chest, and the HKMC charity concert for
education projects in the Mainland. And similarly, the annual
Blood Donation Day for the Hong Kong Red Cross took place
once again in 2010.



The staff are keen to participate in voluntary services, always
willing to devote time and effort to showcase their concern
for the needy in the society. In 2010, active volunteers from
different departments came together to form a “Caring
League” (meaning a group of people sharing a common goal
and having a team spirit in caring our community). With the
efforts of the Caring League, the Corporation has partnered
with several social service organisations in a number of
voluntary services including:

e Care for the environment and the children — a guided
eco-tour to Fung Yuen Butterfly Reserve, followed by
voluntary work of removing weeds with child volunteers
from the Hong Kong Family Welfare Society;

e Care for the elderly — a visit to the HKYWCA Ming Yue
District Elderly Centre and a visit to the elderly living alone
organised by The Boys' & Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong
Kong during Mid-autumn Festival;, and

e Care for the disabled — participation in International
White Cane Day 2010 organised by Hong Kong Blind
Union to help members of the public in understanding
the difficulties that the visually impaired people would
encounter in their daily lives.

Visit to elderly living alone

Student Programmes

To help nurture talents for the future, the Corporation
provides a number of internship and placement programmes
for undergraduates to give them a taste of the real business
world and better prepare themselves for their future
careers. The students who have joined the programmes
have all left with the valuable learning experiences and work
opportunities that they had been exposed to.
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Visit to the HKYWCA Ming Yue District Elderly Centre

International White Cane Day 2010

Environmental Protection

The Corporation continuously supports and implements
various green measures to create a more environmentally-
friendly office and raise staff awareness of waste reduction
and energy conservation. Staff are encouraged to adopt
a paperless working practice by using more electronic
communication means. They are also encouraged to collect
waste paper and used toner cartridges for recycling, and
are reminded to switch off their computers before leaving
the office. Since 2006, the Corporation has put effort in
taking various measures including better control of office
temperature in the interest of energy efficiency. The
Corporation welcomes suggestions from the staff for green
office ideas, and encourages its suppliers to use or offer more
environmentally-friendly products whenever possible.

2011 Outlook

While the Hong Kong economy has rebounded, the
Corporation remains vigilant at all times and keeps abreast
of all developments in the property and financial markets.
Given the uncertainties of the global economy, as well as
the launch of new projects — the SME Financing Guarantee
Scheme, the Reverse Mortgage Pilot Scheme and the study
of microfinance - it is expected that the year of 2011 will
be another challenging year for the Corporation. Therefore,
to fulfill its core missions and strengthen its strategic role
in Hong Kong, the Corporation will continue to review its
well-established business programmes from time to time,
and enhance its products when appropriate to effectively
meet the needs of the market.
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Financial Review

The economy of Hong Kong experienced a robust recovery
in 2010 following the recession in 2009. In light of improving
income and job prospects, private consumption picked up
and business sentiment remained optimistic in general,
with strong growth momentum from both internal and
external sectors. In particular, strong demand in Asian
economies, combined with further revival in demand in
the United States and Europe, greatly boosted Hong Kong's
external trade, as well as trade-related and transportation
services. Employment and income growth, together with a
surge in public construction works, also supported private
consumption and domestic fixed investment. All in all, the
real GDP recorded a year-on-year growth of 6.8% and the
unemployment rate fell to 4.0% in the fourth quarter, the
lowest level since 2008.

The continuation of the ultra loose monetary stance in
advanced economies and, in particular, a new round of
quantitative easing by the United States, led to rising global
liquidity, which caused inflation and asset prices to soar.
Underlying consumer price inflation averaged 2.4%, up
from 0.5% in 2009, due to the price pressure from imported
sources, following renewed weakening of the US dollar, rising
global food prices and higher inflation in Asia. Residential
property prices climbed 21% as of December 2010 over a
year ago, but showed signs of moderating towards the end
of the year after the implementation of prudential measures
by the Hong Kong Government to address concerns over a
property price bubble caused by speculative investments in
the property sector.

FIGURE 1
Summary of Financial Performance

2010 2009
HK$ million HK$ million

Operating profit before
impairment 1,387 1,111
Profit before tax 1,406 1,150

Profit attributable to

shareholders 1,234 1,006
Return on shareholders’ equity 17.5% 16.2%
Return on assets 2.2% 1.6%
Cost-to-income ratio 11.0% 12.4%
Capital-to-assets ratio 10.8% 9.5%

Income Statement
Financial Performance

Riding on the robust recovery of the Hong Kong economy
and the buoyant property market, the Corporation managed
to achieve good financial results again in 2010. Profits
attributable to shareholders amounted to HK$1,234 million
in 2010 (FIGURES 1 and 2), representing a 22.7% increase over
2009. The growth was attributable to ample liquidity, excellent
loan performance and increased contribution from mortgage
insurance premium earned from loans underwritten under
the Mortgage Insurance Program (“MIP").

Operating profit before impairment increased by HK$276
million, or 24.8%, to HK$1,387 million, supported by 153.4%
growth in other income that more than offset the 6.5%
reduction in net interest income.

The return on shareholders’ equity rose to 17.5% (2009:
16.2%), while the return on assets climbed to 2.2% (2009:
1.6%). Despite increased commitment in risk management
that lifted the operating expenses by 8.2%, the significant
rise of 22.8% in operating income improved the cost-to-
income ratio to 11.0% (2009: 12.4%). The capital-to-assets
ratio remained robust at 10.8% (2009: 9.5%), well above
the guideline of a minimum 5% stipulated by the Financial
Secretary.

The average loan portfolio fell by HK$8.7 billion compared
with that of 2009, as a result of the faster runoff of loan
portfolio arising from increased refinancing activities in the
property market, which was offset partially by an increase
in cash and investments of HK$2 billion. Though both the

FIGURE 2
Profit Attributable to Shareholders

HK$ million
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FIGURE 3
Net Interest Income

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000

Interest income 1,141,383 1,338,301
Interest expense (170,802) (300,594)
Net interest income 970,581 1,037,707
Average interest-earning assets 53,266,677 | 60,017,628
Net interest margin 1.8% 1.7%
Net interest spread on interest-

bearing liabilities’ 1.8% 1.7%

T Net interest spread on interest-bearing liabilities = Return on interest-earning assets — Funding cost
on interest-bearing liabilities

net interest spread and net interest margin improved from
1.7% t0 1.8%, net interest income for the year declined by
6.5% from HK$1,038 million to HK$971 million because of
a reduction in average interest-earning assets of HK$6.8
billion in 2010 (FIGURE 3).

Other Income

Other income rose by 153.4% to HK$588 million in 2010
(2009: HK$232 million). The key item was the mortgage
insurance premium earned from the MIP. (FIGURE 4)

With the active property turnover that boosted new residential
mortgage loans drawn down in the market from HK$199.3
billion in 2009 to HK$324.2 billion in 2010, the Corporation’s
new business underwritten under the MIP rose from HK$36
billion to HK$41 billion. The amortisation effect of premium
receipts underwritten that added to the upfront premium
recognised for loan refinancing/prepayment, led to an
increase of 148% in the net premiums earned, from HK$171
million to HK$424 million. After reserving the additional

FIGURE 4
Major Source of other Income
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THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED

provision for outstanding claims of HK$6 million (2009: HK$22
million), the net premiums earned after provision increased
by 180.5% from HK$149 million to HK$418 million.

Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments
was about HK$65 million (2009: HK$5 million), which was
attributable mainly to the re-balancing and diversification
of investment portfolio.

A dividend income of HK$44 million (2009: HK$42 million)
from listed investment securities, which was equivalent to
a dividend yield of about 5%, was received in 2010 (2009:
5%). The income was generated from investments in bond
fund and real estate investment trust.

An exchange gain of HK$35 million was recorded. It was
HK$29 million more than that of 2009 (2009: HK$6 million),
primarily due to revaluation of US dollar net exposures.

Early prepayment fees were HK$18 million, HK$2 million
lower than that of 2009 (2009: HK$20 million).

Operating Expenses

The Corporation continued to maintain stringent cost
controls to contain expenses and improve operating
efficiency. Operating expenses recorded an increase of 8.2%
over 2009 to HK$171 million, but HK$21 million lower than
that projected in the approved budget. Staff costs rose by
5.6% to HK$114 million, which was attributable mainly to
further strengthening in our risk management capabilities.
Staff costs accounted for 66.7% of total operating expenses,
compared to 68.6% in 2009. Premises rental and related
costs maintained at HK$14 million. Depreciation charges
on assets increased to HK$13 million (2009: HK$11 million).
Consultancy fees increased by HK$5 million to HK$12 million,
which was attributable mainly to the enhancement of credit
risk management capabilities and the legal consultancy fees
incurred for new business initiatives (FIGURE 5).

FIGURE 5
Operating Expenses
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FIGURE 6
(Write-back)/Provisions of Loan Impairment Allowances
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Allowance for Loan Impairment

Asset quality remained strong, with the delinquency ratio
falling from 0.04% to 0.03%. Collective assessment for loan
impairment of HK$17 million was written back in 2010 due
to a reduction in loan portfolio of HK$9 billion compared to
2009 and a surge in property price (FIGURE 6).

In respect of the overseas mortgage loan portfolio, asset
quality remained healthy as a result of stringent purchasing
criteria and prudent risk mitigation. No collective assessment
for loan impairment was necessary for 2010 (2009: nil) and
no credit loss was recorded so far recorded.

Total allowance for loan impairment accounted for 0.01%
of the outstanding principal balance (HK$35.3 billion) of the
loan portfolio at the end of 2010, which was similar to the
local market level (FIGURE 7). During the year, there were
no loans written off (2009: HK$3 million) while the recovery
of loans previously written off amounted to HK$4 million
(2009: HK$3 million).

FIGURE 7
Ratios

2010 2009

Delinquency ratio for loan
portfolio overdue for more
than 90 days

0.03% 0.04%

Total allowance for loan
impairment as a percentage
of the gross loan portfolio

0.01% 0.03%

Financial Position

Total assets fell by HK$4.8 billion to HK$55 billion (2009:
HK$59.8 billion) (FIGURE 8), mainly due to the reduction of
loan portfolio by HK$8.5 billion to HK$35.3 billion. Surplus
cash from mortgage receipts was invested in short-term

FIGURE 8
Asset Deployment
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investment securities to bridge the redemption of matured
debt securities issued.

Loan Portfolio

During the year, the Corporation made a purchase of HK$4.7
billion loan assets (2009: HK$8.8 billion), which were all
residential mortgage loans in Hong Kong.

Taking account of the prepayment and repayment during
the year, the outstanding balance of residential mortgage
portfolio and securitised portfolio in Hong Kong stood at
HK$18.1 billion and HK$0.7 billion respectively. The Korean
residential mortgages recorded a normal runoff of HK$3.5
billion and the outstanding balance stood at HK$11.9 billion.
The commercial mortgage portfolio, which was backed by
local commercial buildings, maintained at HK$4 billion at the
end of 2010, same as that of 2009 (FIGURE 9).

The average prepayment rate of the loan portfolio (including
securitised mortgages) increased from 16.3% in 2009 to
24.1% in 2010 because of active property turnover in the
current exuberant property market.

FIGURE 9
Loan Portfolio, Net

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000

Mortgage portfolio

Residential

- Hong Kong 18,081,110 | 21,980,141
— QOverseas 11,912,250 15,441,285
Commercial 4,000,000 4,000,000
Securitised portfolio 717,786 1,314,685
Non-mortgage portfolio 549,820 1,066,616
35,260,966 | 43,802,727
Allowance for loan impairment (2,029) (14,011)
Loan portfolio, net 35,258,937 | 43,788,716

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

41



42 FINANCIAL REVIEW

Investment Securities

The Corporation’s investment portfolio is mainly made up of
bank deposits, short-term commercial papers, certificates of
deposit, bonds, yield-based government bond funds and real
estate investment trust. The liquid investment portfolio serves
as a liquidity buffer to support the Corporation’s business
operations, enabling it to respond quickly and smoothly to
unforeseen liquidity requirements. The Corporation adopts a
prudent and low-risk approach in managing its surplus funds
and investment activities in accordance with the approved
investment guidelines. As at 31 December 2010, the total
investment portfolio grew from HK$9.4 billion in 2009 to
HK$11.4 billion, which included HK$3.4 billion of available-
for-sale investments and HK$8 billion of held-to-maturity
investments. The increase in investment portfolio was due to
active capital management and surplus cash management
arising from businesses activities in 2010. With prudent
investment guidelines and asset and liability management,
the Corporation did not directly or indirectly hold any sub-
prime investment, collateralized debt obligations, high risk
European sovereign debts or debt securities issued by
the failed financial institutions in its portfolios. As in 2009,
there were no impairment losses or provisions against the
investment portfolio in 2010.

Debt Securities Issued

In 2010, the Corporation issued a total of HK$8.3 billion of
debts in 2010, comprising HK$7.1 billion debts under the
DIP and HK$1.2 billion under the MTN. All the non-HK dollar
debts issued under the MTN were swapped into HK dollar
or US dollar liability using hedging financial derivatives. As
at 31 December 2010, the total outstanding balance of the
debts issued fell by 12.1%, or HK$5.4 billion, to HK$39.1
billion as compared with 2009. The decline reflected
mainly the redemption of HK$13.8 billion debts matured in
2010 to match with the prepayment of mortgage portfolio.
Before taking account of the full and partial prepayments,
the average life of the loan portfolio was nine years on a
contractual basis. While the Corporation issued debts with
tenor ranging from one month to 15 years, 87.1% of the
Corporation’s outstanding debts would mature in one to
five years.

Mortgage-backed Securities Issued

During the year, the Corporation did not issue any mortgage-
backed securities (“MBS”). In comparison with 2009, the total
outstanding balance of the MBS issued dropped by 25%, or
HK$0.5 billion, to HK$1.5 billion, reflecting the redemption
of MBS in 2010.

THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED

Off-balance Sheet Exposures
Mortgage Insurance

The Corporation operates the MIP business on a risk-sharing
basis with approved reinsurers. At the end of 2010, the
total risk-in-force was about HK$17.6 billion (2009: HK$14.9
billion), of which HK$2.4 billion (2009: HK$3.3 billion) was
ceded to approved reinsurers. The off-balance sheet risk-
in-force exposure borne by the Corporation grew 31.4% to
HK$15.2 billion in 2010. Out of this exposure, the excess 10ss
of HK$1.9 billion of risk-in-force was hedged through the
use of excess-of-10ss reinsurance arrangement to reinsure
the middle layer risk positions and the Corporation retains a
portion of the total risk comprising the first-loss and remote
risk portions.

The provision for outstanding claims accounted for 0.46%
(2009: 0.56%) of the retained risk-in-force at the end of
2010. The delinquency ratio remained healthy at 0.003%.
(2009: 0.003%).

Overseas Businesses

At the end of 2010, the outstanding balance of the Korean
mortgage portfolio stood at HK$11.9 billion (2009: HK$15.4
billion). The joint venture in Malaysia, which engages in
mortgage guarantee business, recorded a share of profit
of HK$2.3 million (2009: HK$1.9 million). The joint venture
in the Mainland of China, which engages in mortgage
bridging guarantee business, generated a profit of HK$3.3
million (a loss of HK$4.4 million in 2009). The aggregate
profit contribution of these businesses amounted to HK$134
million (2009: HK$126 million), or 9.5%, of the Corporation’s
profit before tax in 2010.

Cash Flow Management

The Corporation generated HK$1.4 billion of cash flow from
operating activities before changes in operating assets and
liabilities. The cash flow, which was derived mainly from net
interest income received, represented an increase of HK$0.2
billion over that of 2009. Repayment of mortgage portfolio
was used to finance debt securities redemption and invest
in held-to-maturity investment portfolio. Net increase in
cash equivalent amounted to HK$0.7 billion in 2010 (2009:
HK$1.1 billion).

Capital Management

The Financial Secretary has approved the following capital
adequacy framework to account for different levels of risk
embedded in the various products. The minimum Capital-to-



Assets Ratio (“CAR") by product reflects a prudent estimate
of underlying risks, taking into account any eligible collateral,
with some adjustments to reflect the contingent nature of
potential l0SSeS (FIGURE 10).

The capital base, defined as shareholders’ equity excluding
hedging reserve plus the allowance for loan impairment
under collective assessment, grew by 15.9% from HK$6.3
billion to HK$7.3 billion in 2010 amid the earnings growth. At
the end of 2010, the aggregate amount of the Corporation’s
on-balance sheet assets and off-balance sheet exposure
was HK$67.3 billion, which mainly consisted of HK$30.1
billion of risk-weighted mortgage loans, HK$0.9 billion of hire
purchase assets, HK$11.4 billion of investment securities,
HK$5.9 billion of cash and bank balances, HK$15.2 of billion
risk-weighted mortgage insurance exposure, HK$2.6 billion
of replacement costs and potential future credit exposure

FIGURE 10

Product

43

of derivative contracts, HK$0.1 billion of risk-weighted
guarantee exposure under the MBS programmes and HK$1.1
billion of other assets. At the end of 2010, there was no
outstanding exposure for the newly launched guarantee
schemes, PLGS and SFGS. The CAR stood at a healthy level
of 10.8% (2009: 9.5%), well above the minimum level of 5%
stipulated by the Financial Secretary.

Dividend

At the Annual General Meeting held on 12 April 2011,
Shareholders, having considered the exceptional financial
performance of the Corporation and the capital requirement
for launch of new businesses in 2011, approved a final
dividend of HK$0.175 (2009: HK$0.25) per share, totalling
HK$350 million (2009: HK$500 million), representing a 28.4%
of the profit attributable to shareholders.

Minimum Capital-to-Assets Ratio

Mortgage Purchase Programme
(i) regular mortgage loans

(i) loans originated under the Home Starter Loan Scheme
("HSLS") and Sandwich Class Housing Loan Scheme
("SCHLS")

Mortgage-Backed Securities (“MBS”) guaranteed by the
Corporation

Securitised mortgage loans transferred from the Corporation
to the special purpose entities (“SPE”) that are qualified for
derecognition from the Corporation’s balance sheet before
account consolidation of the SPE

Securitised mortgage loans transferred from the Corporation
to the SPE that are not qualified for derecognition from the
Corporation’s balance sheet before account consolidation of
the SPE, where the mortgage-backed securities issued are:

(i) guaranteed by the Corporation
(i) not guaranteed by the Corporation

Non-residential mortgage loans
Non-mortgage loans

Overseas residential mortgage loans

Mortgage Insurance Programme (“MIP")

Guarantee on premium loan under Premium Loan Guarantee
Scheme (“PLGS”)

Guarantee under SME Financing Guarantee Programme
("SFGS")

5% of regular mortgage loan portfolio
(based on outstanding principal balance or committed amount plus
accrued interest)

2% of HSLS and SCHLS loans
(based on outstanding principal balance or committed amount plus
accrued interest)

2% of MBS portfolio
(based on outstanding principal balance plus accrued interest)

0% of securitised mortgage loans

2% of securitised mortgage loans
5% of securitised mortgage loans

8% of the non-residential mortgage loan portfolio
8% of the non-mortgage loan portfolio

The capital requirement applicable to the jurisdiction in which
the overseas residential property is situated to adjust for the
5% requirement on regular mortgage loan portfolio

0% of risk-in-force value of exposure covered by the Approved
Reinsurers under reinsurance arrangement with significant
credit risk transfer

5% of risk-in-force value of exposure not covered, or covered
by the Approved Reinsurers under reinsurance arrangement
without significant credit risk transfer

5% of guarantee exposure

6% of guarantee exposure where the aggregate exposure to a
single obligor does not exceed HK$10 million

8% of guarantee exposure where the aggregate exposure to a
single obligor exceeds HK$10 million

ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (for the purpose of this
report, including the special purpose entities used for issuing mortgage-backed
securities) (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Principal Activities

The general principal activities of the Company are:

(1) to purchase portfolios of mortgages or loans secured on properties or
other collateral situated in Hong Kong or elsewhere and to acquire other
debentures, receivables, financial assets and choses in action of all kinds
from their originators, issuers, owners or vendors,

(2) toacquire, by purchase or otherwise, any assets from government bodies
and agencies and related organisations, statutory bodies and public
bodies and to hold, sell, transfer, dispose of and deal in any such assets
S0 purchased or acquired;

(3) to issue notes or debt securities to institutional investors or retail
investors;

(4) to securitise mortgage portfolios through special purpose entities by way
of issuing mortgage-backed securities to investors;

(5) to provide mortgage insurance cover to Authorized Institutions (“Als”) in
respect of mortgage loans originated by such Als and secured by residential
properties;

(6) to provide financial guarantee cover to Als in respect of:

(@ second mortgage loans originated by such Als and secured by
residential properties for payment of premium to the Hong Kong
Housing Authority; and

(b) loans originated by such Als to small and medium-sized enterprises
and non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong.

The corporate information and principal activities of the subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entity of the Company and special purpose entities used for issuing
mortgage-backed securities are shown in Notes 22, 23 and 33 respectively to
the financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 95 together with particulars of
the proposed dividend.

ZT—ZFFI ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 99.

Fixed Assets

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 24 to the financial statements.

Debt Securities Issued

The Company issued notes to banks and institutional investors under its
HK$40 Billion Debt Issuance Programme and US$3 billion Medium Term Note
Programme during the year ended 31 December 2010, totalling HK$8.3 billion
for the purposes of providing general working capital and refinancing, at a total
consideration of HK$8.2 billion. The Company did not issue any debt securities
under its Retail Bond Issuance Programme during the year ended 31 December
2010. A summary of the debt securities issuance and redemption activities is
set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

Mortgage-backed Securities Issued

The special purpose entities did not issue any mortgage-backed securities under
the Guaranteed Mortgage-backed Pass-through Securitisation Programme
or the US$3 Billion Bauhinia Mortgage-backed Securitisation Programme in
2010. A summary of the mortgage-backed securities redemption activities is
set out in Note 29.

Directors

The Directors of the Company who served during the year were as follows:

The Honourable John TSANG Chun Wah, GBM, JP

Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Norman T. L. CHAN, SBS, JP

Deputy Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Peter PANG Sing Tong, P

Executive Director

Mr. Eddie YUE Wai Man, JP

Executive Director

Professor the Honourable K. C. CHAN, SBS, JP
Director

The Honourable CHAN Kin Por, JP

Director

The Honourable Ms. Tanya CHAN
Director

Mr. Jammy CHEN
Director (appointed on 20 April 2010)

FBRIBHESFEMRAT THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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Ms. Louisa CHEANG
Director (retired on 20 April 2010)

The Honourable Ms. Eva CHENG, JP
Director

Professor the Honourable Anthony CHEUNG Bing Leung, GBS, BBS, JP

Director

Mr. Eddy FONG Ching, GBS, JP
Director

Mr. Andrew FUNG Hau Chung
Director (appointed on 20 April 2010)

Mr. Ryan FUNG Yuk Lung
Director (appointed on 20 April 2010)

Mr. Lester Garson HUANG, JP
Director

The Honourable Ms. Starry LEE Wai King, JP

Director

The Honourable Andrew LEUNG Kwan Yuen, GBS, SBS, JP

Director

Dr. the Honourable David LI Kwok Po, GBM, GBS, Hon. LLD (Cantab), JP
Director

Mr. Geoffrey Jay MANSFIELD
Director (retired on 20 April 2010)

The Honourable Abraham SHEK Lai Him, SBs, JP

Director

Mr. Eddie TAN Cheng Soo
Director (retired on 20 April 2010)

In accordance with Article 109 of the Company’s Articles of Association, all
those Directors who are not Executive Directors shall retire but shall be eligible
for re-election at the next annual general meeting.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions and Contracts

There was no contract of significance in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, which subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company a party to any arrangement to
enable any of its Directors or members of its management to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities of, the Company
or any body corporate.

—ZE—ZFHER ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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Additional Disclosures in Compliance with the
Provisions of the Insurance Companies Ordinance
(“1c0”)

During the year, the “Controllers” of the Company (as defined in the ICO)
were the Hon. John Tsang and Mr. James H. Lau Jr. (Chief Executive Officer
of the Company). Mr. Lau did not have any interests in the transactions or
the contracts which the Company had entered into during the year ended 31
December 2010.

During the year, the Company did not carry on insurance business relating to
liabilities or risks in respect of which persons were required by any Ordinance
to be insured.

There were in existence reinsurance arrangements between the Company
and the following approved reinsurers: Asia Insurance Company, Limited,
Hang Seng General Insurance (Hong Kong) Company Limited, HSBC Insurance
(Asia) Limited, QBE Mortgage Insurance (Asia) Limited (formerly known as
PMI Mortgage Insurance (Asia) Limited) and AIG United Guaranty Insurance
(Asia) Limited. During the year, the Company operated its mortgage insurance
business on a risk-sharing basis. Except for those mortgage insurance covers
in respect of which no reinsurance arrangement had been made, the Company
ceded up to 50% of the risk exposure under its mortgage insurance to each
approved reinsurer, with the remaining risk exposure being retained by the
Company. The Company had also entered into a bilateral “excess of 10ss”
reinsurance agreement with an approved reinsurer. On 28 January 2011, the
Company has also entered into a reinsurance arrangement with Bank of China
Group Insurance Company Limited.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

John C Tsang

Chairman

Hong Kong,
12 April 2011.
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To the shareholders of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 95 to 181, which comprise the consolidated and
Company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2010, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Z—ZFFI ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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Q/ WM EHRES INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2010,
and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong,
12 April 2011.

EBRBEZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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Consolidated Income Statement

BHE_TZTF+-A=1+—HLFE
for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009

B e FTHET FAT

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

F 2N Interest income 6 1,141,383 1,338,301
B Interest expense 7 (170,802) (300,594)
U DN Net interest income 970,581 1,037,707
HABYA Other income 8 587,799 231,588
ST DN Operating income 1,558,380 1,269,295
T Operating expenses 9 (171,425) (157,836)
RETRERTBVAS &5 A Operating profit before impairment 1,386,955 1,111,459
BB E R Write-back of loan impairment allowances 12 16,663 36,837
wEin Operating profit 1,403,618 1,148,296
FEAE EEE S B ERE T Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity 23 2,259 1,922
B A A Profit before taxation 1,405,877 1,150,218
I8 Taxation 13(a) (172,015) (144,186)
AREETRF] Profit for the year 1,233,862 1,006,032

FE{G#F /(B518) : Profit/(loss) attributable to:

RAERRER Equity holders of the Company 1,233,532 1,006,469
V2 PRI AR R Non-controlling interest 330 (437)
1,233,862 1,006,032

Bk B Proposed dividend 16 350,000 500,000

F102E 181 BFiE AR E M HRERN— D °

Statements.

B—
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SETHEHWER
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-T-TF A=+ BLFE
for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
B 5 FHET FHAIT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REEZ R Profit for the year 1,233,862 1,006,032
Hith 2wz : Other comprehensive income:
A HHERS Available-for-sale securities:
- RERWEFRE - unrealised net gains 31 143,631 227,272
- HERATEES — fair value changes transferred to income
BT statement on disposal 31 (40,554) (3,522)
- BB — tax effect 31 (17,307) (37,311)
- RERWEFE — - unrealised net gains —
HEESIEE jointly controlled entity 31 163 -
— H5E — amortisation 31 1,809 2,381
e TME R Cash flow hedges:
- ERGCRERERRER — net gains arising from hedges recognised
e AR directly in equity 31 26,340 25,126
- BARGmROAFEE — fair value changes transferred to
income statement 31 (79) =
- Fim — tax effect 31 (4,333) (4,145)
PRGN E TSI E A Y Exchange differences on translation of
M ZERR foreign operations
- WEBAR — subsidiary 4,309 157
- HRENEHIEE — jointly controlled entity 31 13,108 1,279
RNEFEEMEERE - Other comprehensive income for the year,
2R IR net of tax 127,087 211,237
FEEEEMREE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,360,949 1,217,269
FEAE 2 E 2485 Total comprehensive income attributable to:
ViN/NE] )i 351 Equity holders of the Company 1,360,188 1,217,707
SR I HIRENR R Non-controlling interest 761 (438)
1,360,949 1,217,269
F102 = 181 EFi#E M E B4R A SRR —2H ° The notes on pages 102 to 181 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R_E—ZTF+=-A=+—H
as at 31 December 2010

97

2010 2009
fii Fi# Tt
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
&E ASSETS
BeREHES Cash and short-term funds 17 5,902,649 4,067,798
FEUSF B K PE 5k Interest and remittance receivables 18 657,150 710,530
TESMITA Derivative financial instruments 19 1,396,621 1,317,375
B BEF5E Loan portfolio, net 20 35,258,937 43,788,716
BEEE Investment securities:
- AHEE — available-for-sale 21(a) 3,403,966 3,613,064
- BEZREIH — held-to-maturity 21(b) 8,033,133 5,817,998
HEZEGIEEKRE Investment in a jointly controlled entity 23 130,720 115,190
BEEEE Fixed assets 24 17,252 21,257
TENRIE « Re RHMEE Prepayments, deposits and other assets 25 27,659 32,595
BIRBREE Reinsurance assets 27 204,891 266,101
BAESE Total assets 55,032,978 59,750,624
=1 LIABILITIES
FERTFIE Interest payable 493,553 445,787
FEISERTE - BRI R Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
HEMaE liabilities 26 4,291,137 4274177
TESMITA Derivative financial instruments 19 44,372 158,246
FERFRIR Tax payable 13(b) 133,560 138,329
EEFIIEE & Deferred tax liabilities 13(b) 37,167 15,209
R A& Insurance liabilities 27 1,773,665 1,462,318
BEITERES Debt securities issued 28 39,127,735 44,495,073
BEBITIZBES Mortgage-backed securities issued 29 1,529,749 2,020,394
EfEEE Total liabilities 47,430,938 53,009,533
R EQUITY
e FEa AL Capital and reserves attributable to the
AR Rk (i equity holders:
A& ZN Share capital 30 2,000,000 2,000,000
{RER A Retained profits 4,561,624 3,925,694
BB E Contingency reserve 31 437,435 189,833
N {EFE Fair value reserve 31 255,191 167,449
i Hedging reserve 31 (23,757) (45,685)
bE 53 1 Translation reserve 31 9,866 (7,120)
FORAR B Proposed dividend 16 350,000 500,000
7,590,359 6,730,171
RITHIER R A Non-controlling interest in equity 11,681 10,920
i8R Total equity 7,602,040 6,741,091
BN REEEE Total equity and liabilities 55,032,978 59,750,624

BEREON-Z & A+ BhERE#ETT - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 April 2011.

PR NormanT. L. Chan

B E% Pang Sing Tong, Peter

BIEE Deputy Chairman #77EE  Executive Director
F102E 181 BEFfE M AR BRI —ED ° The notes on pages 102 to 181 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

RZZE—ZTF+=-A=+—H
as at 31 December 2010

2010 2009
B 5 FHET FHAIT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 17 5,769,509 3,924,752
FEULF B R ERK Interest and remittance receivables 18 645,232 698,809
PTESMITE Derivative financial instruments 19 1,372,522 1,273,102
BREFEE Loan portfolio, net 20 31,392,398 40,817,163
BHIE Investment securities:
- A E — available-for-sale 21(a) 3,403,966 3,613,064
- FEZEEIH — held-to-maturity 21(b) 8,033,133 5,817,998
HEBARIEE Investment in subsidiaries 22 3,205,632 1,733,580
HEIEFIEEKRE Investment in a jointly controlled entity 23 120,554 120,554
EE&E Fixed assets 24 15,980 19,000
AR - ke REMEE Prepayments, deposits and other assets 25 29,220 36,681
BiRmEE Reinsurance assets 27 204,891 266,101
BEHEE Total assets 54,193,037 = 58,320,804
BiE LIABILITIES
FERTFE Interest payable 491,231 442,217
FERTERIE - RS R Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
EmaE liabilities 26 4,792,266 4,910,949
TEERIE Derivative financial instruments 19 44,372 158,246
FETFRIE Tax payable 13(b) 134,532 131,850
BERIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 13(b) 37,167 15,213
RBREE Insurance liabilities 27 1,773,665 1,462,318
BEBITERES Debt securities issued 28 39,405,886 44,495,073
=1t Total liabilities 46,679,119 51,615,866
s EQUITY
Emts B AEL Capital and reserves attributable to the
AR R i equity holders:
&N Share capital 30 2,000,000 2,000,000
IRE i Retained profits 4,495,212 3,893,341
[\ R f e Contingency reserve 31 437,435 189,833
N ERE Fair value reserve 31 255,028 167,449
o Hedging reserve 31 (23,757) (45,685)
R AR 2, Proposed dividend 16 350,000 500,000
Wi Total equity 7,513,918 6,704,938
R EEEE Total equity and liabilities 54,193,037 = 58,320,804

EEREN TN A+ BhERERETIT - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 April 2011.

&% NormanT.L.Chan %% Pang Sing Tong, Peter

I=/E Deputy Chairman #7TEF  Executive Director

F102 = 181 B ML AR SRR MN—2H ° The notes on pages 102 to 181 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-ZZFT-_A=1T—HIFE
for the year ended 31 December 2010

99

FRTBREES
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
R
TERRR
R R &R Hithf# e Non-
Share Retained Other  controlling G
capital Profits * reserves interest Total
WE TR 7 572 572 87
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NR-BFAE—RA—BH%ER Balance as at 1 January 2009 2,000,000 3,735,513 26,951 - 5,762,464
zl&ir;;ﬁfru/ (E8) Profit/(loss) for the year - 1,006,469 - (437) 1,006,032
HEEBTHFOAFE YR Net fair value gains of available-
@%‘E B HIBRTIE for-sale securities, net of tax 31 - - 188,820 - 188,820
W MENPR S E)FE - Net change in cash flow hedges,
B BRELIE net of tax 31 - - 20,981 = 20,981
HRE R INEFERT E A RIFE X, Exchange differences on
=8 translation of foreign operations
= W% — subsidiary 31 - - 158 (1) 157
%‘JE B — jointly controlled entity 31 - = 1,279 = 1,279
Zliifiﬁu%z L) Total comprehensive income for
the year - 1,006,469 211,238 (438) 1,217,269
RIEHIRER R EE Capital injection by non-controlling
interest - - - 11,358 11,358
AR &AM Transfer of 50% of net risk
BB R B FEEH) 50% premium earned from retained
Bl profits to contingency reserve 31 - (76,313) 76,313 - -
[ = R s A Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 31 = 10,025 (10,025) = =
BENZEENFRE Dividend paid related to 2008 - (250,000) - - (250,000)
R=—ZFTh&E+=-H=+—H Balance as at 31 December 2009
“es 2,000,000 4,425,694 304,477 10,920 6,741,091
NEF K Profit for the year - 1233532 - 330 1,233,862
AR EESN AT ERE Net fair value gains of available-
FEE - BHRTRIE for-sale securities, net of tax 31 - - 87,742 - 87,742
I MENT R S E)FEE - Net change in cash flow hedges,
EBRFIA net of tax 31 = = 21,928 = 21,928
HE G INERS I EE RO IE 5, Exchange differences on
=5 translation of foreign operations
- BERA — subsidiary 31 - - 33878 431 4,309
- HREEGEEE — jointly controlled entity 31 - - 13,108 - 13,108
AEE2EBEREE Total comprehensive income for
the year - 1,233,532 126,656 761 1,360,949
AR EANBEA R WM Transfer of 50% of net risk
[EBR IR 2 FFEH) 50% premium earned from retained
B profits to contingency reserve 31 - (260,282) 260,282 - -
ROl R R R R R A Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 31 - 12,680 (12,680) - -
BN =EENEFRE Dividend paid related to 2009 - (500,000) - - (500,000)
M_¥—¥$+_H =+—H Balance as at 31 December 2010
e 2,000,000 4,911,624 678,735 11,681 7,602,040
*FRIE-TE+-A=+—8  ERFEZEMNBE  * Asat 31 December 2010, HK$350 million (2009: HK$500 million) was earmarked as

#350,000,000/ T (Z T =

T ERBER RIS, -

2102 £ 181 EPT#HIM L RER A MBS RRE — 5D -

JU4F : 500,000,0007%

proposed final dividend from retained profits.

The notes on pages 102 to 181 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-T-TF A=+ BLFE
for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
LiEss FET FHAIT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
CEXBRARERLSRE Cash flows from operating activities
Fdyinkl Operating profit 1,403,618 1,148,296
AT ZIAELAAE Adjustment for:
FLEUA Interest income (1,151,373)  (1,334,981)
AEXH Interest expense 116,949 254,642
AR EMA Dividend income (43,595) (42,224)
e Depreciation 12,928 10,890
BB ITERE SRR Amortisation of discount on debt securities issued 53,853 45,952
ERURE R Write-back of loan impairment allowances (16,663) (36,837)
HBRRE EREMIEMEZE  Loan portfolio written off net of recoveries 4,760 634
TR(EHT IR Bl Unwind of discount on impairment (79) (322
A ERESEETE 2T H Amortisation of unrealised loss on available-for-
8 75 R 0 AR 3R e TR O sale securities transferred to held-to-maturity
securities 1,809 2,381
BHILERE/(Fag) #H Amortisation of premium/(discount) on investment
securities 8,181 (5,701)
S A B B A e F R Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities (64,752) (5,277)
CRTEAFEE Change in fair value of financial instruments 4,832 35,534
BEReRAARESREE Change in translation of financial assets under cash
= flow hedge 26,340 25,126
BAMERRIB L REFH Fair value changes of cash flow hedge transferred
NEEZE) to income statement (79) -
=SS Interest received 1,123,624 1,361,663
BERFE Interest paid (69,183) (278,820)
RetiEE B ERBEZEHH Cash flows from operating activities before changes
KEXEBAERERE in operating assets and liabilities 1,411,170 1,180,956
R=1E A 1% E| B e E HRF R (Increase)/decrease in time deposits with more than
(#n)/ md three months’ maturity (1,117,896) 88,971
JE U BE FOR Decrease in remittance receivables 81,129 597,273
TEMFUE - ke REMEERS  Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other assets 3,438 630
BxEERLD Decrease in loan portfolio 8,541,761 7,007,921
FETERIA - R A REA Increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and
BEEM other liabilities 16,960 90,484
R B EFEEILMN Increase in insurance liabilities, net 372,557 635,919
HNEBRE =58 Exchange differences (6,535) (2,848)
KEFTIRIRE Cash generated from operation 9,302,584 9,599,306
B BEFIESH Hong Kong profits tax paid (176,466) (51,066)
KA ETEFTSIR 58 Net cash generated from operating activities 9,126,118 9,548,240

EBRBEZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED



2010 2009
B E FHET FHET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REFIABESRE Cash flows from investing activities
BEEEAE Purchase of fixed assets 24 (8,866) (17,845)
BB S5 Purchase of available-for-sale securities 21(a) (4,263,000)  (3,134,672)
HEERAREHE Purchase of held-to-maturity securities 21(b) (4,341,842)  (2,923,038)
HE BRI A EFS Proceeds from sale or redemption of
FT{S IR available-for-sale securities 4,644,210 1,813,456
FERIRFE 22 HE S P15 5K IE Proceeds from redemption of held-to-maturity
securities 21(b) 2,130,621 2,731,226
UL R I B BE FOIR R 2 Decrease in amount due from a jointly controlled
entity - 1,543
BUATMEEEFEHFRE Dividend received from available-for-sale securities 45,093 39,554
S B EBATAIR®F5E Net cash used in investing activities (1,793,784)  (1,489,776)
RIS RIRRNIFE Net cash inflows before financing 7,332,334 8,058,464
ﬂé‘“&iﬁijﬁﬁ?&iﬂﬁ; iR Cash flows from financing activities
SNEE S BRFTSHIE Proceeds from advance from Exchange Fund - 57,000,000
EEINEES BN Repayment of advance from Exchange Fund - (65,000,000)
BITEBBHIERIE Proceeds from issue of debt securities 28 8,193,535 22,060,740
HBE 2 EITERE Redemption of debt securities issued 28 (13,838,443)  (19,645,595)
BEITIRIBEREN Repayment of mortgage-backed securities issued 29 (470,471)  (1,171,456)
SRIEHIRENR R EE Capital injection by non-controlling interest - 11,358
EfRE A Dividend paid 16 (500,000) (250,000)
BMEEBMAR 25 Net cash used in financing activities (6,615,379)  (6,994,953)
HE&RERIRLEREINFE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 716,955 1,063,511
FEMNHERERRLIEH Beginning cash and cash equivalents 3,828,119 2,764,608
FR[EREFRFELER Ending cash and cash equivalents 17 4,545,074 3,828,119
F102E 181 BATHH B E B RERN—E D The notes on pages 102 to 181 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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1. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs" is a collective term which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”), Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale investment
securities, financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) carried at fair value.

The principal accounting policies and methods of computation used in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistently applied
to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

2. Significant accounting policies
2.1 Adoption of HKFRSs

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or after
1 January 2010

(i) The following standards, amendments and interpretations
effective in 2010, which are relevant to the Group:

e HKAS 27 (revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements requires the effects of all transactions with non-
controlling interests to be recorded in equity if there is no
change in control and these transactions will no longer result
in goodwill or gains and losses. The standard also specifies
the accounting when control is lost. Any remaining interest
in the entity is re-measured to fair value, and a gain or 10ss
is recognised in profit or loss. The adoption of the revised
standard has no effect on the financial statements of the
Group.

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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HKAS 39 (amendment) Cash Flow Hedge Accounting clarifies
that gains or losses should be reclassified from equity to profit
or loss in the period in which the hedged forecast cash flow
affects profit or l0ss. There is no material impact to the financial
statements of the Group as a result of this amendment.

HKAS 39 (@amendment) Treating Loan Prepayment Penalties
as closely related derivatives clarifies that loan prepayment
penalties are only treated as closely related embedded
derivatives, if the penalties are payments that compensate
the lender for loss of interest by reducing the economic 10sS
from reinvestment risk. A specific formula is given to calculate
the lost interest. There is no material impact to the financial
statements of the Group as a result of this amendment.

HK(FRIC) — Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives and
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
requires an entity to assess whether an embedded derivative
should be separated from a host contract when the entity
reclassifies a hybrid financial asset out of the ‘fair value through
profit or loss’ category. This assessment is to be made based
on circumstances that existed on the later of the date the
entity first became a party to the contract and the date of any
contract amendments that significantly change the cash flows
of the contract. If the entity is unable to make this assessment,
the hybrid instrument must remain classified as at fair value
through profit or loss in its entirety. There is no material impact
to the financial statements of the Group as a result of this
amendment.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations

effective in 2010, are not currently relevant to the Group (although

they may affect the accounting for future transactions):

HKFRS 2 (amendment) Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions.

HKFRS 3 (revised) Business Combinations, and consequential
amendments to HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements, HKAS 28 Investments in Associates, and HKAS 31
Interests in Joint Ventures.

HKFRS 5 (@amendment) Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.
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104 =w&piE®mEME NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e HKAS 1 (@amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements.

e HKAS 17 (amendment) Leases.

o HKAS 38 (amendment) Intangible Assets.

e HKAS 39 (amendment) Eligible Hedged Items.

e HK (IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operations.

e HK (IFRIC) — Int 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
Oowners.

e HK (IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers.

e HK-Int5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause.

e Improvements to HKFRS containing numerous amendments

e
ﬂ%\;’é TR AERARIEEYE to HKFRS which the HKICPA consider non-urgent but
BRENZIEER] necessary.

b EEMEMAERNER > BT R (b) Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet

7E effective
() ATERMEE=ZS—ZTF—A—H (i) The following new standard and amendments relevant to the
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EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED

Group have been issued but not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2010 and have not been early adopted:

e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments was issued in November
2009 and replaces those parts of HKAS 39 relating to the
classification and measurement of financial assets. Key
features are as follows:

Financial assets are required to be classified into two
measurement categories: those to be measured subsequently
at fair value, and those to be measured subsequently at
amortised cost. The decision is to be made at initial recognition.
The classification depends on the entity's business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the instrument.

An instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost
only if it is a debt instrument and both the objective of the
entity's business model is to hold the asset to collect the
contractual cash flows, and the asset's contractual cash flows
represent only payments of principal and interest (that is, it
has only ‘basic loan features’). All other debt instruments are
to be measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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All equity instruments are to be measured subsequently at
fair value. Equity instruments that are held for trading will
be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For all other
equity instruments, an irrevocable election can be made at
initial recognition, to recognise unrealised and realised fair
value gains and losses through other comprehensive income
rather than profit or loss. There is no recycling of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss. This election may be made
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Dividends are to be
presented in profit or loss, as long as they represent return
on investment.

In November 2010, the requirements related to the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and derecognition
of financial instruments were added to HKFRS 9. All the
requirements in HKAS 39 for the accounting and presentation
for financial liabilities and for derecognition of financial
instruments were carried forward unchanged to HKFRS 9,
except for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss using the fair value option.

For the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss using the fair value option, the amount of change in the
fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk
must be presented separately in other comprehensive income,
unless presentation of the fair value change attributable
to the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss where an entity shall recognise all fair value movements
in the profit or loss. There is no subsequent recycling of the
amounts in the other comprehensive income to profit or loss,
but accumulated gains or losses may be transferred within
equity.

Financial liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value
through profit or loss, including financial guarantees and loan
commitments measured at fair value through profit or loss,
will continue to have all fair value movement recognised in
the profit or loss.

While adoption of HKFRS 9 is mandatory from 1 January 2013,
earlier adoption is permitted.

The Group is considering the implications of the whole standard
including other phases of HKFRS 9 on the Group and the timing
of its adoption by the Group.
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e Third improvements to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (2010) were issued in May 2010 by HKICPA. All
improvements are effective in the financial year of 2011. No
material changes to accounting policies are expected as a
result of these amendments.

(i) The following amendments and interpretations, which are not
effective in 2010 are not expected to be relevant to the Group:

e HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of
Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters.

e HKAS 12 (amendment) Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets.

e HKAS 32 (amendment) Classification of Rights Issues.

e HK(IFRIC)—Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments.

e HK (IFRIC) — Int 14 (amendment) Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement.

(c) Early adoption of standard

The Group has early-adopted HKAS 24 (revised) Related Party
Disclosures in 2010, which was issued in November 2009. It
supersedes HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures issued in 2003. The
revised standard clarifies and simplifies the definition of a related
party. It also provides a partial exemption from the disclosure
requirements for government-related entities to disclose details of
all transactions with the government and other government-related
entities. The Group has not applied the exemption from the disclosure
requirements for the government-related entities.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases.
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Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by the
Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms
with the holders of these interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meet the definition of a financial liabilities. They are
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, separately from
equity attributable to equity holders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated income statement as an allocation of the net profit
for the year between non-controlling interest and equity holders of
the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investment
in the subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
allowances. The results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with parties external to the Group. Disposals
to non-controlling interest result in gains and losses to the Group
that are recorded in the income statement. Purchases from the non-
controlling interests result in goodwill, being the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the economic
activity are referred as jointly controlled entities. Investments in jointly
controlled entities are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

The Group's share of its jointly controlled entities’ profits or losses is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of movements in
reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the entity.
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2.3

Inthe Company’s statement of financial position, the investment in the
jointly controlled entity is stated at cost less provision for impairment
allowances. The results of the jointly controlled entity are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement

for all interest bearing financial instruments using the effective interest
method except for those designated at fair value through profit or 0ss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest
income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or

receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of
the financial instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The

calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

2.4

Non interest income

(@) Fee and commission income

b

2.5

=

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Upfront arrangement fees that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate are recognised as
an adjustment to the effective interest rate in determining interest
income on the loans.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans and receivables;
held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments
at initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading,
and those designated as at fair value through profit or loss at inception.
Afinancial asset is classified as held for trading if acquired principally

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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for the purpose of selling in the short term or if it is part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
making. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless
they are designated as hedges.

A financial asset is typically classified as fair value through profit or
loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring the financial assets or financial liabilities or recognising
the gains and losses on them on different bases; or

(i) a group of financial assets and/or financial liabilities is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and this is the basis on which information about the
financial assets and/or financial liabilities is provided internally
to the key management personnel.

(iii

Financial assets, such as debt securities held, containing one or
more embedded derivatives significantly modify the cash flows,
are designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
and for which the Group has no intention of trading immediately or
in the short term.

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the
Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. If the Group was to sell other than an insignificant amount
of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would be tainted and
reclassified as available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial investments
that are either designated in this category or not classified in any
of the other categories. Available-for-sale investments are those
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rate,
exchange rate or market prices. They are initially recognised at fair
value including direct and incremental transaction costs. They are
subsequently held at fair value.
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Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on settlement
date. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or where the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” category are included in the income statement in the
period in which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised directly in equity, until the financial asset is derecognised
or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be recognised in income statement.
However, interest calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in the income statement when
the entity’s right to receive payment is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a
foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in amortised
cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying amount of
the securities. The translation differences on monetary securities
are recognised in income statement; translation differences on
non-monetary securities are recognised in equity. Changes in the
fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in equity.

The fair value of quoted investments in active markets are based on
current bid prices. If there is no active market for a financial asset,
the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These
include the use of recent arm'’s length transactions, reference to
other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis and other valuation techniques commonly used by
market participants.

Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED



F) BREAHEHERBEESN —HAS
EﬁﬁéZﬂi%fﬁﬁmgﬂﬁ%ﬁ“TﬁﬁE
st AZeRmEER—HemEE
HEARERE R HRRERE - Bn [

A —HERMEEREZEERRE
EASEIEIARATHBERENZ
AT RREF

o BITARREBEALREEMRAE :

o BH - PIAERE AN SIERF B K
g

o FEERAMBRREARH 2 LBES0R
RER - AEEE TERAERIEB

RINTE R BEGT -
o & B A T BE [ FR B 3 E Al B 7%
E S

s A AR FEREE 2ERT
b =1

o ARANBEMBTRVSERR —S/
BEHAELRIARREERERA
BEVERGAEE R - AMERH
TRERBERAIRZAS N Z (BRI E
BE - AREHE

- BBAMERAZBRRAAE T
Al

- REREEZBHREFEEZE
BRI

AEBEEFGEERRER R B
SHBAZEMNSBEELERNE -
ERSFFEAZMEMNEHMEE - A
SEeERNFERASHME BEX
5 B TE 3 B R AR AR FEUR P AT A ()

MEREE (TReEEEEENXN) t|j
BRE AIBZEERBREER
ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬂ’\]iﬂ/f\# ' L\M’Etljiﬁw)ijzﬁ
At o AAIRERHE T A & E R
EHH%*ﬁ’»ﬁ@ﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬂmﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi@
BRZEE

A BB ERETRABHENARTERZ
ERREYR ST 2R MR E BT
BEEE ABERERNAEERAER
FERIARBSRE (PEERAREEN
AREEEBR)  BZEeREERSE
BERMENHTREZHEAE - BENKR
HEEEE AR A MR BESH

that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of assets is impaired includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about the following loss events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

e abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

e the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the
Group would not otherwise consider;

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

¢ the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or

e observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the
group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
group; or

— economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets
in the group.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant.
For exposures which are not individually significant, the Group will
assess impairment either individually or collectively. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment oss is or continues to be recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
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use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
inthe income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument'’s fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of estimated future cash flows of
a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result
from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral,
whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics
which are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups
of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all
amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being
evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual
cash flows of the assets in the group and historical l0ss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the
group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did
not affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based
and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that
do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in related
observable data from period to period which are indicative of changes
in the probability of losses in the group and their magnitude. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows
are reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between
loss estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related
allowance for loan impairment at the discretion of the Credit
Committee. Such loans are written off after all the necessary
procedures have been completed and the amount of the l0ss has been
determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off decrease the amount of the allowance for loan impairment in the
income statement.

If, ina subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of
the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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2.7

(b) Assets carried at fair value

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
income statement — is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in income statement, the impairment 10ss is
reversed through the income statement.

(c) Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment or
individually significant and whose terms have been renegotiated are
no longer considered to be past due but are treated as renegotiated
loans.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. All the
financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at
fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position include (i)
notes and Transferable Loan Certificates issued under the Debt Issuance
Programme (“DIP"), (i) notes offered to retail investors through the placing
banks in standalone retail bond issues and under the Retail Bond Issuance
Programme (“RBIP") and (iii) notes issued under the Medium Term Note
Programme (“MTN"). The Mortgage-Backed Securities (“MBS”) issued by
the SPEs through the MBS Programme and Bauhinia MBS Programme
are recorded as mortgage-backed securities issued in the statement of
financial position on consolidation of the SPES. These notes (including
MBS) are initially designated as either (i) financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss or (i) other financial liabilities.

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative instruments)
designated as hedged items under a fair value hedge and at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition are carried at fair value, with
changes in fair value being recorded in the income statement.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are initially recognised
at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration received, net of
transaction costs incurred. The notes are subsequently stated at
amortised costs; any difference between proceeds net of transaction
costs and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the debt securities using the effective interest
method.
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On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains or losses,
being the difference between the redemption/repurchase amount and
the carrying amount, are recognised in the income statement in the
period in which the redemption/repurchase takes place.

2.8 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices
in active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition
is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration given
or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by
comparison with other observable current market transactions in the
same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on
a valuation technigue whose variables include only data from observable
markets. When such evidence exists, the Group recognises profits on
day 1.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the
host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain
derivatives as either: (i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedge); or, (i) hedges of highly
probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised asset or liability,
or a forecast transaction (cash flow hedge). Hedge accounting is used for
derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the relationship
between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(@) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualified as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or
liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.
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2.9

2.10

2.11

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the
effective interest method is used, is amortised to income statement
over the period to maturity.

S
=

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualified as cash flow hedges are recognised in
equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income
statement in the periods in which the hedged item will affect income
statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is
recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in
equity is immediately transferred to the income statement.

(c) Derivatives at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative instruments entered into as economic hedges that do
not qualify for hedge accounting are held at fair value through profit
or loss. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument are
recognised immediately in the income statement.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held for sale and
reported in “Other assets” and the relevant loans are derecognised. The
repossessed collateral assets are measured at lower of carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group that allocates
resources to and assesses the performance of the operating segments
of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive Officer as its
chief operating decision maker.
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Income directly associated with each segment is included in determining
segment performance. Funding costs are allocated to each segment
by way of internal fund transfer pricing mechanisms. Cost allocation
is based on the direct costs incurred by the respective segment and
apportionment of management overheads.

2.12 Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

(b

=

-~

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
inwhich the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company'’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items held at fair value
through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items classified
as available-for-sale financial assets, are included in the fair value
reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group's entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

e Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

e Income and expenses for each income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions); and

e All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Exchange differences arising from the above process are reported
in shareholders’ equity as translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings
and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such

EBRB\EFZFFR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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2.13

2.14

2.15

investments, are taken to other comprehensive income. When
a foreign operation is disposed of, or partially disposed of, such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives.

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures

over the unexpired period of the lease
over the unexpired period of the lease

Computer 3 years
Office equipment 3years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount. It is included in the income statement.

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entity, and other non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available for use are
not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised. Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
from investment in the subsidiary, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income tax payable on profits is recognised as an expense in the period
in which profits arise. The tax effects of income tax losses available
for carry-forward are recognised as an asset when it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which these losses can
be utilised.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale
investments and cash flow hedges, which are charged or credited
directly to equity, is also credited or charged directly to equity and is
subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the
deferred gain or loss.

2.16 Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long-service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of each
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or paternity leave are
recognised when the absence occurs.

b

=

Bonus plans

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit after
certain adjustments. The Company recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.

(c) Pension obligations

The Company offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are generally
held in separate trustee — administered funds. These pension plans
are generally funded by payments from employees and by the
Company.

The Company’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
scheme and defined contribution scheme are expensed as incurred
and are reduced by the portion of employer contributions being
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to full
vesting of the employer contributions.
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(b)

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Company
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed
to either: terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal;
or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of each reporting period date are discounted
to present value.

2.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events where it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation.

2.18 Leases

(@) Operating leases

=

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. The Group entered into operating leases primarily as lessee.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has
expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of
penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination
takes place.

Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. The Group
entered into finance leases primarily as lessor. Finance leases are
capitalised as receivables at the lease’s commencement at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The difference between the gross receivable
and the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned
finance income. Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease
using the net investment method, which reflects a constant periodic
rate of return. Hire purchase contracts having the characteristics of
a finance lease are accounted for in the same manner as finance
leases. Impairment allowances are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in Note 2.6.
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2.19

2.20

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months' maturity
from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances with banks and
other financial institutions.

Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business of the Group is accounted for on the
annual accounting basis. Under the annual accounting approach, the
Group makes provisions based on credible estimates of future income
and outgoings to determine the underwriting result for the current
accounting period. The underwriting result includes any adjustments
arising from the correction of the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written through the Authorized
Institutions as defined in accordance with Banking Ordinance during an
accounting period. The gross premiums after deduction of discounts,
include the reinsurance premiums to be paid to the approved reinsurers,
the risk premiums and servicing fees earned by the Group. The net
premiums are recognised as income on a time-apportioned basis during
the time the insurance coverage is effective.

Unearned premiums represent that portion of net premiums written
which are estimated to relate to risks and services subsequent to the
end of each reporting period.

Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims incurred but not
reported and loss reserve at the end of each reporting period. For risk-
sharing business, 50% of the net risk premiums earned in a year is set aside
as a Contingency Reserve for a reasonable period of time and maintained
in accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as considered by
directors to be appropriate. Withdrawals from the Contingency Reserve
can be made to meet excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of the Contingency
Reserve can be released to general reserve.

Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into by the Group with
reinsurers under which the Group is compensated for losses on one or
more insurance contracts issued by the Group. Benefits to which the
Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are recognised
as reinsurance assets. These assets consist of claims recoverable
from reinsurers and receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance
contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured
consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract.
Reinsurance assets are primarily premiums for reinsurance contracts
and are recognised as an expense.

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED



2.21

2.22

MBEREH
BBERNETREBESKAIREEE
oo W FERTIERRA A - REBZAR
R A AN EBRFRIAE AR EEE RRAR
BEIR A 15 T BRSNS AN B B SRR P EE £
1Bk -

FBERNSIZIELERE BORFER
B R TER o VITHERIR - AEERER
BRAERNETARREB G ERF 7
B BE IRBERINEE| EENE
RS ) 2 T AR R 2 T AR R AT S RO B
BEE - WEERERET ZEMNED
RIREEREZIE ©

358
RERPREFRKE KB EAERBR
TR AR A S IR EE

I ERER
1% S BT RS

AEEFATEEBR () BERIBHER
Aa () BEBETEFRBEEESESR
& R (i) AR AGERNIZBE R
RAEBEESMEEBERNRIBER &
Hizdr - RIFEME - NEBXBE
ZHEFERERTAEH WMTABER
T B EBRITETA -

AEBNEBERAZEMHEERE  ZFX
B Rt - fHE - AEREE —ERE
MERHKARAS - AEBREFMHER
HBIEhEEEEAR

rEREEERS & HIREERAIRL
EECEBEANERER (BREMEAIE
MBER) - SBBRRMREHRSEEZRE
2 (BEEEZEe EEAEEEZSE
g RHIBUEZEERLERREEEZE
EHEER R YAEERRERER

i3

REEWE RRBRRHE
ERRRGE - EEABEEZEEER

i
ilf
W
pil
R
R
s

T80 » AN - AEERH B RBIES
[ E IR R B AN - REE A E AR
REERR - RBERBRETZEAR (2
EERR R ERERE) o

2.21

2.22

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are given to investors of mortgage-backed securities
issued. These are non-insurance contracts that require the Group to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for aloss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements
at fair value on the date that the guarantee was given. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group's liabilities under such guarantees are
measured at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and
the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised.
Any changes in the liability relating to financial guarantees are taken to
the income statement.

Dividend

Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each reporting period is
disclosed as a separate component of shareholders’ equity.

Financial risk management
Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group during the year are (i) to purchase
portfolios of mortgages or loans; (ii) to raise financing for its purchase of
assets through issuance of debt securities; and (jii) to provide mortgage
insurance cover to Authorized Institutions in respect of mortgage loans
originated by such Authorized Institutions and secured by residential
properties in Hong Kong. By their nature, the Group’s activities are
principally related to the use of financial instruments including cash,
loans, debts and derivatives.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of
some degree of risk or combination of risks. The Group manages the risks
in a prudent manner in sustaining the Group's financial performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at corporate
level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide risk matters including
financial and non-financial risks. The policies and limits are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees, including the
Credit Committee, Asset and Liability Committee, Transaction Approval
Committee and Operational Risk Committee which report to Corporate
Risk Management Committee.

The Credit Committee oversees the credit policies and standards for asset
acquisition and mortgage insurance. The Asset and Liability Committee
(“ALCQ") oversees the implementation of market risk management
and investment guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. In
addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the independent review of risk
management and the control environment. The most important types of
risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk which includes currency
risk and interest rate risk.
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3.2 Creditrisk

The Group’s principal financial assets are its loan portfolio, investment
securities, cash and short-term funds. The credit risk on liquid funds and
investment securities is limited because the counterparties are mainly
sovereigns, quasi-sovereign agencies, banks and companies with very
high credit ratings.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan portfolio, which
is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable to pay amounts in full when
due. Allowance for impairment is provided for losses that have been
incurred at the end of the reporting period.

Significant changes in the economy and local property market could
result in losses that are different from those provided for at the end of the
reporting period. The Group therefore has a prudent policy for managing
its exposure to credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the asset and mortgage insurance portfolios,
the Group adheres to a four-pronged approach to (i) select Approved
Sellers carefully, (i) adopt prudent asset purchasing criteria and insurance
eligibility criteria, (iii) conduct effective due diligence reviews and (iv)
ensure adequate protection for higher-risk assets or transactions.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on mortgage
loans. Risk exposure is spread over a large number of customers and
counterparties. The underlying collaterals on the Group’s mortgage
exposures are located in Hong Kong and Korea.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special attention paid
to problem loans. Operation units will monitor these loans and take
recovery action such as establishing relief plan with borrowers in order to
maximise recoveries. Loan impairment assessment is performed regularly
and impairment allowance is charged to income statement in accordance
with the guidelines approved by the Credit Committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation, which are subject to regular
review. The principal collateral types for loan portfolio are mortgages
over properties, reserve funds and deferred consideration used for
credit enhancement.

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loan portfolio is
determined by the nature of the instrument. Debt securities are generally
unsecured, with the exception of asset-backed securities and similar
instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial assets.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures are monitored
against counterparty risk limits established in accordance with the
investment guidelines and credit risk policy of the Group. These
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counterparty risk limits are subject to regular review by the Credit
Committee on a semi-annual basis. At any one time, the amount subject
to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of instruments that are
favourable to the Group (i.e. assets where their fair value is positive),
which in relation to derivatives is only a small fraction of the contract, or
notional values used to express the volume of instruments outstanding.
This credit risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits
with counterparties, together with potential exposures from market
movements.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in cash, securities
or equities is made in the expectation of a corresponding receipt in cash,
securities or equities. Daily settlement limits are established for each
counterparty to cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from
the Group’s market transactions on any single day.

(@ Maximum exposures to credit risk before taking account of
collateral held or other credit enhancements are analysed as
follows:

AEEH AAR]
The Group The Company
R-B—BE H-TTAF  R-B-BE K -TINF
+=-HA=+-8B +-A=+—H +=A=+—-B |+-F=1+—~H
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FAIT Fi#T FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets:
ReERGHES Cash and short-term funds 5,902,649 4,067,798 5,769,509 3,924,752
PRI B Interest and remittance
[E X receivables 657,150 710,530 645,232 698,809
MTESmIA Derivative financial instruments 1,396,621 1,317,375 1,372,522 1,273,102
EREEF5E Loan portfolio, net 35,258,937 43,788,716 31,392,398 40,817,163
BHIEE Investment securities:
- AEHERES — available-for-sale debt
securities 1,934,627 2,587,344 1,934,627 2,587,344
- HFHEZEHES - held-to-maturity debt
securities 8,033,133 5,817,998 8,033,133 5,817,998
TERFIE & K& Prepayments, deposits and
Hih&ERE other assets 27,659 32,595 29,220 36,681
BRBREE Reinsurance assets 204,891 266,101 204,891 266,101
BEAERINER :  Off-balance sheet exposures:
BIISYELR Financial guarantees
(IRiIBEH (bt E (contractual amount under
B&aX)e5E) the MBS programmes) - - 805,868 1,277,647
48 R R IR Total risk-in-force 17,629,290 14,920,287 18,170,896 14,919,441
71,044,957 73,508,744 68,358,296 71,619,038
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(b) Credit quality of the loan portfolio is analysed as follows:

REE AAR]
The Group The Company

R-B-¥F R-TINT  R-P-BF HA-TIAF

+=A=+—8B +=A=+—H +=A=+—8B +=A=+—H

As at As at As at As at

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2010 2009 2010 2009

FHET FAT FHET FHAIT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R EAIA AR E Neither past due nor impaired 34,647,589 42,854,818 30,842,770 39,972,073
BER{B KR (E Past due but not impaired 613,099 942,532 551,377 853,688
ERE Impaired 278 5,377 278 5,377
BERMAEERE Gross loan portfolio 35,260,966 43,802,727 31,394,425 40,831,138
B ERE Allowance for loan impairment (2,029) (14,011) (2,027) (13,975)
35,258,937 43,788,716 31,392,398 40,817,163

A 2 5 HR AR B 8 7T AR E 8 B 3R
ENEEERA2EAEERMANNA
SRR R TRIMA

The credit quality of loans that were neither past due nor impaired
as at the end of the reporting period can be assessed by reference
to the internal rating system adopted by the Group.

& Fi/NC]
The Group The Company
R-T—FF RZZTNF R-T—FF RZZZTNF
+=A=+—H +=A=+—H +=A=+—8 +=-A=+—H
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FHT FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&Rl Grades:
123% 1t03 34,621,215 42,794,073 30,819,076 39,916,630
48 4 29 = 29 =
5% 5 26,345 60,745 23,665 55,443
34,647,589 42,854,818 30,842,770 39,972,073

1E3REREEERRKE LA
REREE R - WiFA NRKFHEER
L HEhnsRiE e MR ERE RO E MM

A BIEAEBRRE XA TR
IR EE S 2 B N 5s 16 B S 4K 1 am Y

e~
BN °

5 R BAEH AT B AR MR A AR o
ERIEROER

Grades 1 to 3 include loans with either no credit risk or no previous
past due history; and with different levels of credit enhancements
in addition to the collateral held as security.

Grade 4 includes loans with previous past due history and with
different levels of credit enhancement in addition to the collateral

held as security.

Grade 5 includes loans with previous past due history and with
collateral held as security.

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED



125

(c) BHAERBEENER (c) Loans past due but not impaired
LATARERARE BHERBER The analysis below shows the gross amount of loans that were past
ER@EAT : due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period:
NEE VAN
The Group The Company

(d

=

(e)

R-B-8B& R_ZTTNF R-B-8B& RN _ZTTNF
+=-A=+—-B8 +=-A=+—H +=A=+—H +=A=+—H

As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009
FET FAT THET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B HRRRE ] Past due:
=@AKIAT Three months or less 609,632 933,096 547,910 844,512
FNEASKIAT - Six months or less but over
BiEEA=(EA three months 1,931 4,316 1,931 4,056
A7 8 A Over six months 1,536 5,120 1,536 5,120
e Total 613,099 942,532 551,377 853,688
EHmEEAMEE  Fair value of collateral and other
gz JEcrei=yiif: o) credit enhancement
N¥E 2,528,733 2,753,090 2,373,963 2,515,417
EEBRRENER (d) Individually impaired loans
AEBERARBRFAFAEERR R The individually impaired loans of the Group and the Company before
EERHMSEEEENRSREN taking into account the cash flows from collateral held and credit
BRI EERE278,000%8 T (ZFF enhancement amounted to HK$278,000 (2009: HK$5,377,000).
JUE : 5,377,000 7T) °
REERARRRIFFERERDRE The fair value of related collateral held and credit enhancement
B2 HEhnaa a1 A9 A A A 388,000 78 of the Group and the Company amounted to HK$388,000 (2009:
T (ZZFZNF : 9,177,00087T) ° HK$9,177,000).
EEHENER (e) Renegotiated loans
B EANEFRIEBANERAM BN Renegotiated loans are those that have been restructured due to
{EMEHFABRNER  NEBE % deterioration in the borrower’s financial position and where the
EERIEREEMIBRA T AT EENE Group has made concessions that it would not otherwise consider.
%o RAERE - ZAE@HBNEFRE Following restructuring, a previously overdue customer account is
EEIEEARAE - WEEMELRP £ R restored to a normal status and managed together with other similar
BIE - PEBER KERNIRERARE accounts. Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators
] REHE A S (ST IR TR IR SR B R - or criteria which indicate that payment will most likely continue. These
ZEBRSHEETES - RADBH policies are kept under continuous review. Renegotiated loans that
FRENEEENERR =T —ZTF would otherwise be past due or impaired totalled HK$10,122,000
+=A=+—H%10,122,0007% T (= as at 31 December 2010 (2009: HK$3,304,000). A renegotiated loan
TN : 3,304,000/87T) © BRIFEE will continue to be disclosed as such unless the loan has been
PR EE] 163K 18 B 458 SR S 7~ (A performing in accordance with the rescheduled terms for a period
A RABEENERGEER LR of six months.
R o
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(f) Repossessed collateral

The Group and the Company obtained assets by taking possession
of collateral held as security, as follows:

BREE
Carrying Amount
2010 2009
FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
(ERSSY/ES Residential property 3,861 3,317

WEEEEERRITER T &R
& AGEREARED REEES -
U Bl 2 B IS AR S 2R A R R At
BERT °
RIFZERILENIKRERS - AAF
EARENFEREEEFREBE
o RERABEEZEHRERIE
DHRELHETRERES -

RIBINBEEBRBOFETE (REE
- BEEEE)  TIRZMIIRIE
FPE BRI EHETE R HPIED AT o WNFE
HAGRAFE  AIRAESFEITA
EREAR ©

€

=

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable, with the
proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness. Repossessed
property is classified in the statement of financial position within
other assets.

Investment securities

According to the Investment Guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors, the Group can only invest in debt securities with a certain
minimum credit rating. The proportion of investment according to
rating categories is monitored and reviewed by ALCO.

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
designation as at the end of the reporting period, based on external
credit agency’s ratings (Standard and Poor’s, Moody's and Fitch). In
the absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings for the issuers are
reported.

BEE

FHIE S

o HEES Held-to-
AEEREAT Available-for- maturity FEE]
)Y~‘:—§$ +=A=+-8 sale securities securities Total
The Group and the Company FHET FHET FHET
As at 31 December 2010 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa 795,142 2,367,263 3,162,405
AA- £ AA+/Aa3 E Aa1l AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aa1 1,139,485 5,293,172 6,432,657
A- E A+/A3E A1 A- to A+/A3 to A1 - 372,698 372,698
4E Total 1,934,627 8,033,133 9,967,760

BHEZE

FIHRRE 5

Al & Held-to-
REE A AT Avalilable-for- maturity 4azE
WomEhaE+—F=+—0 sale securities securities Total
The Group and the Company FHT FHT FAT
As at 31 December 2009 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa 581,306 642,867 1,224,173
AA- & AA+/Aa3 & Aal AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aa1l 2,006,038 4,330,310 6,336,348
A- & A+/A3E A1 A-t0 A+/A3 10 A1 = 844,821 844,821
ek Total 2,587,344 5,817,998 8,405,342
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T A=+—BFT B 20EERBER
2R 12 18 A 89 F1 24 A F 58 R 249 3,000,000
BT (ZZTZT AL : 18,700,000/87T) » X
2 B 2R 2R 12 18 A B9 7 SR SF 88 A
#93,000,00087T (ZZZ A4 : 13,000,000
PBIT) °

RZE—ZTF+_A=+—8 " HxBF
KT T 20EE2E - & AR B A G A
15 5 2 #91,000,0008 T (ZZE TN F
54000008 7L) * R=ZFE—FF+= A
=+ — BRI RIS 1E # 25 1,000,000 75
T (ZZEZAE + TF2,900,0007%TT)
Al R FIT EB20EER - FAKH
A1 328 A 45 38 A0 491,000,000/ T (ZEZ
714 5,000,000 JT) 0 KT A
411,000,000 BT (ZZTZNF - BN
2,000,000787T) °

3.3 Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open
positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are
exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, credit
spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The Group’s exposures
to market risk primarily arise from the interest rate management of the
entity’s financial instruments of different repricing characteristics. The
Group hedges a major proportion of its existing interest rate risk of the
fixed-rate bond issuance using fair value hedges in the form of interest
rate swaps by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match the
floating-rate assets.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken by the Treasury
Department using risk limits approved by the Board of Directors. Strategies
on interest rate risk management, financing, hedging, investments are
formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are held to review the latest
conditions in the financial markets and the asset-liability portfolio mix.
The Treasury Department is responsible for monitoring financial market
movements and executing transactions in the cash, derivatives and debt
markets in accordance with the strategies laid down by ALCO. The middle
office monitors the compliance of risk limits and performs stress tests to
assess the potential size of losses that could arise in extreme conditions.
The results of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.

A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to monitor the
sensitivity of projected net interest income under different interest
rate scenarios and to mitigate the negative impact through hedging
operations. A 20 basis points parallel downward shift of the interest rate
curve as at 31 December 2010 would decrease the future net interest
income for the next 12 months by around HK$3 million (2009: HK$18.7
million) and increase by around HK$3 million (2009: HK$13 million) for a
similar upward parallel shift.

As at 31 December 2010, if interest rates at that date had experienced
a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit before tax for the year
would have been around HK$1 million lower (2009: HK$5.4 million) and
the reserve would have been higher by less than HK$1 million (2009:
HK$2.9 million lower) as at 31 December 2010. If interest rates had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift upwards, profit before tax
for the year would have been higher by around HK$1 million (2009: HK$5
million) and the reserve would have been lower by less than HK$1 million
(2009: HK$2 million higher).
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As at 31 December 2010, with all other variables held constant, if the HK
dollar had weakened by 100 price interest points against the US dollar,
profit before tax for the year would have been around HK$8 million higher
(2009: HK$9.3 million). Conversely, if the HK dollar had strengthened by
100 price interest points against the US dollar, profit before tax for the year
would have been around HK$8 million lower (2009: HK$9.3 million).

As at 31 December 2010, with all other variables held constant, if the
HK dollar had weakened by 100 price interest points against foreign
currencies other than US dollar, profit before tax for the year would
have been around HK$12 million higher (2009: HK$2.2 million lower).
Conversely, if the HK dollar had strengthened by 100 price interest
points against foreign currencies other than US dollar, profit before tax
for the year would have been around HK$12 million lower (2009: HK$2.2
million higher).

The 20 basis points and 100 price interest points increase or decrease
represent management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rate and exchange rates over the period until the next reporting
period end.

(@) Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on its financial position
and cash flows. The Board sets allowable currencies for investment
purposes. The ALCO sets limits on the currency exposure that may
be undertaken, which is monitored daily.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency exchange rate risk. Included in the tables are the Group’s
assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by currency.
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Hith s
BT ¥ Other foreign POk
HKD usb currencies Total
AEE FHET TFHET FTHET FHET
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
N-T—FE As at 31 December 2010
+=-A=+—H
BE Assets
REREHES Cash and short-term funds 4,297,927 689,202 915,520 5,902,649
JE USRI 2. K% B 3R Interest and remittance
receivables 480,028 169,959 7,163 657,150
PTEEmMITE Derivative financial instruments 1,202,260 194,361 - 1,396,621
BERAEFEE Loan portfolio, net 24,015,262 11,243,675 - 35,258,937
BHEE - Investment securities:
- AEEE - available-for-sale 1,698,952 1,705,014 - 3,403,966
- HEZEEH — held-to-maturity 3,855,238 3,793,354 384,541 8,033,133
HEEHEEIRE Investment in a jointly
controlled entity - - 130,720 130,720
BEEE Fixed assets 15,980 - 1,272 17,252
TERFIE « mE R Prepayments, deposits and
Hith&E other assets 27,504 - 155 27,659
BREREE Reinsurance assets 204,891 - - 204,891
BERE Total assets 35,798,042 17,795,565 1,439,371 55,032,978
=L Liabilities
FEATFI & Interest payable 382,750 104,310 6,493 493,553
FERTRRZR « FEFFISZ  Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,288,556 664 1,917 4,291,137
PTEEMTE Derivative financial instruments 20,819 23,553 - 44,372
FERTFEIR Tax payable 133,560 - - 133,560
BEEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 37,167 - - 37,167
REEE Insurance liabilities 1,773,665 - - 1,773,665
BBITERES Debt securities issued 29,630,968 8,017,354 1,479,413 39,127,735
ERETIZBES Mortgage-backed securities
issued 1,529,749 - - 1,529,749
BE#ERE Total liabilities 37,797,234 8,145,881 1,487,823 47,430,938
e Net position (1,999,192) 9,649,684 (48,452) 7,602,040
BEBBERIIN Off-balance sheet net notional
FEEEE T position* 2,167,017  (3,352,018) 1,438,009 253,008

FEERBRINFEEFABINEITIES
BTA (EERNREASEREERE)
MER) NEZSRELNTFENZER -

movements and their fair values.
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HithyhEs
AT %t Other foreign FLk]
HKD usb currencies Total
EAF FHERT FHET FHET FHET
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-T—FEF As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—AH
&E Assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 4,281,306 689,202 799,001 5,769,509
FEUH S M FE R Interest and remittance
receivables 468,279 169,959 6,994 645,232
TESmIA Derivative financial instruments 1,178,161 194,361 - 1,372,522
EXEE TR Loan portfolio, net 20,148,723 11,243,675 - 31,392,398
BHRRE Investment securities:
- AIHE — available-for-sale 1,698,952 1,705,014 - 3,403,966
- BEZREH - held-to-maturity 3,855,238 3,793,354 384,541 8,033,133
B A RIRE Investment in subsidiaries 3,103,572 - 102,060 3,205,632
HEESEEIEE Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - 120,554 120,554
EE&E Fixed assets 15,980 - - 15,980
FERRIE - ek Prepayments, deposits and
Hih &= other assets 29,220 - - 29,220
BRREE Reinsurance assets 204,891 - - 204,891
BERE Total assets 34,984,322 17,795,565 1,413,150 54,193,037
BfE Liabilities
FERTAILE Interest payable 380,428 104,310 6,493 491,231
FERTBRZX « FEfFFSZ  Accounts payable, accrued
MEMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,791,012 641 613 4,792,266
THEERTIA Derivative financial instruments 20,819 23,553 - 44,372
FERFIE Tax payable 134,532 - - 134,532
REFIREE Deferred tax liabilities 37,167 - - 37,167
RiREE Insurance liabilities 1,773,665 - - 1,773,665
BEEITEBE S Debt securities issued 29,909,119 8,017,354 1,479,413 39,405,886
BERHE Total liabilities 37,046,742 8,145,858 1,486,519 46,679,119
HEFsE Net position (2,062,420) 9,649,707 (73,369) 7,513,918
BEBBERIN Off-balance sheet net notional
FEERET position # 2,167,017 (3,352,018) 1,438,009 253,008

FEERBERINFRERREINEITES
BMTE (EZANREARARNEEKE
MER) LB EELNTENERE

# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference between
the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Company'’s exposure to currency
movements and their fair values.
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H At ot
BT EViv Other foreign Rk
HKD usD currencies Total
REE FABT FAT FAT FHT
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
R_ZTNF As at 31 December 2009
+=—A=+—8
BE Assets
REREHES Cash and short-term funds 3,065,437 895,247 107,114 4,067,798
JE SR 2. K% FE 3R Interest and remittance
receivables 495,299 207,063 8,168 710,530
PTEEmMITE Derivative financial instruments 1,249,113 68,262 - 1,317,375
BREAFEE Loan portfolio, net 29,289,381 14,499,335 - 43,788,716
BHIEE Investment securities:
- AEEE — available-for-sale 759,851 2,853,213 - 3,613,064
- BFEEEH — held-to-maturity 2,379,960 3,438,038 - 5,817,998
HEZEHEEIEE Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - 115,190 115,190
BEEE Fixed assets 19,000 - 2,257 21,257
TERFIR -« 'E Rk Prepayments, deposits and
Hith&EE other assets 32,375 - 220 32,595
BREEE Reinsurance assets 266,101 - - 266,101
LERE Total assets 37,556,517 21,961,158 232,949 59,750,624
afE Liabilities
FERTAILE Interest payable 307,265 130,390 8,132 445,787
FERTRRZX « BT Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,272,541 598 1,038 4,274,177
PTESMTE Derivative financial instruments 107,872 50,374 - 158,246
FERIFIE Tax payable 138,329 - - 138,329
BERIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 15,209 - - 15,209
R EE Insurance liabilities 1,462,318 - - 1,462,318
BEITERES Debt securities issued 34,214,500 8,383,249 1,897,324 44,495,073
EBITIZBFES Mortgage-backed securities
issued 2,020,394 - - 2,020,394
BEERE Total liabilities 42,538,428 8,564,611 1,906,494 53,009,533
HEFE Net position (4,981,911) 13,396,547 (1,673,545) 6,741,091
BEEBBERIIN Off-balance sheet net notional
FaEFE position* 4,388,318 (6,164,030) 1,869,013 93,301

FEERBERINEREFRIEINEITES
BTA (E2RNBEAREREEKE
MER) NEESEEE AT ENER °

movements and their fair values.

B—
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# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference between
the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency
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Hth ok
7STT ET Other foreign ok
HKD usb currencies Total
ZN/NG]| FHET FHT FHT FHT
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZTTNF As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+—"H
BE Assets
RekRHES Cash and short-term funds 3,029,501 895,248 3 3,924,752
FEWR S F FE R Interest and remittance
receivables 483,614 207,063 8,132 698,809
TESRITA Derivative financial instruments 1,204,840 68,262 - 1,273,102
EFAEFEE Loan portfolio, net 26,317,828 14,499,335 - 40,817,163
BHRRE Investment securities:
- AIftHE — available-for-sale 759,851 2,853,213 - 3,613,064
o - held-to-maturity 2,379,960 3,438,038 - 5,817,998
B QAR E Investment in subsidiaries 1,631,520 - 102,060 1,733,580
HEEHEEIRE Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - 120,554 120,554
EEEE Fixed assets 19,000 - - 19,000
FERRIE - Rk Prepayments, deposits and
Hh &= other assets 36,681 - - 36,681
BRIREE Reinsurance assets 266,101 - - 266,101
BERE Total assets 36,128,896 21,961,159 230,749 58,320,804
BE Liabilities
FERTAILE Interest payable 303,695 130,390 8,132 442,217
FERTBRX « FERIFZ  Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,909,762 574 613 4,910,949
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments 107,872 50,374 - 158,246
JERTFRIR Tax payable 131,850 - - 131,850
EEFIAAE Deferred tax liabilities 15,213 - - 15,213
R EE Insurance liabilities 1,462,318 - - 1,462,318
BBITERES Debt securities issued 34,214,500 8,383,249 1,897,324 44,495,073
BEEE Total liabilities 41,145,210 8,564,587 1,906,069 51,615,866
R FE Net position (5,016,314) 13,396,572 (1,675,320) 6,704,938
BEAGBRID Off-balance sheet net notional
FERERRE position * 4,388,318 (6,164,030) 1,869,013 93,301

FEEABRINEREZRREINETES
BMTEA (EZRNREARRRRNEEKE
MER) NEESEEELANTENER °

ReRBRAVENEAR

RekEFIEARDESRIANRK
FAS BB TS E R BT
AR - ATEHNERRDES R

SR EER o 31T 5 A RIKF HY K
GEKAEEN A FENERRE &R
ERENKER - HRFXRER - 8

Z A Be 2 HERE - BN A RBETRRTHY

(b)

# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference between
the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Company'’s exposure to currency
movements and their fair values.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the effects of
fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both
its fair value and cash flow risks. Interest margins may increase as
a result of such changes but may reduce or create l0sses in the

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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event that unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets limits on
the level of interest rate mismatch that may be undertaken, which
is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to interest rate
risks. Included in the tables are the Group's assets and liabilities at
carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing
or maturity dates. The carrying amounts of derivative financial
instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Group'’s

EaRR

) BEREESIRN [ TR S EH

exposure to interest rate movements, are included under the heading

B e “Non-interest bearing”.
ZEANLE
—@EAUL F— —EE
—@RRK E={@ER over ERE Fetl
Upto Over 1 month 3months  Over 1 year RELLE  Non-interest o]
1month  to 3 months to1year  to5years Over5years bearing Total
FEE FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
The Group HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
gt St 23 As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
BE Assets
BeREHHES Cash and short-term funds 5,205,425 413,890 238,879 - - 44,455 5,902,649
FECRIL B R EE R Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 657,150 657,150
TESMTIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,396,621 1,396,621
EREEFE Loan portfolio, net 25,697,371 9,346,147 140,921 53,832 20,666 - 35,258,937
BHRE - Investment securities:
- AHEE - available-for-sale 989,784 944,843 - - - 1,469,339 3,403,966
- BEZRIH - held-to-maturity 349,137 65,895 718,989 4,218,276 2,680,836 - 8,033,133
HEZGHIEERE Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - - - - 130,720 130,720
BEEEE Fixed assets - - - - - 17,252 17,252
FERRIE - BE Xk Prepayments, deposits and
Hih &= other assets - - - - - 27,659 27,659
BRBEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 204891 204,891
BEMBE Total assets 32,241,717 10,770,775 1,098,789 4,272,108 2,701,502 3,948,087 55,032,978
=1 Liabilities
FERFIE Interest payable - - - - - 493553 493,553
FEABRERN - FEABISZ  Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,163,057 - - - - 128,080 4,291,137
TESRTIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 44,372 44,372
FERIFRIR Tax payable - - - - - 133560 133,560
RIEFIEE & Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - 37,167 37,167
=R Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1,773,665 1,773,665
BRITEBE Debt securities issued 6,876,400 4,862,849 9,290,827 13,051,992 5,045,667 - 39,127,735
BBITIREE Mortgage-backed securities
issued 805,650 - 724,099 - - - 1,529,749
BfEEE Total liabilities 11,845,107 4,862,849 10,014,926 13,051,992 5,045,667 2,610,397 47,430,938
FIBBRERROLE * Total interest sensitivity gap* 20,396,610 5,907,926 (8,916,137) (8,779,884) (2,344,165)
FEFTETH Interest rate derivatives
(FAEFEY (notional amounts of
ZHELEH) net position) (12,049,324) (13,823,333) 9,107,338 12,491,300 4,527,027

*ﬂiﬁ)\?ﬁi%%ﬂiﬂéi B BITE
BHEREBBITRBESNHTE -

* pefore the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt
securities and the mortgage-backed securities issued.
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=@EAUL
—EAUL -5 —FuE
—f@ERR ZE=@A over ERFE TR
Upto Over 1 month 3months  Over 1year AFLE Non-interest g
1month  to 3 months to 1year to 5years Over 5 years bearing Total
AT FiER FERT FiER FET TR FET TR
The Company HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
R-T—FF As at 31 December 2010
+=-A=+—H
BE Assets
BeNEHRES Cash and short-term funds 5,124,400 378,500 226,950 - - 39,659 5,769,509
FEWLF B R FE R Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 645,232 645,232
TESRTIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,372,522 1,372,522
EREE 58 Loan portfolio, net 21,838,606 9,346,147 137,831 52,929 16,885 - 31,392,398
BHRE Investment securities:
- AH#EE - available-for-sale 989,784 944,843 - - - 1,469,339 3,403,966
- FEZEEHH - held-to-maturity 349,137 65,895 718,989 4,218,276 2,680,836 - 8,033,133
M A RIRE Investment in subsidiaries 3,094,913 - 3,045 889 3725 103,060 3,205,632
HEEHERIRE Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - - - - 120,554 120,554
BE&E Fixed assets - - - - - 15,980 15,980
FERRE - B2 Rk Prepayments, deposits and
Hih &= other assets - - - - - 29,220 29,220
BRI EE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 204,891 204,891
AERE Total assets 31,396,840 10,735,385 1,086,815 4,272,094 2,701,446 4,000,457 54,193,037
=1 Liabilities
FERT RIS Interest payable - - - - - 491,231 491,231
FEHBRSR » FEfHFSX  Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,630,792 - - - - 161,474 4,792,266
TESHIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 44,372 44,372
FERH IR Tax payable - - - - - 134532 134,532
BIEFIHAE Deferred tax liabilities _ - _ _ _ 37,167 37,167
RERAE Insurance liabilities - - _ - - 1,773,665 1,773,665
BBITERES Debt securities issued 7,154,551 4,862,849 9,290,827 13,051,992 5,045,667 - 39,405,886
BB Total liabilities 11,785,343 4,862,849 9,290,827 13,051,992 5,045,667 2,642,441 46,679,119
FISSREROLEEE *  Total interest sensitivity gap* 19,611,497 5,872,536 (8,204,012) (8,779,898) (2,344,221)
FIERFTETR Interest rate derivatives
(FAisEn (notional amounts of net
ZHELHE) position) (11,349,324) (14,523,333) 9,107,338 12,491,300 4,527,027

CRFATESRIASESHEBTE

* pefore the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt
securities issued.
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=EAMNE
—EAMNE B —EH
—fEAR Z={8R Over EhE et
Upto Over 1 month 3months  Over 1 year AFLAE  Non-interest kil
1month  to3months to 1 year to5years  Over 5years bearing Total
AEE FHT FHT FHT FHT FHET FHT FTHT
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZTTNFE+=H Asat31December 2009
=+-8
BE Assets
HekEHES Cash and short-term funds 3,660,995 342,787 5,679 - - 58,337 4,067,798
FE RIS R EE R Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 710,530 710,530
TESmIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1317375 1,317,375
B4 FE Loan portfolio, net 36,614,171 6,978,278 123,890 57,473 14,904 - 43,788,716
BHRE - Investment securities:
- AMEHE - available-for-sale 1,201,524 931,092 454,728 - - 1025720 3,613,064
- HHEZEH - held-to-maturity 502,010 1,000,024 741,741 3,097,888 476,335 - 5,817,998
HREGIEERE Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - - - - 115,190 115,190
EE&E Fixed assets - - - - - 21,257 21,257
ERRE - ZE Kk Prepayments, deposits and
Hih &= other assets - - - - - 32,595 32,595
BRI EE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 266,101 266,101
BEHE Total assets 41,978,700 9,252,181 1,326,038 3,155,361 491,239 3,547,105 59,750,624
afE Liabilities
FERTRILE Interest payable - - - - - 445,787 445,787
FETARFR ~ FEfTRZ  Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,133,740 - - - - 140437 4274177
TESHTIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 158,246 158,246
FE R IR Tax payable - - - - - 138,329 138,329
EERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - 15,209 15,209
REEBE Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1462318 1,462,318
BB TERES Debt securities issued 6,043,151 6,293,644 6,664,434 19,688,772 5,805,072 44,495,073
BBITIRBES Mortgage-backed securities issued 1,051,120 - 229116 740,158 - - 2020,3%
B a8 Total liabilities 11,228,011 6,293,644 6,893,550 20,428,930 5,805,072 2,360,326 53,009,533
S EUKERROAE5E * Total interest sensitivity gap* 30,750,689 2,958,537 (5,567,512) (17,273,569) (5,313,833)
MELTET A Interest rate derivatives
(R FEr (notional amounts of net
BESHE) position) (13,406,010) (13,453,873) 2,715,050 18,876,598 5,361,536

FRFEATESRTAEESHEHTE
BEFREBITIRBESNZE -

* pefore the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt

securities and the mortgage-backed securities issued.
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=fEAE
—EARE E—F —FpE
—fERRA Z=EA Over ERF et B
Upto Over 1 month 3months  Over 1year RFMKE  Non-interest Eot
1month  to3months to 1year toSyears  Over5years bearing Total
P /NE]] FHET T FHT T FHT FHT FHT
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—ETHEF As at 31 December 2009
+fﬁ =t+—A
EE Assets
ReEREHES Cash and short-term funds 3,550,348 325,750 - - - 48,654 3,924,752
JFEUCH B R FE 5k Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 698,809 698,809
TESRT A Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1273102 1,273,102
EEA HRE Loan portfolio, net 33,645,048 6,978,278 123,890 55,044 14,903 - 40,817,163
BHEE Investment securities:
- AEHE — available-for-sale 1,201,524 931,092 454,728 - - 1025720 3613064
- HAEEDH - held-to-maturity 502,010 1,000,024 741,741 3,097,888 476,335 - 5817998
B ATIEE Investment in subsidiaries 1,628,130 - - 2,390 - 103,060 1,733,580
HEEHEEERE Investment in a jointly controlled
entity = = = = = 120,554 120,554
EE&E Fixed assets - - - - - 19,000 19,000
TERRIE  Re Rk Prepayments, deposits and other
HihEE assets - - - - - 36,681 36,681
BREEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 266,101 266,101
BELE Total assets 40,527,060 9,235,144 1,320,359 3,155,322 491,238 3,591,681 58,320,804
=L Liabilities
FERHR B Interest payable - - - - - 442,217 442,217
FESERFR - FEfSFISZ  Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,724,843 = = = = 186,101 4,910,949
TTAESRT A Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 158,246 158,246
FERHEIE Tax payable - - - - - 131,850 131,850
EEMRIEAE Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - 15,213 15,213
ReaE Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1462318 1462318
BEEITEEES Debt securities issued 6,043,151 6,293,644 6,664,434 19,688,772 5,805,072 - 44,495,073
AfEmE Total liabilities 10,767,999 6,293,644 6,664,434 19,688,772 5,805,072 2,395,945 51,615,866
FESRXERRO4%8 * Total interest sensitivity gap* 29,759,061 2,941,500  (5,344,075) (16,533,450)  (5,313,834)
FIRPTAET A Interest rate derivatives (notional
(FRFEN amounts of net position)
LEEH) (12,481,010) (14,378,873) 2,715,050 18,876,598 5,361,536

*RAATESRTAS T BYHEHITE
EEFHZE -

3.4 REBEREME
mBETEBREAEEREEERE S ME
Iéiiik%?%&?% A ENERRERESHN

- AEEEBREAESRARRL -
jﬁEFﬁEIH ZHARAMR AR TR R
BEomARMRL - AEBERARE SRR
IRHEEBRERAEFHENEEERS -
EEABEEZEEEHNERDESHIR
ETEE

* pefore the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt
securities issued.

3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being able to repay its
payment obligations or to fund committed purchases of loans. Liquidity
risk is managed by monitoring the actual inflows and outflows of funds
on a daily basis and projecting longer-term inflows and outflows of
funds across a full maturity spectrum. The Group has established
diversified funding sources to support the growth of its business and the
maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities. Sources of liquidity are
regularly reviewed by ALCO.
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(@) Undiscounted cash flows analysis

A3 58

IEOZ]SE

The table below presents cash flows payable by the Group under non-
derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that will be
settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that will be
settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities as at the
end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the projected contractual undiscounted cash flows including future
interest payments on the basis of their earliest possible contractual
maturity. The Group’s derivatives include interest rate swaps that
will be settled on net basis; and cross currency swaps that will be

e H o settled on gross basis.
=AML
—EAUE E-F —ELE
—f@AA E={@EA Over ERE
Upto Over1month 3 months Over 1 year AENE ok
1month  to 3 months to 1 year to5years  Over5 years Total
FEH Fitn TR FERT FHT Fign TR
The Group HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NR-T—TF As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+-—H
EOTER S Non-derivative cash outflows
afE Liabilities
BEITEEE S Debt securities issued (3,061,008)  (4,276,684) (10,993,225) (18,139,060 (5,411,079) (41,881,056)
BEITRBES Mortgage-backed securities issued (28,149) (48,586) (1,297,405  (165,619) - (1,539,759)
(3,089,157)  (4,325,270) (12,290,630) (18,304,679) (5,411,079) (43,420,815)
FTEBRRA/(RE) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
BT EELHER Derivative financial instrument
PTESBMTIA : settled:
- RFEEEE - on net basis 1,664 (9,484) (3,477) (19,051) 395 (29,953)
- MR — 0N gross basis
mit4aEE Total outflow (1,722,875)  (2,233,067) (4,795,337) (9,668,024) - (18,419,303)
MALREE Total inflow 1,720,668 2,235,002 4,813,110 9,668,812 - 18,437,592
(543) (7,549) 14,296 (18,263) 395 (11,664)
ZEANE
—EAUL E—F —ELE
—fERA Z=M@R over ERE
Upto  Over 1 month 3 months over 1year RENL i
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to5years  Over5 years Total
AAF FHET FHET FHET FHET FET FHET
The Company HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
R-E—FE As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
IEPTER SR Non-derivative cash outflows
afE Liabilities
BBITEEE Debt securities issued (3,339,195) (4,276,684) (10,993,225) (18,139,060) (5,411,079) (42,159,243)
PTERSHRA /(R Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
R THIEEEER Derivative financial instrument
TESHMTIA : settled:
- FEREE - onnet basis 1,664 (9,484) (3,477) (19,051) 395 (29,953)
- MREEE - 0n gross basis
Difutst- Total outflow (1,722,875) (2,233,067) (4,795,337) (9,668,024) - (18,419,303)
MALREE Total inflow 1,720,668 2,235,002 4,813,110 9,668,812 - 18,437,592
(543) (7,549) 14,296 (18,263) 395 (11,664)
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=EAMNE
—EAKE E—F —FBE
—@AR Z=EA Over ERF
Upto  Over 1month 3 months Qver 1 year RENE ki)
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to S years Over 5 years Total
REE FHT T FHET FTHT FHT T
The Group HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZZNF As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+—H
HOTHER @ Non-derivative cash outflows
=L Liabilities
BEITERES Debt securities issued (1,118,623)  (3,715322)  (7,917,958) (28,083,715)  (7,500,004) (48,335,622)
BEITREES Mortgage-backed securities issued (49,315) (30,227) (401,388)  (1,611,674) - (2,092,604)
(1,167,938)  (3,745,549)  (8,319,346) (29,695,389)  (7,500,004) (50,428,226)
PTERSRHRA/CRL) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
BT EELEER Derivative financial instrument
PTHESRTIA : settled:
- FERE%E - 0n net basis (11,212) (5,829) (84,151) (31,888) (7,253) (140,333)
- WREEE%E - 0N gross basis
et st-c Total outflow (1,363,581)  (1,276,362)  (4,185,396) (15,797,991) (613,371)  (23,236,701)
TMALREE Total inflow 1,357,584 1,281,986 4,187,431 15,792,814 608,060 23,227,875
(17,209) (205) (82,116) (37,065) (12,564) (149,159)
=EARE
—EAMKLE 1 —E b
—@EAR ==f8R Over ZRF
Upto  Over 1 month 3 months Over 1 year RAENRE fotiil
1 month to 3months to 1year to 5 years Over 5 years Total
ANRA] FEL T FHT FHEL FEL T
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000
RZTTNEF As at 31 December 2009
+—-—A=+—H
IPTER L Non-derivative cash outflows
=L Liabilities
BB TEBSES Debt securities issued (1,118,623)  (3,715,322)  (7,917,958) (28,083,715)  (7,500,004) (48,335,622)
PTEBRESRAN/(RE) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
RTHIEELEER Derivative financial instrument
PTHEERMIA : settled:
- JFEREE - 0n net basis (11,212) (5,829) (84,151) (31,888) (7,253) (140,333)
- HEEE - 0N gross basis
T AEEE Total outflow (1,363,581)  (1,276,362)  (4,185,396) (15,797,991) (613,371)  (23,236,701)
AR Total inflow 1,357,584 1,281,986 4187431 15,792,814 608,060 23,227,875
(17,209) (205) (82,116) (37,065) (12,564) (149,159)
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(b) Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the

end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date.

—@EAE ZEAME
E=EA -5 —ENE
ENEFEIE —{ER A Over Over FRE
Repayable Upto 1monthto  3months Over1year  HELLE R )
on demand 1month  3months  to1year to5years Over5 years Undated Total
FEE FHRT Fitn Fitn FHT FERT Fitn Fign FHT
The Group HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
RoT—%E As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
BE Assets
ReENEHES Cash and short-term funds 49,471 5,200,410 407,992 244,776 - - - 5,902,649
BEREE Loan portfolio 8,004 669,748 816,647 4,105,789 18,246,086 11,412,991 1,701 35,260,966
BHIE Investment securities
- A E - available-for-sale - 499,888 582,726 556,614 295,399 - 1,469,339 3,403,966
- BEEIH — held-to-maturity - - - 1,068,126 4,284,171 2,680,836 - 8,033,133
BRBREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 204,891 204,891
57,475 6,370,046 1,807,365 5,975,305 22,825,656 14,093,827 1,675,931 52,805,605
&f& Liabilities
RiREE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,773,665 1,773,665
BRI TESES Debt securities issued - 2,989,516 4,106,971 10,471,870 16,513,711 5,045,667 - 39,127,735
BEITIRBES Mortgage-backed securities issued - 27934 69,328 1,269,451 163,036 - - 1,529,749
- 3,017,450 4,176,299 11,741,321 16,676,747 5,045,667 1,773,665 42,431,149
—@EAULE Z=EAML
E=EA -5 —ENE
ENEFZHA —f{ERRA over over ERE
Repayable Upto 1monthto  3months Over 1year AENUE IR k)
on demand 1month  3months  to1year to5years Over5 years Undated Total
EAF FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
The Company HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
NR-E—FE As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
BE Assets
HeEREHES Cash and short-term funds 36,918 5,127,141 378,500 226,950 - - - 5,769,509
Ex4Es Loan portfolio 7,406 538,747 746,117 3,789,361 17,322,877 8,988,252 1,665 31,394,425
BHIRE Investment securities
- AMEEE - available-for-sale - 499888 582,726 556,614 295,399 - 1,469,339 3,403,966
- FHEZEH - held-to-maturity - - - 1,068,126 4,284,171 2,680,836 - 8,033,133
BRBEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 204,891 204,891
44,324 6,165,776 1,707,343 5,641,051 21,902,447 11,669,088 1,675,895 48,805,924
BiE Liabilities
H e RIA Other payable - 14112 27,809 270,949 154,864 - - 467,734
REEBE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,773,665 1,773,665
BETEEES Debt securities issued - 3,267,667 4,106,971 10,471,870 16,513,711 5,045,667 - 39,405,886
- 3,281,779 4,134,780 10,742,819 16,668,575 5,045,667 1,773,665 41,647,285
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—@ARE Z=@EARE
Z==f@R B —FLAL

EEF ) £ —EAR Over Over ERF
Repayable Upto  1monthto 3months  Over 1 year AFERE g0 kil
on demand 1 month 3 months to 1year toSyears Over5years Undated Total
REE FHET T FHT FTHT FHT FHT FHT FHET
The Group HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=ZZTTNF As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+—H
BE Assets
ReEREHES Cash and short-term funds 57,248 3593937 410,934 5,679 - - - 4,067,798
EEE Loan portfolio 11,181 1,039,425 879,296 4,454,273 18,062,261 19,331,884 24407 43,802,727
BHIRE Investment securities
- Al E — available-for-sale - 1,201524 931,092 454,728 - - 1025720 3,613,064
- BAEZEIE - held-to-maturity - 155,071 637,241 1,023,674 3,525,677 476,335 - 5817,998
BRIREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 266101 266,101
68,429 5989957 2,858,563 5,938,354 21,587,938 19,808,219 1,316,228 57,567,688
=L Liabilities
RigEE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1462318 1462318
BB TESES Debt securities issued - 1,238,693 4,663,947 7,369,542 25,318,031 5,904,860 - 44,495,073
BE1TIZBES  Mortgage-backed securities issued - 53,369 64,783 361,301 1,540,941 - - 2,020,394

- 1292062 4728730 7,730,843 26,858,972 5904860 1,462,318 47,977,785

—@ARE Z=@EARE
==f8A = —FRE

il —fEAR Oover Over ZREF
Repayable Upto  1monthto 3months ~ Over 1year REHNE fadiee) ksl
on demand 1 month 3 months to 1year to5years Over5years Undated Total
E/NE]| FHT T FEL FHET FHL T FET FHT
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZTTNF As at 31 December 2009
+=—BA=+—~”
BE Assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 44,740 3573012 307,000 - - - - 3924752
BEEE Loan portfolio 9,543 891,005 801,897 4,129,092 16,885,678 18,090,064 23,859 40,831,138
BHIRE Investment securities
- AIEHE - available-for-sale - 1,201,524 931,092 454,728 - - 1,025720 3,613,064
- HEEIH - held-to-maturity = 155,071 637,241 1,023,674 3,525,677 476,335 - 5817,998
BRREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 266101 266,101
54,283 5820,612 2,677,230 5,607,494 20,411,355 18,566,399 1,315,680 54,453,053
=L Liabilities
H fth AT RRIE Other payable 13,246 27,218 118,075 429,786 2,783 - - 591,108
RIREE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1462318 1,462,318
BB TEESES Debt securities issued - 1,238,693 4,663,947 7,369,542 25,318,031 5,904,860 - 44,495,073

13246 1,265911 4,782,022 7,799,328 25320814 5904860 1,462,318 46,548,499

B B oh - FEUH R R FESR - TR FRIA R
Hip&E - BAFE - BAIRE - BN
X RENTIE  BHSET—A=1—~
REETAY 1218 A MU Bl sk E35& - e AR
MEOEMEEMEE - AIFEHAE+ A
=T -HEFFEE12(EA A ek @ak

a2 yom

Ei= ©

In addition to the above, interest and remittance receivables,
prepayments and other assets, interest payable, accounts payable,
accrued expenses and tax payable are expected to be recovered or
settled within twelve months from 31 December. Other assets and
liabilities included in the statement of financial position are expected
to be recovered or settled in a period more than twelve months after
31 December.
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3.5 Mortgage insurance risk

The Group offers mortgage insurance which provides cover to the
Approved Sellers/Servicers for first credit losses of up to 25% - 30% of
the property value of a residential mortgage loan with loan-to-value
ratio below 90% at origination, or other ratios as specified from time
to time.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the
insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of the resulting
claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random
and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability
is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal risk that the Group
faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims exceed the
carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur because
the frequency or severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual number and amount of claims and
benefits will vary from year to year from the estimate established using
statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance
contracts, the smaller the relative variability about the expected outcome
will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected
across the board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group
has developed a business strategy to diversify the type of mortgage
insurance risks accepted and within each of the key categories to
achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variability
of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors.
The most significant are a downturn of the economy and a slump in the
local property market. Economic downturn, which may cause a rise in
defaulted payment, affects the frequency of claims. A drop in property
prices, where the collateral value falls below the outstanding balance of
the mortgage loan, will increase the severity of claims.

The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent insurance
eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient provision is set aside for meeting
future claim payments, the Group calculates technical reserves on
prudent liability valuation assumptions and the method prescribed in the
regulatory guidelines. The Group also takes out quota-share reinsurance
from its approved mortgage reinsurers and excess-of-l0ss reinsurance
arrangement in an effort to limit its risk exposure. The Group conducts
comprehensive assessment including the financial strength and credit
ratings of the mortgage reinsurers in accordance with the approved
selection framework set by the Credit Committee. The approved
mortgage reinsurers are subject to periodic reviews.
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3.6

As at 31 December 2010, if total loss ratio had increased by 1%, profit
before tax for the year would have been HK$4 million (2009: HK$1.7
million) lower. If total loss ratio had decreased by 1%, profit before tax for
the year would have been HK$4 million (2009: HK$1.7 million) higher.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value estimate are made at a specific point in time based on relevant
market information and the characteristics of the financial instruments.

The following table provides an analysis of the carrying amounts and
fair values of financial assets and liabilities not wholly presented on the
Group's statement of financial position at their fair value. Bid prices are
used to estimate fair values of assets, whereas offer prices are applied for
liabilities. For all other financial instruments that are not measured at fair
value, the fair value is approximately equal to their carrying value.

RRTE{E AFE
Carrying value Fair value
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FAT FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRIEE Financial assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 5,902,649 4,067,798 5,902,649 4,067,798
BREA 55 Loan portfolio, net 35,258,937 43,788,716 35,258,937 43,788,716
BHIE Investment securities
- BEZREH - held-to-maturity 8,033,133 5,817,998 8,183,264 5,935,727
=i Financial liabilities
Hiva s Other liabilities 4,163,057 4,133,740 4,163,057 4,133,740
BRI TESES Debt securities issued 37,190,615 41,648,925 37,193,268 41,655,241
B BEITIRIBES Mortgage-backed securities issued 1,529,749 2,020,394 1,524,932 2,011,421
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The following methods and assumptions have been used to estimate
the fair values of financial instruments:

(@) Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits. The fair value
of floating-rate deposits is the carrying amount. The estimated fair
value of fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than 3 months,
is based on discounted cash flows using prevailing money-market
interest rates for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.
Therefore, the fair value of the deposits is approximately equal to
their carrying value.

(b) Loan portfolio, net, and mortgage-backed securities issued under
the MBS Pass-Through Programme

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment allowance. An insignificant
portion of loan portfolio bears interest at fixed rate. Therefore, the
carrying value of loan portfolio and the mortgage-backed securities
issued is a reasonable estimate of the fair value.
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(c) Investment securities

=

=

Investment securities include only interest-bearing assets held to
maturity, assets classified as available-for-sale are measured at
fair value. Fair value for held-to-maturity assets is based on market
prices or broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is not
available, fair value has been estimated using quoted market prices
for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield characteristics.

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted market
prices. For those notes where quoted market prices are not available,
adiscounted cash flow model is used based on a current yield curve
appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

Mortgage-backed securities issued under the Bauhinia MBS
Programme

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted market
prices. For those notes where quoted market prices are not available,
a discounted cash flow model is used based on a current yield curve
appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

Other liabilities

Other liabilities represent the deferred consideration used for
credit enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("HKSAR") in December 2003 and January 2004. The fair value of
other liabilities approximates the carrying amount.

Financial instruments measured at fair value in the financial
statements

There is no (2009: nil) financial instrument measured at fair value
using a valuation technique that is not supported by observable
market data.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table shows financial instruments recognised at fair

value, analysed between those whose fair value is based on:

e Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1),

¢ Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as
prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2); and

e Those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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3.7

*5E FAF
The Group The Company
- ®ZE o o] $ZE et
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
Fitn FHT Fitn Fitn FHT Fi#RT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-F—FE As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
&aE Assets
MTEEmMIA Derivative financial instruments - 1,396,621 1,396,621 - 1,372,522 1,372,522
BHIRE Investment securities
- AEEE - available-for-sale 1,469,339 1,934,627 3,403,966 1,469,339 1,934,627 3,403,966
1,469,339 3,331,248 4,800,587 1,469,339 3,307,149 4,776,488
=1 Liabilities
TESRTIA Derivative financial instruments - 44,372 44,372 - 44,372 44,372
IR FEREF 48 A LA Debt securities issued designated as at
NFEZ(ET AR fair value through profit or loss upon
KB B TERE initial recognition - 1,937,120 1,937,120 - 1,937,120 1,937,120
- 1,981,492 1,981,492 - 1,981,492 1,981,492
AEE AR7
The Group The Company
ER Ffd =4 Pt 2B E-E et
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
THT FHT THT TET TR THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZTNF As at 31 December 2009
+=-—A=+—H
BE Assets
PTHESRMITA Derivative financial instruments - 1317375 1,317,375 - 1273102 1,273,102
BHIRE Investment securities
- AfHE - available-for-sale 1,104,186 2,508,878 3613064 1,104,185 2,508,878 3,613,064
1,104,186 3,826,253 4,930,439 1,104,186 3,781,980 4,886,166
aE Liabilities
PTESRMTA Derivative financial instruments - 158,246 158,246 - 158,246 158,246
I ERETEE A LA Debt securities issued designated as at
NHEZ L AEE fair value through profit or loss upon
KB B TERE initial recognition - 2,846,148 2,846,148 - 2,846,148 2,846,148
- 3,004,394 3,004,394 - 3,004,394 3,004,394

AEBRADRBESFGTRABR
HEeRTA

=8

EXEH
REEEIREAR (HREE E RN
AREE R [#zm | BE) BT

o AFEBRIITHERBMNMEKAE R &K
(T AR HIEMEARRE

o BRAEEFEL BN
BRERER G 5

6 DAEE RS

7/

Neither the Group nor the Company hold any financial instruments
recognised as Level 3.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader
concept than the ‘equity’ on the face of the statement of financial
position, are:

¢ To comply with the capital requirements set by the Financial Secretary
of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“Financial Secretary”);

¢ T0 safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that
it can continue to provide returns for shareholders;
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¢ T0 support the Group’s stability and growth;

¢ T0 allocate capital in an efficient and risk based approach to optimise
risk adjusted return to the shareholders; and

e TO maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its
business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored daily by
the Group's management in accordance with the guidelines issued by the
Financial Secretary. The minimum Capital-to-Assets ratio (“CAR") stipulated
in the guidelines is 5%. The CAR is calculated as a ratio, expressed as a
percentage, of the Group’s total capital base to the sum of its total on-
balance sheet and total off-balance sheet risk-weighted exposures.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report to the Board of
Directors on a quarterly basis by reference to the guidelines issued by
the Financial Secretary. Any breach or likely breach of the CAR guidelines
must be reported to the Financial Secretary.

The Group's capital base comprises share capital, retained profits and
contingency reserve created by appropriations of retained profits,
allowance for loan impairment under collective assessment and other
reserves.

The capital adequacy framework takes into account different levels of risk
embedded in assets. Conversion factors are applied to assets according
to their nature and reflecting an estimate of underlying risks, taking into
account any eligible collateral or guarantee. A similar treatment is adopted
for off-balance sheet exposures, with some adjustments to reflect the
more contingent nature of the potential losses.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base and the ratios
of the Group as at the end of the reporting period. During the year, the

HIERIFTBERIE © Group complied with all of the capital requirement set by the Financial
Secretary.
2010 2009
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
fi&Zx Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000
RE = A Retained profits 4,561,624 3,925,694
B2 {6 4 Contingency reserve 437,435 189,833
HAotb Other reserves 265,057 160,329
AR A ERRE Allowance for loan impairment under

FiriE2 i collective assessment 2,029 14,011
BRGREE Total capital base 7,266,145 6,289,867
BAREEELE CAR 10.8% 9.5%
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4. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment at least on
a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should
be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes judgements
as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio
of loans before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in
that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowersina
group or economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the
group. Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of
impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash
flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the
amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce
any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

4.2 Fair value of derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation
techniques (for example, models) are used to determine fair value,
they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel
independent of the area that created them. All models are validated
before they are used, and models are calibrated to ensure that outputs
reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the extent practical,
models use only observable data, however areas such as credit risk,
volatilities and correlations require management to make estimates.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect reported fair
value of financial instruments. Sensitivity analysis is set out in Note 3.3.

4.3 Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments are impaired
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
below its cost. This determination of what is significant or prolonged
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates,
among other factors, the normal volatility in listed price. In addition,
impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of a deterioration
inthe financial health of the investment, industry and sector performance,
changes in technology, and operational and financing cash flows.
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4.4 Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
as held-to-maturity. This classification requires significant judgement.
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability
to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep these
investments to maturity other than for the specific circumstances defined
in HKAS 39, it will be required to reclassify the entire class as available-
for-sale and measured at fair value, not amortised cost.

4.5 Profits tax

The Group is subject to profits tax in Hong Kong. Significant estimates
are required in determining the provision for profits tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact on the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

5. Segment analysis

The Group is principally engaged in mortgage business. Other activities such
as debt issuance to fund the mortgage purchase and investment to reinvest
the surplus funds from mortgage receipt are considered ancillary to mortgage
business. The Group is also organised in such a way that performance is
measured at Group level in a single segment for mortgage business.

Although the mortgage business is managed as a single segment, the mortgage
business is located in four geographical areas, namely Hong Kong, Korea,
Malaysia and China. The segment for Hong Kong includes the mortgage business
in Hong Kong. The segment for non-Hong Kong includes the mortgage assets in
Korea, investment in a jointly controlled entity in Malaysia and investment in a
subsidiary in Shenzhen, People’s Republic of China. The Chief Operating Decision
maker assesses the performance based on geographical segments.

The following tables represent revenue, profit and other information for operating
segments of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.
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& HEE “aE
Hong Kong Non-Hong Kong Total
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-_T-FTF+-HA=+—HIFEE Yearended 31 December 2010
FEWA Interest income 905,246 236,137 1,141,383
BT H Interest expense (96,906) (73,896) (170,802)
EFEA Net interest income 808,340 162,241 970,581
HabgA Other income 583,623 4,176 587,799
LA Operating income 1,391,963 166,417 1,558,380
4R sT Operating expenses (136,842) (34,583) (171,425)
RET R E BT A4S & 5 A Operating profit before impairment 1,255,121 131,834 1,386,955
BORE R B Write-back of loan impairment allowances 16,663 - 16,663
FEAE L RESI EEER T Share of profit of a jointly controlled
entity - 2,259 2,259
R A& A Profit before taxation 1,271,784 134,093 1,405,877
MIA Taxation (172,015)
N A Profit for the year 1,233,862
FARNEARRALZ Capital expenditure during the year 8,802 64 8,866
B BB “wesE
HongKong  Non-Hong Kong Total
FAT FHTT FExT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE_ZTTNF+_A=+—HIEFE Yearended 31 December 2009
FE U A Interest income 1,056,085 282,216 1,338,301
MBS Interest expense (176,106) (124,488) (300,594)
S BUA Net interest income 879,979 157,728 1,037,707
E AU Other income 230,584 1,004 231,588
IR Operating income 1,110,563 158,732 1,269,295
R Operating expenses (123,337) (34,499) (157,836)
R E AT A& &5 5 Operating profit before impairment 987,226 124,233 1,111,459
EROR(E R Write-back of loan impairment allowances 36,837 - 36,837
FEAG RIS E S5 Share of profit of a jointly controlled
entity - 1,922 1,922
BRAT AT A Profit before taxation 1,024,063 126,155 1,150,218
HiIA Taxation (144,186)
RNE A Profit for the year 1,006,032
FANEARRZ Capital expenditure during the year 15,111 2,734 17,845
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&E FEE FEE]
Hong Kong Non-Hong Kong Total
T T Fi#ET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R==F—-F&+=-H=+—8H As at 31 December 2010
DEEE Segment assets 42,832,359 12,069,899 54,902,258
HEZEHIEBRE Investment in a jointly controlled entity - 130,720 130,720
BERE Total assets 42,832,359 12,200,619 55,032,978
DEEAE Segment liabilities 35,477,850 11,953,088 47,430,938
B B k)
Hongkong  Non-Hong Kong Total
FAT FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
\ZZEENFF+=ZA=+—H As at 31 December 2009

DIEEE Segment assets 44,027,821 15,607,613 59,635,434
HEZEHIEERE Investment in a jointly controlled entity - 115,190 115,190
BEBE Total assets 44,027,821 15,722,803 59,750,624
HEEEE Segment liabilities 37,511,123 15,498,410 53,009,533

6. FIBUWA 6. Interestincome

RNEE
The Group

2010 2009
T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BREE Loan portfolio 855,015 1,060,315
HeEREHES Cash and short-term funds 31,311 36,328
BHIEE — EW Investment securities — listed 75,054 82,176
BHIEE — LT Investment securities — unlisted 180,003 159,482
1,141,383 1,338,301

REFH BN BHE323,000/87T (—ZE
488,000787T) 1E B E BB E 7R A FERTFI S U ©

JUF ¢ Included within interest income is HK$323,000 for the year (2009: HK$488,000)
with respect to interest income accrued on individually impaired loans.

7. FIEZH 7. Interest expense
RNEE
The Group
2010 2009
FTHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERAFNBEERNRITER - Bank loans, debt and MBS issued wholly repayable
BBITER RIRIEES within 5 years 143,647 241,376
BERAFABSERNE T Debt and MBS issued not wholly repayable
BB MRIBES within 5 years 27,155 59,218
170,802 300,594

REER S HAIE167,000,000/87T (Z=ZF N Included within interest expenses are HK$167 million (2009: HK$221 million) for
£ 1 221,000,000787T) WIELAA

SNETRAE

AFER(EAR

financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit and loss.
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8. HuhlgA 8. Otherincome
REE
The Group

2010 2009
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
IRFENE R KA Early prepayment fees and late charges 18,278 19,742
BB & 558 (FIEE14) Net insurance premiums earned (Note 14) 417,931 149,429
ME 5 =58 Exchange difference 35,479 5,833
CRITAAFEES Change in fair value of financial instruments 309 13,011
AT & TR E BURR BURA Dividend income from available-for-sale listed investments 43,595 42,224

S AT B IR A M W F R Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments
(FzE11)) (Note 11) 64,752 5,277
Eih Others 7,455 (3,928)
587,799 231,588

SMIARNTFEEZIEENATSIENEAF
() FEERAFEE AR T AEAFE K
188,000,000 77t (ZZZ N4 : [E518783,300,000
PETT) R E I8 B A F{EE518 183,000,000 7 7T
(ZZEZT L4 : Yrz5785,400,000787T) ¢ K& (i) 5
EAURAFES T ABRNITETAAFER
#= 10,000,000 77T (=T N4F + [E518 31,600,000
BIT) RIEEUAAFEZ G ABENEETE
15 EH A TERE 15,000,000/8 7T (ZEFTNEF ¢

Change in fair value of financial instruments represents the aggregate of (i)
HK$188 million fair value gain on hedging instruments designated as fair value
hedge (2009: HK$783.3 million loss) and HK$183 million fair value loss on the
hedged items (2009: HK$785.4 million gain); and (ii) HK$10 million fair value
gain on derivatives designated as at fair value through profit or loss (2009:
HK$31.6 million loss) and HK$15 million fair value loss on issued debt securities
designated as at fair value through profit or l0ss (2009: HK$42.5 million gain).

%5 42,500,00087T) °

9. HEXH

9. Operating expenses

REH
The Group

2010 2009
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

BB Staff costs
e kEd Salaries and benefits 107,797 102,633
BIREKAN — REE-REE Pension costs - defined contribution plans 5,706 5,608

BN Premises

e Rental 7,800 7,268
E At Others 6,679 7,050
EEME Directors’ emoluments - =
e (FzE24) Depreciation (Note 24) 12,928 10,890
B B A AR TS Financial information services 5,510 5,593
B & Consultancy fees 12,494 6,702
Hfhas Other operating expenses 12,511 12,092
171,425 157,836
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10. £ S6TH N &

10. Auditor’s remuneration

REE
The Group
2010 2009
FHET FAIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RS Audit services 880 867
EH AR5 Other services 859 1,186
1,739 2,053
1. HETTHEHEREMYE 11. Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
R investments
NEE
The Group
2010 2009
FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
S AT B 1R A A a8 Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments:
- R—A—HEHENFEEANER - realisation of amounts recognised in reserves up to
BIIE (FEE31) 1 January (note 31) 40,554 3,522
- AEEEERFE — net gain arising in current year 24,198 1,755
64,752 5,277
12. ERR B B3 12. Write-back of loan impairment allowances
AEE
The Group
2010 2009
FTHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EFORE R Write-back of loan impairment allowances —
— #EFHE (HEE20(0)) collective assessment (Note 20 (b)) 16,663 36,837
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13. BilE 13. Taxation
(@) REEeRBERATBRPTIES (@) Taxation charge in the consolidated income statement
represents:
REH
The Group

2010 2009
FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000

BEMEE Hong Kong profits tax
- RNEEFRHE — Provision for current year 171,681 126,419
- BEFERETR — Underprovision in prior years 16 15,110
171,697 141,529

RIER A Deferred taxation

- NFELH — Charge for current year 318 2,657
172,015 144,186

B B A 0 i PR R B A AR
16.5% (ZFTNF 1 16.5%) T RaH
REBFEHAR - BEHENRE
ER16.5% (ZTTAF 1 16.5%) ME
ERNKA TR AR E

48 B ) 4 AT s Pl BB SRR PR
BRI EER R BERIT ¢

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2009:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Deferred
taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under the
liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5% (2009:
16.5%).

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong
Kong as follows:

REE
The Group
2010 2009
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRAE AT A Profit before taxation 1,405,877 1,150,218
1#£16.5% (ZZZLF © 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of
KB RETE 16.5% (2009:16.5%) 231,970 189,786
FEAE FERIEFI B B2 E 8 Tax effect of share of profit of a jointly controlled
B2 entity (373) (317)
BAHBHUA Income not subject to taxation (82,023) (91,044)
I k0] b- Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 22,425 30,651
BEFEEETR Underprovision in prior years 16 15,110
AR Taxation charge 172,015 144,186
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(b) BMEMRRERANTIARES :

(b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial position

represents:
AEE ARQH
The Group The Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
FHT FAT FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BBNISHRE Provision for Hong Kong
profits tax 133,560 138,329 134,532 131,850
BIERIEA S Deferred tax liabilities 37,167 15,209 37,167 15,213
170,727 153,538 171,699 147,063

R_ZE—ZEFR_ZTTNF+_A=+
—HB  BEIAEAREERELERIE

BEHIR (BE)/ ABENZEEAR IS
RENZEINT

There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at 31

December 2010 and 2009.

The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities and the

movements during the year are as follows:

AEE
The Group
ER R
MRBIBIE Impairment
Accelerated allowances RYEEE REmEH
tax and HEEE Fair value Cash flow k|
depreciation provisions Tax losses changes hedges Total
FAT FHT FHT FET FAT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZTZNF—HFA—H As at 1 January 2009 2,497 (13,995) (10) (4,223) (13,173) (28,904)
PR ZR A HIRR Charged to the income statement 951 1,696 10 - - 2,657
ARSI (Mi5E31)  Charged to equity (Note 31) - - - 37,311 4,145 41,456
RZTZENF+=A As at 31 December 2009
=+t—H 3,448 (12,299) = 33,088 (9,028) 15,209
PAUEER A (BEE)/ Ik (Released)/charged to the income
statement (207) 525 — — — 318
PR (FiE31)  Charged to equity (Note 31) - - - 17,307 4,333 21,640
R-E—F¥&£+=A As at 31 December 2010
=+—8H 3,241 (11,774) - 50,395 (4,695) 37,167
AR
The Company
HEE
IRBIBIE Impairment
Accelerated allowances NFEEE) RETEH
tax and Fair value Cash flow fck)
depreciation provisions changes hedges Total
FHT FHT THT FHT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZTTNF—A—H As at 1 January 2009 2,497 (13,990) (4,223) (13,173) (28,889)
PUES R AR Charged to the income statement 951 1,695 - - 2,646
PAREESEATOR (FI3E31)  Charged to equity (Note 31) - - 37,311 4,145 41,456
R_ZTZNF+=A As at 31 December 2009
== 3,448 (12,295) 33,088 (9,028) 15,213
PUEER A (BE)/ Bk (Released)/charged to the income statement (207) 521 - - 314
AR (FF5E31)  Charged to equity (Note 31) - - 17,307 4,333 21,640
NR-E—F¥&£+=AH As at 31 December 2010
=1x—H 3,241 (11,774) 50,395 (4,695) 37,167
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14. IRIBRIFEF K 2R AR

14. Revenue account for mortgage insurance

business
REE
The Group

2010 2009
FHET FH&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIRE Gross premiums written 862,282 839,042
BREBRIRE Reinsurance premiums (70,925) (54,392)
RE B R (MIRE 27(0) Net premiums written (Note 27(a)) 791,357 784,650
Ao ERR B B N SR Increase in unearned premiums, net (367,081) (613,572)
BEimAp R & F 5 (KizE27() Net premiums earned (Note 27(a)) 424,276 171,078
EARRR (MizE27(0) Claims incurred (Note 27(b)) (6,345) (21,649)
BE%EMEBREFE (H3E8)  Net premiums earned after provisions (Note 8) 417,931 149,429
EREAY (FiEa) Management expenses (Note a) (22,248) (14,399)
AR Underwriting gains 395,683 135,030

[ Note

(@) EEFXRNFEIKLE N —D

15. REE R F

(@) The management expenses formed part of the operating expenses in Note 9.

15. Profit for the year

RN BB SRR T E A s A A& 1,199,473,000
BIL (ZZTTAFE © 973,951,000/87T) °

The profit for the year is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of HK$1,199,473,000 (2009: HK$973,951,000).

16. K2 16. Dividend
Vi N/NE|
The Company
2010 2009
FHET FABT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRAR BB T AR 0.175 8T Proposed dividend of HK$0.175
(ZZEZNF : 02577L) (2009: HK$0.25) per ordinary share 350,000 500,000

=
T——FNWA+-H EFEE=E
REAR B & EBAR0.17578 7T
BYEIBR —E—TF+ A=

T TEEM-RRAFERESEET -

The dividend paid in 2010 in respect of 2009 was HK$500 million. The directors

@Ik _ZF—  proposed a final dividend in respect of 2010 of HK$0.175 per ordinary share
70 o LEIEEEEE  on 12 April 2011. The proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable

+—H®&FE  asat 31 December 2010.
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17. &€ REHES 17. Cash and short-term funds
AEE AAT]
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FAIT Fi#T FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RITIRE Cash at banks 49,470 57,248 36,918 44,740
SRITEEFER Time deposits with banks 5,853,179 4,010,550 5,732,591 3,880,012

5,902,649 4,067,798 5,769,509 3,924,752

HEEREXRMS - ReRFRMESEE B For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
TERZ BB =[E A NEI B4R o comprise the following balances with less than three months’ maturity from
the date of transaction.

AEE AAT]
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
Fi#T AT Fi#T FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
$RIT7IH S Cash at banks 49,470 57,248 36,918 44,740
$R1TRE HAER Time deposits with banks 4,495,604 3,770,871 4,404,640 3,646,012
B RZERIESIER Cash and cash equivalents 4,545,074 3,828,119 4,441,558 3,690,752
18. FEUFI B R EERR 18. Interest and remittance receivables
AEE V7N
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
F#T AT Fi#T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR B IER FEUFIE. - Interest receivable from
- FIEIEHAEH — interest rate swap contracts 497,467 443,221 495,491 440,007
- BHEE - investment securities 81,330 77,432 81,330 77,432
- RITEHTFR - time deposits with banks 2,345 169 2,175 131
EREAMEWRRE R Interest receivable and instalments,
DEIfTER in transit from loan portfolio 76,008 189,708 66,236 181,239
657,150 710,530 645,232 698,809
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19. FTESMTR
(a) FEAFTET A

19. Derivative financial instruments

(@) Use of derivative

AEERBTIITETAH T ALE
memER - REtREmNS - R
BEGTEREIREMIE - BR
Mit&8 TETAESBARARTEE
Lt AR s sR A FERIE &R
EEDRTE -

ER¥RAEEH/U—ERES RS
RE—HERERER G - B
ER SRR E A S B -
BRETEERMN ZZEXH5 MR
HnAS AEENEERRARS
HFEREBTEHEEMEERHEH
BB - AEEZERITAFE
HERAVERELY . kMENREE
FrAEERAA R -

ETEEERTANGRZRESHE AR
ISR R TR T EAR M —(E LR
B AE - HER MRS KRR &
MENESEKNTAEANHNRAFE:
e - 3 B8 S B AN 5 [ T e 15 B K
BAR R o BE 3 5 A & K [ X 4E %
HAGFRHRE) - T T AR AL
BELEHN (BE) AH (BE) W
B TAESHTANGAXERSHE
BE - LRAMEAFZERE &
MESREERRBEZATRE A
BEDRF RIRRE) - TR ARITAET A
RNFEERTX °

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to hedge the
Group's financial risks. For accounting purposes, derivative instrument
are designated as at fair value through profit or loss or hedging
instruments under fair value or cash flow hedges as defined in
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange
one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in an economic
exchange of currencies or interest rates or a combination of all
these. No exchange of principal takes place except for certain
currency swaps. The Group's credit risk represents the potential cost
to replace the swap contracts if counterparties fail to perform their
obligations. This risk is monitored on an ongoing basis with reference
to the current fair value, a proportion of the notional amount of the
contracts and the liquidity of the market.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments provide
a basis for comparison with instruments recognised on the statement
of financial position but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of
future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the instruments
and, therefore, do not indicate the Group's exposure to credit or
price risks. The derivative instruments become favourable (assets) or
unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest
rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate
contractual or notional amount of derivative financial instruments on
hand, the extent to which instruments are favourable or unfavourable,
and thus the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and
liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The fair values
of derivative instruments held are set out below.
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AEE

The Group
2010 2009
st/ AEE &t/ A¥E
z2HeE Fair values 254 Fair values
Contract/ Contract/
notional &E =1 notional BE B
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
FERT TR FET FHT FHT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000
() FEEADTFEE L (i) Derivatives designated as at
FTABEAITETR fair value through profit or loss
St Interest rate swaps 7,443,726 64,754  (26,822) 20736942 127,084  (106,858)
By currency swaps 7,342,056 13,090 (8,093) 902,100 - (993)
77,844 (34,915) 127,084 (107,851)
(i) FEERAFELEF (i) Derivatives designated as
RPTET R fair value hedge
I R 5 HA Interest rate swaps 27,330,675 1,029,206 (2,819) 31,372,819 1,034,874 (2,847)
E¥sim Currency swaps 7,488,846 289,571 (2,487) 8,629,385 133,867 (40,521)
1,318,777 (5,306) 1,168,741 (43,368)
(iii) #EEABR SR+ (iif) Derivatives designated as
BATETA cash flow hedge
B2 H Currency swaps 2,354,149 - (4,151) 11,760,464 21,550 (7,027)
- (4,151) 21,550 (7,027)
ERERITEEE/(BE) Total recognised derivative
k] assets/(liabilities) 1,396,621 (44,372) 1,317,375 (158,246)
pAVNG|
The Company
2010 2009
&t/ AFE A/ NEE
EE ) Fair values LESE Fair values
Contract/ Contract/
notional &E Bff notional BE af
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
FHT Fitn FHT FTHT T TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i) FBEURFERL (i) Derivatives designated as at
STABEMITETR fair value through profit or loss
Hl =2 HR Interest rate swaps 7,443,726 64,754 (26,822) 20,736,942 127,084 (106,858)
joge 3 Ect Currency swaps 7,342,056 13,090 (8,093) 902,100 - (993)
77,844 (34,915) 127,084 (107,851)
(i) EERRFELH (i) Derivatives designated as
HOTHETA fair value hedge
H =2 HR Interest rate swaps 26,630,675 1,005,107 (2,819) 30,447,819 990,601 (2,847)
E¥sie Currency swaps 7,488,846 289,571 (2,487) 8,629,385 133,867 (40,521)
1,294,678 (5,306) 1,124,468 (43,368)
(iii) ¥6E RBE LML (iii) Derivatives designated as
RPTETE cash flow hedge
Kt Ep Currency swaps 2,354,149 - (4,151) 11,760,464 21,550 (7,027)
- (4,151) 21,550 (7,027)
BHERITEERE/(BE) Total recognised derivative
4azE assets/(liabilities) 1,372,522 (44,372) 1,273,102 (158,246)

(b) #HES

WOTET A BAFEL HHIRERE
C NBRBE A& 3

o e REME
BT o

(b) Hedging activities

Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if they
are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.
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Fair value hedges

The Group's fair value hedge principally consists of interest rate
and currency swaps that are used to protect interest rate risk
resulting from any potential change in fair value of fixed rate
financial instruments.

Cash flow hedges

The Group hedges a portion of foreign exchange risks arising from
variability of cash flows from foreign currency denominated financial
instruments using currency swaps under cash flow hedge.

Replacement costs and potential future credit expenses

The replacement costs represent the cost of replacing all derivative
contracts that have a positive value when marked to market. The
potential future credit exposure amounts refer to the amount as
computed in accordance with the Capital-to-Assets ratio guidelines
(Note 3.7). The Group has not experienced any non-performance by

its counterparties.

METESHNEEKRAREEARK
SERRESERN TN - ZE2HIL
BIAERZZHFETEREE L

= 48
HIRZ o

The replacement costs and potential future credit exposure amounts
of the derivative contracts are as follows. These amounts do not
take into account the effects of bilateral netting arrangements with
the counterparties.

REE
The Group
2010 2009
BRI TETEARIR
EERF EERE R BBERA EE Rk
Replacement Potential future Replacement  Potential future
cost credit exposure cost  credit exposure
FHET FHET FAT FHAIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEELD Interest rate contracts
- FZE=H — Interest rate swaps 1,442,892 139,612 1,556,847 182,660
EEREL Exchange rate contracts
- Bikia i — Currency swaps 332,268 661,650 184,827 945,386
1,775,160 801,262 1,741,674 1,128,046
/NG|
The Company
2010 2009
BRI TBTEARIR
EERK EERER BERAR EE Rk
Replacement Potential future Replacement  Potential future
cost credit exposure cost  credit exposure
FHET FHET FAT FAIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEELD Interest rate contracts
— R HA — Interest rate swaps 1,416,817 139,612 1,509,359 179,160
EEEL Exchange rate contracts
- BtkiaH — Currency swaps 332,268 661,650 184,827 945,386
1,749,085 801,262 1,694,186 1,124,546

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED



159

20. ERASFE 20. Loan portfolio, net
(a) ERASRERE (@) Loan portfolio less allowance
REH ZAN/NG|
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FAT FTHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIBEFHEE Mortgage portfolio
F= Residential
- BF — Hong Kong 18,081,110 21,980,141 14,932,355 20,323,237
— &b — Overseas 11,912,250 15,441,285 11,912,250 15,441,285
BES Commercial 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000
BHREEE Securitised portfolio (Note 33)
(Fff=E33) 717,786 1,314,685 - -
R\ EREE Non-mortgage portfolio 549,820 1,066,616 549,820 1,066,616
35,260,966 43,802,727 31,394,425 40,831,138
ERURERE Allowance for loan impairment (2,029) (14,011) (2,027) (13,975)

35,258,937 43,788,716 31,392,398 40,817,163

RRZZE—FF + A=+—8 ' UE As at 31 December 2010, the mortgage portfolio had a weighted
KA R RELESTE - RRETARHIEE average remaining term of 9 years (2009: 9 years) on a contractual
BERREEZTMBAT - RIBERA basis, without taking into account any prepayment of local mortgage
SRINEFHFERHBNLE (ZETN loans. Final maturity of the mortgage portfolio is in the year 2050.
F:NF)  RBEFEHEKER=Z
R EFH|E]
ERRERBRBLEFEEAMARER Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the outstanding
ReFEHOBL LT ¢ principal balances of the loan portfolio is as follows:
REE AR
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

ERURERE Total allowance for loan

48 gﬁ{,ﬁ“*miﬁé} impairment as a percentage of

BENBE D the gross loan portfolio 0.01% 0.03% 0.01% 0.03%
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(b) Allowance for loan impairment on mortgage portfolio

REE AAT]
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
Fi#T FHT F#T FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HAEHE Collective assessment
®n—A—H As at 1 January 14,011 50,536 13,975 49,773
MEHE R Loans written off - (2,748) - (2,748)
Rz 3R AR Released to income statement
(Fts£12)) (Note 12) (16,663) (36,837) (16,629) (36,110)
Bl 2 3 S5 B Recoveries of loans previously
written off 4,760 3,382 4,760 3,382
BEITIR (AR O Unwind of discount on allowance (79) (322) (79) (322)
R+=—A=+—H Asat31December 2,029 14,011 2,027 13,975

EHERREREE  CEEHERE
FEE R R B AT E o SEERLE I
R ERBERAAEHRERE -
FAN - BRORERE7,0008T (ZF
THAEF 1 2,641,00077T) BEEEZ U
B (MisE25) o

A& A RHEER B REESRS

Allowance for loan impairment was made after taking into account

the current market value of the collateral of the delinquent loan.

There is no impairment provided for overseas and commercial

mortgage portfolio. During the year, allowance for loan impairment of
HK$7,000 (2009: HK$2,641,000) has been transferred to repossessed

assets (Note 25).

Individually impaired loans collectively assessed under portfolio basis

Mo are analysed as follows:
REE ZA/NG|
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FAT FHET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REERHEAE  Gross impaired loan portfolio 278 5,377 278 5,377
EFURERE Allowance for loan impairment (22) (1,811) (22) (1,811)
256 3,566 256 3,566
EFCREREL Allowance for loan impairment
REEREE as a percentage of gross
BERB DL impaired loan portfolio 7.9% 33.7% 7.9% 33.7%
REERHEAE  Gross impaired loan portfolio
HEFHEEBE as a percentage of gross
MBS loan portfolio - 0.01% - 0.01%

LASR A T2 3R (4 1 AT B AL 3 Bl 60 B 3%
i 1B & 3R B # & /52,007,000 7T
(ZZZT A4 : 12,200,000787T) °

Allowance for loan impairment under collective assessment for loans
not individually identified are HK$2,007,000 (2009: HK$12,200,000).
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(c) Net investments in finance leases included in loan portfolio

REBRART]
The Group and the Company
2010

RIREWKIRL
RIERE RIRHARE R RREFR 4
Present value FISHA RIEHEEE
of minimum Interest income Total minimum
lease payments relating to lease payments
receivable future periods receivable
FHET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT HAR EUGRIE Amounts receivable:
- —FR — within one year 57,467 10,492 67,959
- —FREBERAFR — after one year but within five years 193,302 31,305 224,607
- A& — after five years 299,051 28,696 327,747
549,820 70,493 620,313
REERART]
The Group and the Company
2009

(K EUFEL
FIARE RIRERREI Y AR FEHFELD
Present value FBUWA FRIFLREE
of minimum  Interest income  Total minimum
lease payments relatingto  lease payments
receivable future periods receivable
FHT FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT HAR MR A Amounts receivable:

- %R — within one year 93,661 20,369 114,030
- —FRERFAN — after one year but within five years 335,541 63,433 398,974
- A& — after five years 637,414 69,650 707,064
1,066,616 153,452 1,220,068

RZE-—ZF+_RA=+—HERZ=Z
TNFF+ZA=+—H XEERX
A7) 4% 5 L A R PR MR IR M R
B -

There is no impairment allowance for finance lease receivable as
at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 of the Group and the
Company.
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21. BHFEE 21. Investment securities
(@) AIMHHEEES (@) Available-for-sale securities
AEERAAR]
The Group and the Company
2010 2009
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BATFEYIRNERES Debt securities at fair value
FE LT Unlisted 1,934,627 2,452,054
RER LT Listed in Hong Kong - 78,466
BB AIMBE T Listed outside Hong Kong - 56,824

1,934,627 2,587,344
BEATESRNEMES Other securities at fair value

RER LT Listed in Hong Kong 1,469,339 1,025,720
A EESH B Total available-for-sale securities 3,403,966 3,613,064
HthFZFSERSMEEES REHE Other securities refer to exchange-traded funds and real estate
HEEFE - investment trust.

RETRBEEN DT #HEEES Available-for-sale securities are analysed by categories of issuers
R as follows:
AEERAAT]
The Group and the Company
2010 2009
FHET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
SRIT R E b5 mtkiE Banks and other financial institutions 1,368,020 2,452,054
NGRS Corporate entities 66,719 -
N Public sector entities - 135,290
R SRR T Central governments 499,888 -
HAh Others 1,469,339 1,025,720

3,403,966 3,613,064

AR EIFNESPMIT The movement in available-for-sale securities is summarised as
follows:
REBRAAT
The Group and the Company

2010 2009
FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
»n—A—H As at 1 January 3,613,064 2,052,552
s Additions 4,263,000 3,134,672
RE (HERER) Disposals (sale and redemption) (4,620,012) (1,811,701
b3 Amortisation (1,088) 8,539
NEEEE) Change in fair value 143,631 227,272
HNESTE H = RE Exchange difference 5,371 1,730
R+=ZA=+—H As at 31 December 3,403,966 3,613,064
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(b) Held-to-maturity securities

AEEKRAQT
The Group and the Company
2010 2009
Fi#T FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIS K AN BR B (B 5 75 Debt securities at amortised cost
REB L™ Listed in Hong Kong 1,014,324 1,166,552
REBREIN LT Listed outside Hong Kong 3,024,472 2,244,441
4,038,796 3,410,993
JEET Unlisted 3,994,337 2,407,005
BHEER B 5B Total held-to-maturity securities 8,033,133 5,817,998
LETREFNTE — 55255 Market value of listed securities — held-to-maturity 4,181,338 3,504,167

BREBETHBEROMBEE2IHES

Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by categories of issuers

IR as follows:
RNEB RART]
The Group and the Company
2010 2009
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
SR1T R EH M & B E Banks and other financial institutions 5,742,185 3,939,368
NElE Corporate entities 623,601 622,626
NEWE Public sector entities 863,630 715,548
R IR B Central governments 737,822 293,287
Hi Others 65,895 247,169
8,033,133 5,817,998

FAZI BRSNS T

The movement in held-to-maturity securities is summarised as

follows:
AEERAAT]
The Group and the Company

2010 2009
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
®n—H—H ASs at 1 January 5,817,998 5,614,666
3810 Additions 4,341,842 = 2,923,038
B Redemption (2,130,621) (2,731,226)
B Amortisation (7,093) (2,838)
HNEERE H =58 Exchange difference 11,007 14,358
R+=—RA=+—H As at 31 December 8,033,133 5,817,998

B—
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22. MBATIRE 22. Investment in subsidiaries
P /NG|

The Company
2010 2009
FHET FABT
HK$'000 HK$'000
IEEMARG - KAE Unlisted shares, at cost 103,060 103,060
B A RIFT /R FOA Due from a subsidiary 3,102,572 1,630,520
3,205,632 1,733,580

MB AR TR RIBERAMERTEERY - Wz The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured and has
TISFIEETE - repayment. Interest is charged at market rates.

R-ZE—ZF+_A=+—H " WEBARKNFE The details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2010 are:

no fixed term of

R

&1 FEMRAR S 4 2h FEEK B 317/ B i MIRANEHS FFs B AR

Name Place of incorporation Principal activities Particulars of issued /registered capital Effective equity held

BBRBER B BAREE 1,000,000 #7T 100%
AR A RIBER BRERREE1ST

HKMC Mortgage Hong Kong Mortgage purchases HK$1,000,000 of HK$1 ordinary 100%
Management and servicing share each
Limited

YRR B E R P RIBERK AREB1ET 90%
BRAF] EIRER T AR

Bauhinia HKMC PRC Mortgage guarantee RMB100 million registered capital 90%
Corporation Limited business
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23. Investment in a jointly controlled entity

REE
The Group
2010 2009
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
®n—HA—H As at 1 January 115,190 111,989
HIBRTH IR (G &9 m Share of profit, net of tax 2,259 1,922
HNEETE 5 =8 (FIRE31) Exchange differences (Note 31) 13,108 1,279
HivEREE) — AT ERE Other equity movement — fair value reserve (Note 31)
(HdzE31) 163 -
®w+=-—HA=+—H As at 31 December 130,720 115,190
i N/NC]|
The Company
2010 2009
FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
JEETRRRS © BRAE Unlisted shares, at cost 120,554 120,554
REZE—ZF+-A=+—H HEEHEED The details of the jointly controlled entity as at 31 December 2010 are:
BT
BHEREE
SRR Sz HhBh FEE BETIRANEE Frtsaz 5 285 LiBIRAE DL
E Place of Principal Nominal value of Class of % of ordinary shares
Name incorporation activities issued capital shares held directly held
Cagamas HKMC BRPLE RIRERIEIRER B 18T =gl 50%
Berhad . BREESE 1T _
Cagamas HKMC Malaysia Mortgage guaranty RM100 million of Ordinary 50%
Berhad business RM1 each

ARG EA KRG B AR AL T

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group'’s

interest in a jointly controlled entity is as follows:

2010 2009
Fi#&T AT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BE Assets 131,217 115,928
aE Liabilities (497) (738)
EEFEE Share of net assets 130,720 115,190
A Income 3,927 3,389
FE R Share of profit for the year 2,259 1,922

B—

=
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24. Fixed assets

REE
The Group
AT -
FRRES
HEmE Office
%f&  equipment, RE
Leasehold furniture and Ehg Motor k]
improvement fixtures Computers vehicle Total
Fi#ET T FHET T FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZTZThE—A—H Net book amount as at
SR FEE 1 January 2009 2,707 1,111 10,409 75 14,302
RE Additions 1,137 994 15,714 - 17,845
& (7E9) Depreciation charge
(Note 9) (1,627) (725) (8,482) (56) (10,890)
RZZEThF+=-_A=+—H Netbook amount as at
BREDFEE 31 December 2009 2,217 1,380 17,641 19 21,257
RE Additions 77 259 8,530 - 8,866
& (FizE9) Depreciation charge
(Note 9) (2,016) (923) (9,970) (19) (12,928)
HNEETE SRR Exchange adjustments 7 17 33 - 57
R=—T—F|F+=-A=+—H Net book amount as at
ARELFER 31 December 2010 285 733 16,234 - 17,252
N=—F—F|&F+-A=+—H Asat 31 December 2010
BZNET Cost 9,273 7,269 133,196 226 149,964
ZEHTE Accumulated depreciation (8,988) (6,536) (116,962) (226) (132,712)
RIS Net book amount 285 733 16,234 - 17,252
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Z/NS]|
The Company
WAERRME
REREE
HEME Office
#f&  equipment, RE
Leasehold furniture and EhE Motor 4EE
improvement fixtures Computers vehicle Total
F#T FH#EIT Fi#T FHET Fi#T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZTThF—H—H Net book amount as at
BREFRE 1 January 2009 2,707 1,111 10,409 75 14,302
NE Additions 601 123 14,387 — 15,111
e Depreciation charge (1,480) (553) (8,324) (56) (10,413)
REZZFZFNF+=-—A=+—H Netbook amount as at
AR FEE 31 December 2009 1,828 681 16,472 19 19,000
NE Additions 72 240 8,490 — 8,802
e Depreciation charge (1,718) (568) (9,517) (19) (11,822)
R=T—F&F+=-A=+—H Net book amount as at
BREFEE 31 December 2010 182 353 15,445 - 15,980
R=F—F&+=H As at 31 December 2010
=+-8
PRAE Cost 8,711 6,345 131,778 226 147,060
RETE Accumulated depreciation (8,529) (5.992) (116,333 (226) (131,080
AR TERER Net book amount 182 353 15,445 - 15,980
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25. EARIE - #HE& R HMBE 25. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

REE AAT]
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FAT Fi#T FABT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W [el & 2= Repossessed assets 3,861 3,317 3,861 3,317
NAEHEES Corporate club debentures 750 750 750 750
FEU AT (=TT) Dividend receivable from
RERRE available-for-sale
investments (listed) 14,032 15,530 14,032 15,530
Hob Others 9,016 12,998 10,577 17,084
27,659 32,595 29,220 36,681
26. FEfTRRIA - FEfTRSZ R 26. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
HibhBE other liabilities
REE RAR]
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHT FAT FHT FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERRRTE R SR Accounts payable and accrued
expenses 113,043 126,205 146,710 172,018
E e oE Other payable - - 467,734 591,108
HEtbaE Other liabilities 4,163,057 4,133,740 4,163,057 4,133,740
E b Other provisions 15,037 14,232 14,765 14,083

4,291,137 4,274,177 4,792,266 4,910,949

EMmBaEREARZZEZE=F+-_AK=2ZMW Other liabilities represented the deferred consideration used for credit

F-AgABEITHE ([B85FR]) BFEE  enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the Government of the

WIRIBE RN (E E LT HRIRENRE - Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR") in December 2003 and
January 2004

HE-ZT-—ZF+-A=+—H ' A2AFMA Upto 31 December 2010, the Company sold HK$3 billion of mortgage loans
Bauhinia MBS Limited 1% 308 LIZIBEFIE  to Bauhinia MBS Limited for securitisation, in which, the Company continues
BHE - WHEEREERISESHEMIZE - B to recognise the mortgage loans in “Loan portfolio, net” to the extent of the
RIRBERR [ERHEEFHE] - AR [EMEE  guarantee and continuing involvement. A liability due to Bauhinia MBS Limited
{7038 | R —£ & Bauhinia MBS Limited #  shown as “Other payable” has also been recognised. As at 31 December 2010,
BE-RZZ—TFF+-A=+—H  AAFH other payable was HK$467,734,000 (2009: HK$591,108,000) in the Company’s
AR5 2% P B EL M FE 1 5K B 467,734,00078 7T statement of financial position.
ZZTHEF : 591,108,000/ 7T) °
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27. RiEEERBRIEEE

27. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

AEERANR
The Group and the Company

REE R ARE]
The Group and the Company

2010 2009
£ BRI B ES BRR T
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
FHT TR FHT FHT T FHT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
AR E B Provision for unearned premium 1,689,054 190,284 1,498,770 1,372,427 240,738 1,131,689
FRREBARRE Provision for outstanding claims
- BERE/(mE)BR — claims reported/(recovery) - (164) 164 2,091 27) 2,118
- BEABERPRER - claims incurred but not reported 84,611 14,771 69,840 87,800 25,390 62,410
84,611 14,607 70,004 89,891 25,363 64,528
1,773,665 204,891 1,568,774 1,462,318 266,101 1,196,217
() RmHREREESBSTMOT (@) Analysis of movements in provision for unearned premiums
REBRAAT REBERAAT
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2010 2009
£ BRR FE = BER et
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
FHET FHET FHET FTHT FET FTHET
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
»n—A—H As at 1 January 1,372,427 240,738 1,131,689 829,370 311,253 518,117
BUEURE (FizE14) Premiums written (Note 14) 862,282 70,925 791,357 839,042 54,392 784,650
EmERE (FizE14) Premiums earned (Note 14) (545,655) (121,379) (424,276) (295,985)  (124,907)  (171,078)
Rt+=—A=+—8 As at 31 December 1,689,054 190,284 1,498,770 1,372,427 240,738 1,131,689
(b) RRBERESEHHTUNT (b) Analysis of movements in provision for outstanding claims
AEBEAAT REERARE
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2010 2009
£ ) BRI B £ BRR b o)
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
FHRT Fign FHT FHT T FHT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
n—A—H As at 1 January 89,891 25,363 64,528 79,370 37,189 42,181
EEDL::ES Claims paid - 1,175 (1,175) (1,804) (1,969) 165
S Claims recovery 508 202 306 1,207 674 533
BEEERR (i 14) Claims incurred (Note 14)
- BHFRER - claims reported (2,599) (1,515) (1,084) 2,500 1,310 1,190
- BELEEREBREA - claims incurred but not reported (3,189) (10,618) 7,429 8,618  (11,841) 20,459
R+t=A=+—H As at 31 December 84,611 14,607 70,004 89,891 25,363 64,528
) BEFRZEAR (c) Liability adequacy test

HETABERRARAK  ZE2HBEL
BenekfRrEnEBRASHEBARS
mEREGEE - ARBETR=Z—
TERZTENFFTZA=F+—8"
REEEEHRBAEE -

The liability adequacy test considers current estimates of all
contractual cash flows, and of related cash flows such as claims
handling costs, the test shows that, as at 31 December 2010 and
2009, the Group's insurance liabilities are adequate.
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28. Debt securities issued

REE P/NG|
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
TFHERT FHT FHET FHAIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR S R A T RREY Debt securities carried at amortised
BI5ES cost
&5 T AT EIES DIP notes 4,118,849 4,218,169 4,397,000 4,218,169
1R SHR AN B BR Y Total debt securities carried at
BB AERE amortised cost 4,118,849 4,218,169 4,397,000 4,218,169
BEBAFEEH Debt securities designated
B EHES as fair value hedge
B TR EIES DIP notes 20,774,658 24,013,513 20,774,658 24,013,513
TEREFEITEIR RBIP and other notes
HEMES 699,802 1,760,614 699,802 1,760,614
BB R BITEEIES MTN notes 11,597,306 11,656,629 11,597,306 11,656,629
TEE AR AL R Total debt securities designated
BI%E 4R as fair value hedge 33,071,766 37,430,756 33,071,766 37,430,756
RAATERRIEER Debt securities designated as at
LA E{EEMEET A fair value through profit or
EniEEES loss upon initial recognition
B ILEEIES DIP notes 1,756,638 2,329,306 1,756,638 2,329,306
TEEFETE R RBIP and other notes
HhEAE 180,482 167,341 180,482 167,341
HREES BT EIES MTN notes - 349,501 - 349,501
EA%MAEE.: I E Total debt securities designated as at
ﬂ?fﬁ“{tpﬁr)\ fair value through profit or loss upon
T@mﬁ’ﬂ;ﬁﬁ CE ] initial recognition 1,937,120 2,846,148 1,937,120 2,846,148
BEBITERESFERE Total debt securities issued 39,127,735 44,495,073 39,405,886 44,495,073

RER REBRVEERFEEZES
At & f& #91,074,000,000% T (Z T T N F
2,272,000,000787T) BEREBEAAFEZ (LA
B o ZZERABEZ A TEZ RN EER =
BN & - ROIRFERRIEE B A FEE A
BRNeReERAERAEERESHHRER
S ERRF A MIES R A A XS 584> 612,080,000
BT (ZZEZTNEF : 581,052,000/87T) °

ZERERARNFEIIENEHEBELAEMNE
REEREARFZ EERBRE

/\"v*

During the year, the Group designated on initial recognition HK$1,074,000,000
(2009: HK$2,272,000,000) hominal value of such financial liabilities as at
fair value through profit or loss. The fair value changes are attributable to
changes in benchmark interest rates for the debt securities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss. The carrying amount of the financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition is HK$612,080,000 (2009: HK$581,052,000) lower than the
amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at maturity
to the note holders.

There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes in the
credit risk of the Company for those financial liabilities designated as at
fair value.
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The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:

NEH /N
The Group The Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

FHET FHT FTET AT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

®n—H—H As at 1 January 44,023,620 40,967,452 44,023,620 41,412,787
BT Issuance 8,279,703 22,688,680 10,103,499 29,092,736
D= Less: Redemption (13,838,443) (19,645,595) (15,384,088) (26,494,986)
HNESDE H = K8 Exchange difference 5,591 13,083 5,591 13,083
HEEEBRE Total nominal value 38,470,471 44,023,620 38,748,622 44,023,620
ImEABEE S Unamortised portion of discount (697,973) (665,658) (697,973) (665,658)
NEEFE Fair value adjustment 1,355,237 1,137,111 1,355,237 1,137,111
R+-—A=+—8H As at 31 December 39,127,735 44,495,073 39,405,886 44,495,073

NEEFEFHITHES Notes issued during the year comprise:
AEE AAH
The Group The Company

BBIR TERES Ll BHIR TERS hEES

stEl B TatEl BHTEHE st B¥{TRtE B TatEl

DIP RBIP MTN DIP RBIP MTN

TR FHRT Fign Fign TR FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT EEE Amount issued at nominal value 7,104,000 - 1,175,703 8,927,796 - 1,175,703
B U ERRRIR Consideration received 7,018,267 - 1175268 8,842,026 - 1,175,268

AEEETHNEREFBASEEEIRE(E
METHZEETE S ERf—REEES MIE
BREMZS -

All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the Group, and are
issued for the purposes of providing general working capital and refinancing.
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29. B ITIRIBE S

29. Mortgage-backed securities issued

AEE
The Group
2010 2009
FHET FHAIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RS A FIRRAIRIBE S MBS at amortised cost
RIBBHEE MBS Programme - 60,305
Bauhinia #&Z18& #H L 51 &l Bauhinia MBS Programme 805,650 990,815
805,650 1,051,120
EBEBATFEEPHIRBES MBS designated as fair value hedge
Bauhinia #&1&7& Hbat &l Bauhinia MBS Programme 724,099 969,274
BEITIRIBE 545 (131 36) Total MBS issued (Note 36) 1,529,749 2,020,394
n—H—H As at 1 January 1,976,121 3,147,577
& : BB Less: Redemption (470,471)  (1,171,456)
mEEEE Total nominal value 1,505,650 1,976,121
NEFE Fair value adjustment 24,099 44,273
w+—-—A=+—H As at 31 December 1,529,749 2,020,394

FTERBEFI AR ARNEREE A
RMARREERBERMESIREE S MEET -
%18 B 54 A H1,185,520,0008 o (ZZZE A,
£ :1,905,793,000% 7T) B ERFTEITIZIBHE
FHREIR G ( iEE36) - BEITIZIBH HFERER

805,650,000 7T (ZZZT N4 : 1,276,120,0007%  the Company.

All MBS are collateralised obligation of the SPEs and are issued for the
purpose of providing funds to purchase mortgage portfolios from the
Company. HK$1,185,520,000 (2009: HK$1,905,793,000) of mortgage portfolio
are collateralised for the MBS issued (Note 36). Out of the total MBS issued,
nominal value of HK$805,650,000 (2009: HK$1,276,120,000) are guaranteed by

7T) BVE{E AR A BIHELR o
30. lgF 30. Share capital
—2-BER
—BThE
2010 and 2009
FHET
HK$'000
JETE Authorised
FIREE 1B H 30 B E @Ak 3 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 3,000,000
BEEITREE Issued and fully paid
BAREE 1 AT 20 (B E AR 2 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 2,000,000
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AEE
The Group
RRFEE ATERE Eapialti] T 3 (& S
Contingency Fair value Hedging  Translation k)
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R_ZZhF—HF—H As at 1 January 2009 123,545 (21,371) (66,666) (8,557) 26,951
At EESFNATEES :  Change in fair value of available-
for-sale securities:
- REBRWFRE - unrealised net gains - 227,272 - - 227,272
- HEREIE (FHE11) - realisation on disposal
(Note 11) = (3,522) = = (3,522)
- B (£ 13(h) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) = (37,311) = = (37,311)
— G > - amortisation* - 2,381 = = 2,381
R Cash flow hedges
- BEENERTER — net gains arising from
[ ) AR UK hedges recognised
= F R directly in equity - - 25,126 - 25,126
— 18 (i 13(b)) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) - - (4,145) - (4,145)
BMEN =5 Currency translation difference
- BT — subsidiary - - - 158 158
- HEESIER (K5 23) — jointly controlled entity
(Note 23) = = - 1,279 1,279
Eh2mEmBA Other comprehensive income - 188,820 20,981 1,437 211,238
FR AR B e A B 2 W R Transfer of 50% of net risk
Jﬁﬁﬁ{%%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ'\] 50% premium earned from retained
EN profits to contingency reserve 76,313 - - - 76,313
Hﬂﬂl‘ﬁf AR O 2R R T Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (10,025) - - - (10,025)

FAREBAEENIHNERFERERAETH

AU ER AR B o

transferred to held-to-maturity securities.

* amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale securities
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REE
The Group
RgfFEE QTERE i bE 5
Contingency Fair value Hedging  Translation 4azE
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
T T T T TSI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=ZZZhF+=—F=+—H/ Asat 31 December 2009/
—Z-ZTF—HF—H 1 January 2010 189,833 167,449 (45,685) (7,120) 304,477
AN EESFNATEE Change in fair value of available-
for-sale securities:
- REIF W FEE - unrealised net gains - 143,631 - - 143,631
- HEREE (K1) - realisation on disposal
(Note 11) = (40,554) = = (40,554)
— I8 (FE 13(b)) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) = (17,307) = = (17,307)
- 5E I,%Z SRR — - unrealised net gains — jointly
PRI 88 (MisE23) controlled entity (Note 23) - 163 - - 163
- %ﬁﬁ & — amortisation* - 1,809 - - 1,809
IR Cash flow hedges
- BEER S ERE — net gains arising from
EENKEFE hedges recognised
directly in equity - - 26,340 - 26,340
- BARGEROAFEZS - fair value changes
transferred to income
statement = = 79 = (79)
— I8 (FisE 13(b)) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) = = (4,333) = (4,333)
HHETE N =R Currency translation difference
- MIEBAR] — subsidiary = = = 3,878 3,878
HEESIZEEE (M1EE23) - jointly controlled entity
(Note 23) = = = 13,108 13,108
Eb2EBRA Other comprehensive income - 87,742 21,928 16,986 126,656
FR R a A| B B m R Transfer of 50% of net risk
[R\ B AR BV RE A 50% premium earned from retained
Z[R profits to contingency reserve 260,282 - - - 260,282
AR fe AR B R E T Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (12,680) - - = (12,680)
R=T—F&#+=AH As at 31 December 2010
=1+=—H 437,435 255,191 (23,757) 9,866 678,735

*AREBREENAHEERSERERAEESES

R R 8 o

transferred to held-to-maturity securities.
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/NG|
The Company
RkafFEE ATERE H R
Contingency Fair value Hedging FCEE
reserve reserve reserve Total
FHT THT FHT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=TZNF—HF—H As at 1 January 2009 123,545 (21,371) (66,666) 35,508
A EESNAFEES :  Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities:
- RERUWEFEE — unrealised net gains - 227,272 - 227,272
- HERER (1) — realisation on disposal (Note 11) - (3,522) - (3,522)
— 18 (FEE 13(b)) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) - (37,311) - (37,311)
— 5~ — amortisation* - 2,381 - 2,381
b b Cash flow hedges
- EERERER — net gains arising from hedges
E SR EERN KR FRE recognised directly in equity - - 25,126 25,126
- A (KIFE13(0)) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) - - (4,145) (4,145)
Hih2mEBRA Other comprehensive income - 188,820 20,981 209,801
HRRE A AR E Transfer of 50% of net risk premium
R RR B FEEH) 50% earned from retained profits to
Eﬂﬁﬁ e contingency reserve 76,313 - - 76,313
B ERE RS Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (10,025) - - (10,025)
R=ZTZhAF+=-H=+—H/ Asat31December 2009/1 January 2010
—E-FTF—HF—H 189,833 167,449 (45,685) 311,597
HHEZANATEES) :  Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities:
- REIBUW S FEE — unrealised net gains - 143,631 - 143,631
- HERZER (1) — realisation on disposal (Note 11) - (40,554) - (40,554)
— 78 (5 13(b)) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) - (17,307) - (17,307)
- By~ - amortisation* - 1,809 - 1,809
IR EDH Cash flow hedges
- EERERTER - net gains arising from hedges
I;T/KPJXL%E’M&Z )RR recognised directly in equity - - 26,340 26,340
- BAMSEROAFEEZSE - fair value changes transferred to
income statement - - 79 (79)
— 18 (i E 13(b)) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) - - (4,333) (4,333)
HAbZ2EHA Other comprehensive income - 87,579 21,928 109,507
AR B e A B 2 W ER Transfer of 50% of net risk premium
R R R B FEER) 50% earned from retained profits to
:Etﬂ %k contingency reserve 260,282 - - 260,282
BB REREREBEF Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (12,680) - - (12,680)
R=T—FTH+=-A=+—H Asat31December 2010 437,435 255,028  (23,757) 668,706

FAREREENIHNEEFERERAEEY

AU ER R BB o

transferred to held-to-maturity securities.

B—

* amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale securities
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32. MBERMALITIIMEKI S 32. Material related party transactions

(@) ARERPFEARRAIINEESEEA (@) The Company is owned by the Financial Secretary of Hong Kong as

BDFAYER - RARIEAMALAILTY

ZIARG)

HEBSREER ([EE2ERD
B HRR#E LB SR REBFNR 5 E
& BERERMEENEF TAHRR
REERRIRE PR E RAAERIER
% APBARREEERARAERE
BIZIBEN ©

SINEES B BEBSERMAARRM
B0EETHRERER - R —FF
ToA=+—B - UEREHRE(CE
ZNE B HE_Z-ZF+-A
=+—R ' ARAREEINEESRIE
MWIRERBESEBETL (CTTENF
£)  MARRRPKARREEEE
15488 T (ZEThF : 173188
T RBEK -
HNEARNRZBRRBELRZET -
S B AR RZAEE T/ BEHREE
PR BRI B IR IIZIBRE -

B ARINR 5 BIE AR A RS
TTROIZIBRE IR ER (MHEE33) -
FR - R B RZZMmOTENBANI
R BRABRAA LRV AETF RS RIA B 1O
B B

() FEBAEH

Controller of the Exchange Fund. The Company had entered into
various transactions with related parties.

Transactions with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA"), the
government-related entities and the Government of HKSAR included
subscribing to the custodian and clearing agent services provided
by the Central Moneymarkets Unit (“CMU") Service operated by
the HKMA, renting office premises from The Financial Secretary
Incorporated (“FSI”) and purchasing of mortgage loans from the
FSI.

The Exchange Fund through the HKMA had provided the Company
with a HK$30 billion revolving credit facility, and there was no
outstanding balance (2009: nil) as at 31 December 2010. The Company
held investment of HK$500 million (2009: nil) in the Hong Kong
Exchange Fund Bills (“"EFB") as at 31 December 2010. In 2010, the
Company purchased about HK$154 million (2009: HK$173 million) of
mortgage loans from the FSI.

Transactions with the subsidiary included the provision of mortgage
insurance cover for mortgage loans purchased by the subsidiary
from the Approved Sellers/Services in the course of its ordinary
business.

Transactions with the SPEs included acting as the guarantor for the
MBS issued by the SPEs (Note 33).

The amount of income and expenses arising from these transactions
during the year, the balances of the amounts due to and from the
relevant related parties were as follows:

(i) Income and expenses for the year:

REE -
T B BURT AR R 1
The Group
The Government and
government-related entities

2010 2009

FHET FH&T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEWA — INEESZE Interest income — EFB 274 -
HihZ i — B TEHRR Other expenses — CMU service

EE R RTS 914 832

WAE —HE Premises — rental 6,368 6,368

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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(i) Balances as at 31 December:

KEE KRA
The Group The Company
B T Lil=pa RRAR
The Government The Government Subsidiaries Special purpose entities
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
TET FEx TER TEL FHERT FEx FER FET
HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000
FEWEERATIFIE  Amounts due from a group

(Hft3E22) company (Note 22) - - - - 3,102,572 1,630,520 - -
FERTEEARFIE  Amounts due to group companies - - - - - - 32,800 40,992
H R FRIA Other payable (Note 26)

(Pf=E26) - - - = - - 467,734 591,108
HipEE (MizE26)  Other liabilities (Note 26) 4,163,057 4133740 4,163,057 4,133,740 - - - -
RiBFH(LETE Financial guarantees under the

B RSHELR MBS programmes - - - - - - 805,868 1,277,647
kIR B Total risk-in-force - - - - 544,921 220,140 - -

b) EEEEEAR

TEERERERAMERREINE
BERE - BB RGN REERBHA
T BREEEREREEAS -

(b) Key management personnel

Key management are those persons having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group,

directly or indirectly, including directors and senior officers.

AEEFEEREASNTHNRE Key management personnel compensation for the year comprises:
2010 2009

FTHET FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

e MEAMRHESET Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 13,678 13,120
B 1E A Post-employment benefits 951 942
14,629 14,062
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RABRBRREFRAR - AEBIRBELFRE
(25—) B2 7% Bauhinia MBS Limited #7171
BEFEEEFCIE  AmAZMEREFRA A
ERIDIBEFES - ZEEEAEBARILZE
BERESFBRANR RS R E AR

o

BERHEE
Jtﬁ@ﬁfm °

EARREZEEBRBEEFEAPER S REN
B HIER S LB RV AB A B 0 i B 1B 3R
FEHELIERRIBERES -

EARRMES AR AR IRBEHAS
B A X —20 (MR AREHD) Ak
K m s - ABREIEGIE - BIE BEMR EHERIR
BEFMAA - ZFRBETHEA KBS RER
EMBARRKRIER °

ABSBRTERAATIHE 2E
IR RS

R I TERR R
RERNBEROIZEE S °

AR RIFEES BEROEE MRS E’U%ﬂ
BE 915D RHIAESE & QB K L HERA
RAEEERAL SN EREEATE -

T8 CERIREZRRE) 2B 2% 8AKE —
RRARMRE B %?&QTéﬁEﬁiﬁ’ AINRERE
B ERMRESRARIRBRRARNES - BIALGRET
ANFRAT - B AR Eﬁﬁ‘%#ﬁﬂ%i%ﬁﬁé
STARERNEE - TREVLEZE TRRARM
ERARBHERNRKILER - BEFE (&
AIRBEE®) 2BE 2RMENSAAARS
BERR R E B S 2 REBRS R o

178 #&piE®m*EME NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. Special purpose entities and securitisations

The Company uses two special purpose entities (“SPE") namely HKMC Funding
Corporation (1) Limited and Bauhinia MBS Limited to securitise mortgage
portfolio that result in the transfer of mortgage portfolio to two SPEs. These
transfers may give rise to full or partial derecognition of the mortgage portfolio
concerned from the Company’s statement of financial position.

Full derecognition occurs when the Company transfers its contractual right to
receive cash flows from the mortgage portfolio and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Partial derecognition occurs when the Company sells or otherwise transfers
mortgage portfolio in such a way that some but not substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership are transferred but control is retained. These
mortgage portfolio are recognised on the statement of financial position to the
extent of continuing involvement.

The majority of mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPES, that do not qualify
for full derecognition, are MBS guaranteed by the Company.

The rights and obligations that the Company retains from its continuing
involvement in securitisations are initially recorded as an allocation of the fair
value of the financial asset between the part that is derecognised and the part
that continues to be recognised on the date of transfer.

HK(SIC) INT-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities requires consolidation
of SPES when the substance of the relationships between the SPE and the
reporting entity indicates that the SPE is controlled by the reporting entity.
This results in consolidating back the transferred assets to the consolidated
statement of financial position. The following summarises the outstanding
principal balances of the mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPES that were
derecognised from the Company’s statement of financial position but were
consolidated back to the consolidated statement of financial position as a
result of HK(SIC) INT-12.

2010 2009

FHET FHAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BRRIBEESRE (B—)BRA HKMC Funding Corporation (1) Limited - 59,829

Bauhinia MBS Limited Bauhinia MBS Limited 717,786 1,254,856
BE TRRARNRIBEER Mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPES (Note 20(a))

484 (FizE20()) 717,786 1,314,685
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34. TRIE 34. Commitments
(@) &E& (a) Capital
AEE AAR]
The Group The Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

FHET FAT Fi#ET AT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EHUERRETA Authorised but not contracted for 19,166 19,643 19,107 19,352

(b) BEHL
REFRYR - RETAIEHOLEH
A 78 4E H B R R R B 2 (S FRAE R

(b) Operating lease

Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease at the end of the reporting period are analysed as

DHTEATR follows:
REE ZAN/NG|
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FET FAT FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i /NEL Y ES Office premises
TNER—F not later than one year 318 7,264 - 6,368
ZR—FETZHRAF later than one year and not later
than five years - 306 - =
318 7,570 - 6,368

FIR®% - ANAREME A A REBE
N AH=FENHEL  BKARR
EEAF £ 7,833,008 T 0 AFA
REEBBOMAEME -

Subsequent to the year end, the Company entered into a lease for
a period of 3 years with the FSI by which the FSI let to the Company
office premises in Hong Kong at a yearly rental of HK$7,833,000.
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AAREZEBRRR AR EHESERR -
IR ZFETS ©

&os
gy

RZZE—ZTF+A=+—H ' BREREED
BI176 BB (ZETNE 149288 T) » &
24 BHEIIL (ZTTNF : 33318 B I0) BRI
HEBRBARBEERE - MAARRE EITAE
BTI52EBIT (ZZTNEF  1159EFHT) &
[ERs o

AR TH 1528 TR A R RAZNEBRIZRER
B 9EBTRRERFRENBREIEEESB
B B RRIR R BRI ZHE S T B S ke (R
o MARRMRE SRR - BREERER
H R R IB R TN AT A AR R A R o

36. ERIFEE

FRABRDHEEBEERRMERRIEBER TR
#EITHER - UWRIBEERES A EIRERTHE
RFEERIZIBES - EHCAEIZENERE
AEARREREER AR (REEFRIZBESMS -
AR R BMERERA) SUER—HIZBESFER
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35. Mortgage insurance business

The Company operates its mortgage insurance business on a risk-sharing basis
with its approved reinsurers.

As 31 December 2010, the total risk-in-force was approximately HK$17.6 billion
(2009: HK$14.92 billion) of which HK$2.4 billion (2009: HK$3.33 billion) was ceded
to the approved reinsurers and the balance of HK$15.2 billion (2009: HK$11.59
billion) was retained by the Company.

Out of the HK$15.2 billion of risk-in-force retained by the Company, the excess
loss of HK$1.9 billion of risk-in-force was hedged through the use of excess-
of-loss reinsurance arrangement to reinsure the middle layer risk positions,
and the Company retains a portion of the total risk comprising the first-loss
and remote risk portions.

36. Pledged assets

SPESs have charged their assets as securities or otherwise transferred by way
of security for issuing guaranteed or non-guaranteed MBS in accordance with
the provisions under the relevant securitisation programmes. The security
trustee appointed under the relevant securitisation programmes will enforce
the securities over the relevant pledged assets when the relevant SPE (and, in

RREENR  TEZSIEABIEBEENEK  the case of guaranteed MBS, the Company as guarantor) defaults in payment
an o under any series of MBS or otherwise on the occurrence of an event of default
in respect of any series of MBS.
REE
The Group
2010 2009
FHET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EiEEE Assets pledged
SRITRE BT K Time deposits with banks 9,567 28,317
BHEE Investment securities 278,151 -
B EREE Mortgage portfolio 1,185,520 1,905,793
FEUWFI S, Interest receivable 31 267
1,473,269 1,934,377
AHRAARE Secured liabilities
BEITIRIBES (M7 29) Mortgage-backed securities issued (Note 29) 1,529,749 2,020,394
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EERMIRBEFES BEFRA A RMATH AN E
HMeRBEFAES (H5E33) - BERRIBERA
ERERRFESHASEER [EREEFE]
WHERREE (FE26) °

1,8008 B T (ZZEZNF : 57088 70) KT 8
GREEMTFRITEASTRIZBEREENR

AN

37. BB BEHRE
EFEERN T ——FNAT_HBBEANK
RRK

Mortgage portfolio pledged included securitised mortgage portfolio recorded in
the SPE’s book (Note 33) and the transferred mortgage portfolio continued to
be recognised as assets in “Loan portfolio, net” to the extent of the guarantee
and continuing involvement (Note 26).

Time deposits of HK$18 million (2009: HK$5.7 million) are pledged as security
deposits with a bank for mortgage guarantee business in China.

37. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 April
2011.
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B 5 EF
Annex A

BAESH EEEHRIEIE
(72201012 AE)

1. HERT ()

2. BROTBROHARAF

3. FHDGRT

4. HBGERIRTT (M) BRHBRAF)
5. HBEIZRRTT (M) BMBEERAR
6. HERIRTT

7. BIEERTT

8. {EMRTT (F8) ARAA

9. M=FRERT

10. RERAT

1. ERRT(FE)ERAHE

12. EHHIT(BE) ERAA

13. BEBERITTEEET

14. [EARTT

15. EEFHRBERAA

16. BEMBERAR

17. BEEEZES

List of Approved Seller/Servicers
as at end of December 2010

1. Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

2. Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

3. The Bank of East Asia, Limited

4. China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
5. China Construction Bank (Asia) Finance Limited

6. Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited

7. Chong Hing Bank Limited

8. Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited

9. CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited

10. Dah Sing Bank, Limited

11. DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

12. Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

13. The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
14. Hang Seng Bank Limited

15. Hang Seng Credit Limited

16. Hang Seng Finance Limited

17. The Hong Kong Housing Authority
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18. AAEEEHE

19. BB LSEZIRTT

20. EFEAEBAHERAA

21. BT EERTT (ZM)

22. The Link Finance Limited

23. BB EZERTT

24 BEFE T BT

25. ZEAIRTT

26. FEERERIT

27. BA=L (M) ERAF]

28 BNt BIREEBER DA

29. RRZRT (BE) BRAR

30. LIEBmERTT

31. BIRTT (BE) BRAR

32. KTERIT

33. KREEIRTT

* R BB HE

18. Hong Kong Housing Society

19. The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

20. Inchroy Credit Corporation Limited

21. Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

22. The Link Finance Limited

23. The Royal Bank of Scotland N.V.

24 * Metro Credit Union

25. MEVAS Bank Limited

26. Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

27. ORIX Asia Limited

28.* ORIX Finance Services Hong Kong Limited

29. Public Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

30. Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

31. Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

32. Wing Hang Bank, Limited

33. Wing Lung Bank Limited

* Approved as Seller only
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Annex B

RBRGTEZEBREAE - &
BIASRTHENEEXSEFEHE
EERE FEEFFTEINE
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LZHITHRZ S5 KX Bauhinia 218
EHLEt MG EIR BT S
#E

BREAE

KRB ER SRR (SEM) BIR AR
SRR B R AR

BAEME (BE) BRAR

bE L RER (GEMN) BR A
BB Rm (M) ARAR

R T AETE
TEXSHE

o BRTT (B8)

DBS Bank Ltd.

BB LIGELRT
ESNETS
=ZABES (B8) ARAR]
i 8R1T

HEBRE
PIRER AR AR
RERIRTT

B ARERTT
SEEERIRTT
TEMREIER AR A F]

SN FRERTT
RIDERRTT
BETRITEADIT

= (M) BREERR
TEAIRTT
BRAEES (EX) ARAT]
RMERTT
HIEMERBIARAR
EEEETMERAF
FRERITRMNBRAF]
BITIRIT (BA) BR AR

TERSFRTHE

Be B R1T

FEIRTT (&%)
ZRIFITRABRA RN EEHTT

List of Mortgage Reinsurers, Primary Dealers and
Selling Group Members of Debt Issuance Programme,
Placing Banks of Retail Bond Issuance Programme,
Programme Arrangers and Dealers of Medium Term
Note Programme and Programme Arranger and
Dealers of Bauhinia MBS Programme

Mortgage Reinsurers

AIG United Guaranty Insurance (Asia) Limited

Asia Insurance Company, Limited

Hang Seng General Insurance (Hong Kong) Company Limited
HSBC Insurance (Asia) Limited

QBE Mortgage Insurance (Asia) Limited

Debt Issuance Programme

Primary Dealers

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

DBS Bank Ltd.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Merrill Lynch International

Mitsubishi UFJ Securities (HK), Limited

UBS AG

Selling Group Members

Bank of China International Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Barclays Bank PLC

BNP PARIBAS

Citicorp International Limited

Commonwealth Bank of Australia

Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank
Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch
Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C.

Hang Seng Bank Limited

J. P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited
National Australia Bank Limited, Hong Kong Branch
The Royal Bank of Scotland plc

Société Générale Asia Limited

Standard Bank Asia Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Retail Bond Issuance Programme

Placing Banks
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch

EBRIBHESFEMRAT THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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BITIRTT (B8) BRAR
KZERIT
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th i fE 53 1TaEl
FTBIR AT
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J. P. Morgan Securities Ltd.
REB

B AEERTT

EBIE AR ERTT

Citigroup Global Markets Limited
EELRBRITIHME ST
=% (M) BREEAT
B BEZIRTT

J. P. Morgan Securities Ltd.
A BIRR

BITIRIT

I ER1T

Bauhinia #R18E FH (L5t 2l
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EMEE

REE
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The Bank of East Asia, Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited

CITIC Bank International Limited

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Wing Hang Bank, Limited

Wing Lung Bank Limited

Medium Term Note Programme

Programme Arrangers
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.

Dealers

Barclays Bank PLC

BNP PARIBAS

Citigroup Global Markets Limited
Deutsche Bank AG, Singapore Branch
Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.

Nomura International plc

Standard Chartered Bank

UBS AG

Bauhinia MBS Programme

Programme Arranger
Merrill Lynch International

Dealers

Barclays Bank PLC

Citicorp International Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
J. P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited

Merrill Lynch International

UBS AG
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Annex C
FEERGHESF Key Business Statistics
ST=EE SR e
) . —A —A =A
EEREE Asset Purchase Programme Jan-10 Feb-10 Mar-10
AR/ EIREEEE Number of Approved Sellers/Servicers 34 34 34
TERE T E Number of Active Sellers 28 28 28
FEZRBEFEE Number of Residential Mortgage Loans 56,731 55,974 54,842
KEEASHE(BEBT) Outstanding Principal Balance (HK$ million) 22,530 21,942 21,157
90 HIA_EHER 2R (%) > 90-Day Delinquency Ratio (%) 0.06% 0.06% 0.04%
5 RIRATER (%) Monthly Prepayment Rate (%) 1.87% 1.82% 2.68%
DnESE 58 # Weighted Average #
HHERFNEFREY EEEL X (%)  Loan-to-Value Ratio at Origination (%) 68.7 68.6 68.6
HERE ERGEEYEEEL R (%) Estimated Current Loan-to-Value Ratio (%) 43.4 42.4 41.2
HH B ERE WAL E (%) Debt-to-Income Ratio at Origination (%) 365 365 365
BHFIBRFH(R) Remaining Contractual Term to Maturity (months) 175 173 171
Eﬁi(mﬁﬂ%l (A) Seasoning (months) 56 57 58
ERFE(A) Contractual Life (months) 231 230 229
RE Number 674 657 611
FEBALHE(BEST) Outstanding Principal Balance (HK$ million) 5,019 4,981 4,893
HRE Total Number 57,405 56,631 55,453
REEREHRTE (BEST) Total Outstanding Principal Balance (HK$ million) 27,549 26,923 26,050
—T-TE —E-TFE —E-TF
o —HA —A =A
BRI El Mortgage Insurance Programme Jan-10 Feb-10 Mar-10
S HRITENE Number of Participating Banks 25 25 25
AEEHEABLE Year-To-Date
BERERE Applications Approved
BEREREEE Number of Applications Approved 2,759 5,631 8,750
e (AEHET) Total Amount (HK$ million) 6,920 13,992 22,189
MR G HEE Types of Property Transaction
—F (%) Primary (%) 4 3 7
—F (%) Secondary (%) 96 97 93
BieEER Loans Drawn Down
BiRIERE R Number of Loans Drawn Down 981 1,883 3,621
weE(EEET) Total Amount (HK$ million) 2,456 4,716 9,000
MR Z AT Types of Property Transaction
—F (%) Primary (%) 3 4 3
—F (%) Secondary (%) 97 96 97
EAE (%) Usage Rate (%)
ERERE (BERE By Applications Approved (Loan Amount) 23.4 24.9 23.9
BiRER (RS E) By Loans Drawn Down (Loan Amount) 14.2 13.7 14.6
—2-2F —T-TF —T-IF
Outstanding Treasury Securities —A = =
FEHEHLE (E@mE (in nominal value) Jan-10 Feb-10 Mar-10
B TAETE (BEAT) Debt Issuance Programme (HK$ million) 30,349 28,549 27,089
FHAES TR 8l (B &8 IT) Medium Term Note Programme (HK$ million) 11,581 11,578 10,868
TEEF (BEET) Retail Bonds (HK$ million) 1,915 1,915 1,915
Bauhinia ¥Zi8% 4 (A& B7T) Bauhinia MBS (HK$ million) 1,864 1,853 1,840

e

#BREAHRARE MR L2 ZIBER

Note:
#Excluding mortgage loans with co-financing and special arrangements
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—E=-TF —EEF —E-ZF —T-TF —E-EF —E= T —E-EF —Z=-EF —T-TF
A aA NA +A NA A +A +—A +=A
Apr-10 May-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10
34 34 34 34 34 33 33 33 &3
28 28 28 28 28 27 27 27 27
BERETRIBER (RIEEBHENIRBER)
Hong Kong Residential Mortgage Loans (including Securitised Mortgage Loans)
53,814 52,685 51,940 51,220 50,726 49,581 49,255 48,798 47,686
20,434 19,608 19,897 19,335 19,043 18,287 19,107 19,352 18,574
0.04% 0.05% 0.05% 0.05% 0.05% 0.04% 0.03% 0.02% 0.05%
2.71% 3.25% 3.58% 2.98% 2.85% 3.12% 2.92% 2.55% 3.22%
68.5 68.4 69.7 69.7 69.2 69.1 72.4 71.4 71.3
40.6 39.7 41.5 40.5 39.6 38.7 43.3 42.7 421
36.5 36.5 36.4 36.4 36.1 36.1 36.1 35.9 35.9
169 167 175 175 173 172 190 191 192
59 60 57 57 58 58 53 50 51
228 227 232 232 231 230 243 241 243
BEIFETIRBERNIFRIBEE
Hong Kong Non-Residential Mortgage and Non-Mortgage Assets
547 523 507 490 473 462 446 432 426
4,761 4,721 4,688 4,660 4,634 4,612 4,588 4,566 4,550
BREEEEMS
QOverall Hong Kong Portfolio
54,361 53,208 52,447 51,688 51,199 50,043 49,701 49,230 48,112
25,195 24,329 24,585 23,995 23,677 22,899 23,695 23,918 23,124
—E-EF —T-TF —E-EF —E-EF —T-TF —E-EF —TTF —E-EF —E-EF
mA hA 7NAH +A NA LA +A +—A +=A
Apr-10 May-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10
25 25 25 25 25 24 24 24 24
11,343 13,955 16,615 20,437 23,809 25,823 27,530 29,887 31,603
28,968 35,884 42,779 53,219 62,340 67,599 72,226 78,399 82,824
7 6 6 6 5 5 5 5 5
93 94 94 94 95 95 ) 95 95
4,836 6,094 7,491 8,689 10,467 12,267 13,372 14,404 15,802
12,193 15,415 18,958 22,040 26,954 31,728 34,621 37,451 41,006
6 6 7 6 S) 5 S) S 4
94 94 93 94 95 95 95 95 96
22.2 21.3 21.0 21.7 21.9 21.4 20.8 20.4 20.0
13.9 13.2 12.9 12.7 13.1 13.2 13.0 12.7 12.6
e —EEF —E-EF —T-TF —ZE-ZF —Z= T —EEF —E=-ZF —T-TF
A aA NA +A NA LA +A +—A +=A
Apr-10 May-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10
27,709 27,007 25,587 25,487 24,957 25,307 26,387 26,987 26,447
10,844 10,870 10,768 10,891 10,921 10,933 10,953 11,298 11,350
1,915 1,915 1,537 1,536 1,536 1,536 1,536 1,536 895
1,830 1,707 1,697 1,686 1,676 1,665 1,655 1,532 1,506
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Abbreviations Used in this Report

Als
ALCO
BHKMC
BLRS
CAR
Code
CMU
CRC
DIP

EFB

FSI

GDP
Group
HIBOR
HKASS
HKFRSs
HKICPA
HKMA
HKMC/Corporation/Company
HKSAR
HOS
HSLS
ICO
ISM
LDS
LTV
MBS
MIP
Moody's
MPP
MTN
ORC
PLGS
RBIP
RBPS
RBSM
S&P
SCHLS
SFGS
SME
SPE
The HKMA Survey

Authorized Institutions

Asset and Liability Committee

Bauhinia HKMC Corporation Limited

Best Lending Rates

Capital-to-Assets Ratio

Corporate Governance Code

Central Moneymarkets Unit

Corporate Risk Management Committee
Debt Issuance Programme

Exchange Fund Bills

Financial Secretary Incorporated

Gross Domestic Product

The Company and its subsidiaries

Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate

Hong Kong Accounting Standards

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong Monetary Authority

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Home Ownership Scheme

Home Starter Loan Scheme

Insurance Companies Ordinance
Information Security Manual

Loyalty Discount Scheme

Loan-to-Value

Mortgage-Backed Securities

Mortgage Insurance Programme
Moody's Investors Service, Inc

Mortgage Purchase Programme

Medium Term Note

Operational Risk Committee

Premium Loan Guarantee Scheme

Retail Bond Issuance Programme
Risk-based Pricing Scheme

Risk-based Scoring Model

Standard & Poor’s

Sandwich Class Housing Loan Scheme
SME Financing Guarantee Scheme

Small and medium sized enterprises
Special Purpose Entity

The HKMA's Monthly Residential Mortgage Survey
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The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
80th Floor, Two International Finance Centre

8 Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2536 0000  Fax: (852) 2536 0999
Website: www.hkmc.com.hk

EERBESARAT

HEPRSBER

EIFR & B 0258012

E5E 0 (852) 25360000  [EIM{EE : (852) 2536 0999
At www.hkme.com.hk






